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PART L.

Iltem 1. Business

BUSINESS
General

First Business Financial Services, Inc. (togethi¢ghn @dl of its subsidiaries, collectively referremas "Corporation,” "FBFS," "we,"
"us," or "our") is a registered bank holding conypaniginally incorporated in 1986 under the lawdhud State of Wisconsin and engaged in th
commercial banking business through our two whollyred bank subsidiaries, First Business Bank ("FBB&adquartered in Madison,
Wisconsin, and First Business Bank-Milwaukee ("FBBwaukee" and, together with FBB, the "Banks")aldguartered in Brookfield,
Wisconsin. All of our operations are conducted tigto the Banks and certain subsidiaries of FBB. Baweks operate as business banks
focusing on delivering a full line of commercialiténg products, including commercial loans and caruial real estate loans, and services
tailored to meet the specific needs of small- ardinm-sized businesses, business owners, exegutivgsssionals and high net worth
individuals. The Banks generally target businesgiis annual sales between $2.0 million and $50.Mani Because of their focus on business
banking, the Banks do not utilize branch netwodkattract retail clients and, to supplement thasibess banking deposit base, the Banks
utilize wholesale funding alternatives to fund atjpm of their assets. As of December 31, 2012 a @onsolidated basis, we had total assets o
$1.226 billion , total deposits of $1.092 billiondatotal stockholders' equity of $99.5 million .

Our Business Lines
Commercial Lending

We strive to meet the specific commercial-lendiegas of small- to medium-sized companies in ogetamarket areas of Wisconsin,
primarily through lines of credit for working capitneeds and term loans to businesses with anales ketween $2.0 million and
$50.0 million. Through FBB, we have a strong pregein Madison and its surrounding areas. In 20@0ppened FBB-Milwaukee to take
advantage of the strong commercial base locatétiimaukee and the surrounding communities. In 20&BB opened a loan production office
in Appleton to take advantage of the strong comrakenivironment in Northeast Wisconsin. Since theahave opened additional loan
production offices in Oshkosh and Green Bay.

Our commercial loans are typically secured by uaitypes of business assets, including inventeggivables and equipment. We
also originate loans secured by commercial reatesincluding non-residential owner-occupied comuia¢ facilities, multi-family housing,
office buildings, retail centers, and, to a lessdent, commercial real estate construction lobmgery limited cases, we may originate loans
an unsecured basis. As of December 31, 2012 ,amumercial real estate and commercial loans, exctudsset-based lending and equipment
financing, represented approximately 80.7% of otaltgross loans and leases receivable.

Asse-Based Lending

First Business Capital Corp., a wholly-owned suiasjdof FBB ("FBCC"), is focused on assbased lending to smallto medium-
sized companies with credit requirements of $1.Maniup to $10.0 million. With its seven salesioffs, FBCC does not limit itself to
conducting business in Wisconsin.

FBCC primarily provides revolving lines of creditdaiterm loans for financial and strategic acquisii (e.g., leveraged or manager
buyouts), capital expenditures, rapid growth, bdekt refinancing, debt restructuring, corporatedauound strategies, and debtor-in-possessic
financing in the course of bankruptcy proceedingthe exit therefrom. As a bank-owned, asset-bsssder with strong underwriting
standards, First Business Capital Corp. is pogtiaio provide cost-effective financing solutionstanpanies with borrowing needs that do no
have the established stable cash flows necessgualdy for a more traditional commercial lendipgpduct. Asset-based lending is generally
more profitable than traditional commercial lendingd this line of business complements our trawiiti commercial loan portfolio and
provides us with more diverse income opportunitfesof December 31, 2012 , our asset-based lerisiagepresented 12.8% of our total
gross loan and leases receivable.
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Equipment Financing

First Business Equipment Finance, LLC ("FBEF"), lzolly-owned subsidiary of FBB, delivers a broadgamf equipment finance
products, including leases and loans, to addresfrtAncing needs of commercial clients in a vgradtindustries. FBEF's focus includes
manufacturing equipment, industrial assets, coo8tm and transportation equipment, and drillind ail field equipment, in addition to a wi
variety of other commercial equipment. These fimage generally range between $2.0 million and $1@il0on with terms of 36 to 84 month
We believe that we can continue to grow this bussrtBrough our existing offices in Wisconsin and reently opened office in Kansas City,
Kansas. As of December 31, 2012 , our equipmean@img business line represented approximately 4864r total gross loans and leases
receivable.

Treasury Management Services

The Banks provide comprehensive services for cormialezlients to manage their cash and liquiditgluding lock box, accounts
receivable collection services, electronic paynsahitions, fraud protection, information reportimg¢onciliation and data integration solutic
The Banks also offer demand deposit account arahbaloptimization solutions. As we continue to deetiversify our income and increase
our non-interest income, we have focused on inargakese services and have emphasized thesengfaniith new and existing business
clients.

Trust and Investment Services

FBB, through its First Business Trust & Investmatitgsion, acts as fiduciary and investment mandgeindividual and corporate
clients, creating asset allocation strategiesnaildo each client's unique situation while usimgdtparty investment managers to execute
overarching strategies. For managed assets, Rigsh&ss Trust & Investments offers financial adwzne acts either in a trustee or agency
capacity. First Business Trust & Investments alsvides custody services, for which it administemsl safeguards assets but does not provid
financial advice. At December 31, 2012 , First Bess Trust & Investments had $784.2 million of tsseader management and
administration.

Competition

The Banks encounter strong competition in attrgotimommercial loan, equipment finance and depogintd as well as trust and
investment clients. Such competition includes bas&sings institutions, mortgage banking compartesgit unions, finance companies,
equipment finance companies, mutual funds, ins@waompanies, brokerage firms and investment barfkimg. The Banks' market areas
include branches of several commercial banks tleasabstantially larger in terms of loans and diépoBurthermore, credit unions exempt
from income taxes operate in the Banks' marketsamed aggressively price their products and sesviza large portion of the market. The
Banks also compete with regional and national f@frinstitutions, many of which have greater ljty, higher lending limits, greater access
to capital, more established market recognitionraode resources and collective experience thaBdmis. We believe that the strength of oul
executive management team, the experience anditgslof our front-line banking professionalsetrange and quality of the products that
we offer and our emphasis on building long-lasti@lgtionships sets us apart from our competitors.

The following table lists the counties in which tBanks have their main offices as well as certéieoinformation as of June 30,
2012, the most recent data published by the FDIC:

Total Number Total Number Total Deposits
of Banking of Banking in County FBFS FBFS Market Deposit
County Organizations Offices (in thousands) Market Share Rank Share
Dane County 40 18t 14,541,49 6 5.82%
Waukesha County 39 19t 10,557,35 17 1.84%

Employees

At December 31, 2012 , we had 155 employees equaditi40.3 full-time equivalent employees. We hadighat our relationship with
our employees is good.
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Our Subsidiaries
First Business Bank

FBB is a state bank chartered in 1909 under theertimgston State Bank. In 1990, FBB relocated @k office to Madison,
Wisconsin, opened a banking facility in Univerdigsearch Park, and began focusing on providing-igtiity banking services to small- to
medium-sized businesses located in Madison, Wisc@ml the surrounding area. FBB's product linekioshe commercial loans, commercial
real estate loans, equipment loans and leaseseasiity management services. FBB offers a varietigposit accounts and personal loans to
business owners, executives, professionals andr@gtvorth individuals. FBB also offers trust andéstment services through First Business
Trust & Investments, a division of FBB. FBB hasetlaloan production offices in the Northeast RegibWisconsin serving Appleton,
Oshkosh, and Green Bay and their surrounding areas.

FBB has four wholly-owned subsidiaries:

»  First Business Capital Corp., is an adseted commercial lending company specializing avigiing lines of credit and term loa
secured by accounts receivable, inventory, equipieesh real estate assets, primarily to manufactaed wholesale distribution
companies located primarily in the Midwest. FBCGsveatablished in 1995 and has sales offices imsstages.

» First Business Equipment Finance, LLC is a conecmméequipment finance company offering a fullagrof finance and leasing
options to commercial clients of which the majoate currently located in Wisconsin. It offers nemd replacement equipment
loans and leases, debt restructuring, consolidatiod sale-lease-back transactions, through itsgsyi banking locations in
Wisconsin and business development offices in Ka@3ty, Kansas and Denver, Colorado.

 FBB Real Estate, LLC is a limited liability compy established for the purpose of holding anddigiing real estate and other
assets acquired by FBB through foreclosure or ddgal proceedings.

e  First Madison Investment Corp. is located in &nthed under the laws of the state of Nevada,veawl organized for the purpose
of managing a portion of FBB's investment portfolio

As of December 31, 2012 , FBB had total gross l@amtsleases of $816.9 million , total deposits@ECk2 million and total
stockholders' equity of $106.1 million .

First Business Bank-Milwaukee

FBB-Milwaukee is a state bank chartered in 200@/iaconsin. We formed FBB-Milwaukee to focus on coenaial banking in the
greater Milwaukee market area. Like FBB, FBB-Milwae's product lines include commercial loans, corsiakreal estate loans and treasury
management services for similar sized businessté®as served by FBB. FBB-Milwaukee offers a varitdeposit accounts and personal
loans, to business owners, executives, professi@mal high net worth individuals. FBB-Milwaukeeaatsffers trust and investment services
(through a trust service office agreement with FBEB-Milwaukee has one wholly-owned subsidiary B-Blilwaukee Real Estate, LLC,
which is a limited liability company established fbe purpose of holding and liquidating real es&id other assets acquired through
foreclosure or other legal proceedings.

As of December 31, 2012 , FBB-Milwaukee had tataihls of $95.1 million , total deposits of $198.%liom and total stockholders'
equity of $14.7 million .

FBFS Statutory Trust Il

In September 2008 , we formed FBFS Statutory TiiysTrust 11"), a Delaware business trust whollywaed by FBFS. In 2008 ,
Trust Il completed the sale of $10.0 million of 3% fixed rate trust preferred securities. Trust lloalssued common securities in the amou
$315,000 to us. Trust Il used the proceeds fronotfexing to purchase $10.3 million of 10.5% jungubordinated notes issued by us. We hay
the right to redeem the junior subordinated notesg time on or after September 26, 2013 . Théemed securities are mandatorily
redeemable upon the maturity of the junior subatdid notes on September 26, 2038 . FBFS's owndrghiest in Trust Il has not been
consolidated into the financial statements.
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Corporate Information

Our principal executive offices are located at @bftarmany Drive, Madison, Wisconsin 53719 and olepteone number is (608) 238-
8008. We maintain an Internet website at www.fiusihess.com. This Form 10-K and all of our othémds under the Securities Exchange Ac
of 1934, as amended, are available through thasiesliree of charge, including copies of our pretgtement, annual reports on Form 10-K,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current report&om 8-K and any amendments to those reports, @ddte that we file those materials with,
or furnish them to, the Securities and Exchange i@ission ("SEC"). These filings are also availablé¢he public on the internet at the SEC’s
website at www.sec.gov. Shareholders may alsoarddaopy any document that we file at the SEC’dipukference rooms located at 100 F
Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549. Shareholdersealiyhe SEC at 1-800-SEC-0300 for further inforimaton the public reference room.

Our Market Area

Although certain of our business lines are markétegughout the Midwest and beyond, our primaryketareas lie in Wisconsin.
Specifically, our three target market areas comgisadison and Milwaukee, Wisconsin and their sunding communities, and Northeastern
Wisconsin, including Appleton, Green Bay and Oshid¥isconsin and their surrounding communities.Heafcour primary markets provide:
unique set of economic and demographic charadgtsristich provide us with a variety of strategigoptunities. A brief description of each of
our primary markets is as follows:

Madison

As the capital city of Wisconsin and home of thauwdrsity of Wisconsin - Madison, our Madison matlsgiecifically Dane County,
offers an appealing economic environment populbted highly educated workforce (more than 45% efgibpulation of Dane County age 25
or older holds a bachelor's degree or higher deageerding to the U.S. Census Bureau, as compar2é% for the State of Wisconsin as a
whole). While the economy of the Madison marketrigsen in large part by the government and edunatextors, there is also a diverse array
of industries outside of these segments, includiggificant concentration of insurance companie® (of which, American Family Insurance
Group, is a Fortune 500 Company) and agricultuetdted industries. Madison is also home to a canaon of research and development
related companies, which benefit from the areabmgtgovernmental and academic ties, as well abiteersity of Wisconsin Hospital, which
provides healthcare services to the Southcentrat@visin market.

According to the U.S. Census Bureau, as of Aprild10 (the 2010 Census Date), the Madison metrajpoditatistical area ("MSA"),
consisting of Dane County, Columbia County and I&@eainty, had a total population of 568,593 and @23 total households. Since 2000, the
Madison MSA has experienced population growth &fol8ompared to the State of Wisconsin's populajromvth rate of 6%. Due to the
composition of its workforce and major economicvdrs, the Madison area generally experienced fewreerse economic effects than many
other areas of the country during the economic domnin recent years. As of April, 2010, the fiveay average median household income
level in Dane County - the largest county withie adison MSA - was $60,519, which compares fagratbthe average median household
income levels in the United States and the StaWwis€onsin of $51,914 and $51,598, respectivel\cakding to preliminary Bureau Labor of
Statistics data, as of December 2012 , the unajustemployment rate in the Madison MSA was 4.6%pared to the national
unemployment rate of 7.6% and an unemploymentimatee State of Wisconsin of 6.5% . The unemploytmate in the Madison MSA
improved 1.5% from December 2009 , compared tantpeovement in the national and Wisconsin averagbéigh was 2.1% and 2.3% ,
respectively over the same period.

Milwaukee

Our Milwaukee market, the primary commercial anduistrial hub for Southeastern Wisconsin, providds/arse economic base, w
both a highly skilled labor force and significanamufacturing base. The most prominent economioseat the Milwaukee market include
manufacturing, financial services, health careediified service companies and education. The mpelitan area ranks among the top
manufacturing centers in the United States. Milvesik percentage of its workforce in the manufacotusiector is one of the highest of any
MSA. In addition to this strong manufacturing bagéwaukee is home to several major hospitals, fahiog health services to the greater
Southeastern Wisconsin market, several large adadestitutions including the University of WiscansMilwaukee and Marquette Universi
and a wide variety of small- to medium-size firmighwepresentatives in nearly every industrial siisation. The Milwaukee area is also the
home to six Fortune 500 companies, including Johi&ontrols, Inc., Harley Davidson, Inc., Kohl's @oration, Rockwell Automation, Inc.,
ManPower Group and Northwestern Mutual.
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According to the U.S. Census Bureau, as of Aprild10 (the 2010 Census Date), the Milwaukee MSAsisting of Milwaukee
County, Ozaukee County, Washington County, and Wsluk County, had a total population of 1,555,9@B6&ib,847 total households. Since
2000, the Milwaukee MSA has experienced a populagiowth of 4%, compared to the State of Wiscosgiopulation growth rate of 6%. As
of April, 2010, the five-year average median howd@lncome level in Waukesha County - our primagrket within the Milwaukee Area -
was $75,064, which compares favorably to the meld@arsehold income level averages in the UniteceStand the State of Wisconsin of
$51,914 and $51,598, respectively. Despite the@oimdownturn of recent years, the Milwaukee ar@sltegun to experience improvemer
its general economic climate. As of December 20th2 preliminary unadjusted unemployment rate éNfilwaukee MSA was 7.0% ,
compared to the national unemployment rate of 7aB%an unemployment rate in the State of Wiscogeirerally of 6.5% . The
unemployment rate in the Milwaukee MSA improved’d.fom December 2009 , compared to the improvernmetiite national and Wisconsin
averages, which was 2.1% and 2.3% , respectivesr, the same period.

Northeastern Wisconsin

The cities of Appleton, Green Bay, and Oshkosh,céfisin serve as the primary population centersiimrtheast Wisconsin mark
and provide an attractive market to a variety distries, including transportation, utilities, pagkng and diversified services, with the most
significant economic drivers being the manufactyripackaging and paper goods industries. The nigrsfisant individual employers in this
market include Bemis Company, Inc., a packagingpmamy, and Oshkosh Corporation, a specialty truckufecturer, each of which is a
Fortune 500 company. As the home of the Green Bakéts NFL franchise, tourism is also a meaninigifdlistry in this market.

According to the U.S. Census Bureau, as of Aprdd10 (the 2010 Census Date), the three major MSAsr Northeast Wisconsin
market (Appleton, Green Bay and Oshkd$#enah) had a total population of 698,901 and taiakeholds of 275,674. Since 2000, these MV
have experienced a population growth of 9%, comptrehe State of Wisconsin's population growtle @ft6%. As of April, 2010, the five-
year average median household income level in @QmégCounty- where our primary loan production office in thégjion is located - was
$55,914, compared to the median household incowet dverages in the United States and the Staféisfonsin of $51,914 and $51,598,
respectively. According to the Bureau of Labor iStats, as of December 2012 , the preliminary urlegnpent rate in the three major MSAs in
this market ranged from 5.7% to 6.1% , comparatiémnational unemployment rate of 7.6% and an ut@ymgent rate in the State of
Wisconsin of 6.5% . These unemployment rates imguidaetween 1.8% and 2.5% from December 2009 , c@dpa the improvement in the
national and Wisconsin averages, which was 2.1%@a8%b , respectively, over the same period.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following contains certain information about #xecutive officers of FBFS. There are no fanmehationships between any
directors or executive officers of FBFS.

Corey A. Chambas, age 50, has served as a director since July 2002, as Ekifutive Officer of FBFS since December 2006 ad a
President since February 2005. He served as Clpiefafing Officer of FBFS from February 2005 to ®ember 2006 and as Executive Vice
President from July 2002 to February 2005. He skageChief Executive Officer of FBB from July 19@9September 2006 and as President c
FBB from July 1999 to February 2005. He also cutyeserves as a director of our subsidiaries FBGQ kirst Madison Investment Corp. Mr.
Chambas has over 25 years of commercial bankingresqee. Prior to joining FBFS, he was a Vice Riesi of Commercial Lending with
Mé&l Bank, now known as BMO Harris Bank, in Madisafvjsconsin.

James F. Ropella, age 53, has served as Senior Vice President ared Elhiancial Officer of FBFS since September 2000.Ropella
also serves as the Chief Financial Officer of ezfdie Banks. He also currently serves as a diredtour subsidiaries First Madison
Investment Corp. and FBB - Milwaukee. Mr. Ropeltes lover 30 years of experience in finance and axttay primarily in the banking
industry. Prior to joining FBFS, Mr. Ropella waedsurer of a consumer products company. Prioratp e was Treasurer of Firstar
Corporation, now known as U.S. Bancorp.

Michael J. Losenegger, age 55, has served as Chief Credit Officer of FBFS since/ [@@l1. Mr. Losenegger also serves as the Senic
Credit Officer of the Banks. He also currently ssnas a director for our subsidiaries First Madismestment Corp., FBCC and FBEF. Prig
being appointed Chief Credit Officer, Mr. Loseneggerved as FBFS's Chief Operating Officer sinqe&aber 2006. Mr. Losenegger joined
FBFS in 2003 and has held various positions witlB FBcluding Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operagdi Officer and Senior Vice President
Business Development. Mr. Losenegger has over aisya experience in commercial lending. Priordiaipg FBFS, Mr. Losenegger was
Senior Vice President of Lending at M&I Bank, nomokvn as BMO Harris Bank, in Madison, Wisconsin.

5
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Barbara M. Conley, age 59 has served as FBFS's General Counsel since JuBeaB@(as Senior Vice President/Corporate Secretar
since December 2007. Ms. Conley also serves asr&@ldbeunsel, Senior Vice President and Corporateedary of the Banks. She has also
served as a Director of FBCC since June 2009. Mal&y has over 30 years of experience in commebeiaking. Directly prior to joining
FBFS in 2007, Ms. Conley was a Senior Vice Pregide@orporate Banking with Associated Bank. She been employed at Associated
Bank since May 1976.

Jodi A. Chandler, age 48 has served as Senior Vice President-Human Reso&raesninistration of FBFS since January 2010. Prior
to that, she held the position of Senior Vice Rtesi-Human Resources for several years. She hasabeemployee of FBFS for almost
20 years.

Mark J. Meloy, age 51, has served as President and Chief Execddtiieer of FBB since December 2007. Mr. Meloy jethFBFS in
2000 and has held various positions including Etteew/ice President of FBB and President and Chiefcutive Officer of FBB-Milwaukee.
He currently serves as CEO of FBEF. Mr. Meloy hesr®5 years of commercial lending experience.rRagoining FBFS, Mr. Meloy was a
Vice President and Senior Relationship Manager Witstar Bank, NA, Cedar Rapids, lowa and Milwayk&gsconsin, now known as
U.S. Bank, working in their financial institutiogsoup with mergers and acquisition financing.

Joan A. Burke, age 61, has served as President of FBB's TrussiDivisince September 2001. Ms. Burke has over 86syaf
experience in providing trust and investment advirér to joining FBFS, Ms. Burke was the Prestdéief Executive Officer and
Chairperson of the Board of Johnson Trust Compawlycartain of its affiliates.

Charles H. Batson, age 59, has served as the President and Chief e @ifficer of FBCC since January 2006. Mr. Batéas over
30 years of experience in asset-based lendingctjrprior to joining FBCC, Mr. Batson served as¥®iPresident and Business Development
Manager for Wells Fargo Business Credit, Inc. sit@®0.

David J. Vetta, age 58, has served as President and Chief Execdtiicer of FBB-Milwaukee since January 2007. Pitimjoining
FBB-Milwaukee, Mr. Vetta was Managing Director & Morgan Asset Management since 1992 overseeirigidghinstitutional Investment
Sales teams and the Regional Private Client Gmhpe serving as a member of the executive committér. Vetta was affiliated with
JP Morgan Chase and its predecessor companiesidus@ther roles since 1976.

SUPERVISION AND REGULATION

Below is a brief description of certain laws andukations that relate to us and the Banks. Thisatiae does not purport to be
complete and is qualified in its entirety by refaze to applicable laws and regulations.

General

Financial institutions, their holding companies a&heir affiliates are extensively regulated undeteral and state law. As a result, our
growth and earnings performance may be affectedmigtby management decisions and general econconiditions, but also by the
requirements of federal and state statutes antdeébyegulations and policies of various bank regumaauthorities, including the Division of
Banking of the Wisconsin Department of Financiaititutions (“WDFI”), the Federal Reserve, the Fedi€eposit Insurance Corporation (the
“FDIC") and the newly created Bureau of Consumerahcial Protection (the “CFPB”). Furthermore, téomaiaws administered by the Internal
Revenue Service and state taxing authorities, adio@urules developed by the Financial Accountitgn8ards Board and securities laws
administered by the SEC and state securities dtid®have an impact on our business. The effetiiede statutes, regulations, regulatory
policies and accounting rules are significant to@perations and results, and the nature and eafdnture legislative, regulatory or other
changes affecting financial institutions are imllssto predict with any certainty.

Federal and state banking laws impose a compralesgstem of supervision, regulation and enforcerarrihe operations of
financial institutions, their holding companies aftiliates that is intended primarily for the peotion of the FDIC-insured deposits and
depositors of banks, rather than stockholders. & fexferal and state laws, and the regulationseobénk regulatory authorities issued under
them, affect, among other things, the scope ofrtassi, the kinds and amounts of investments banksmake, reserve requirements, capital
levels relative to operations, the nature and armoticollateral for loans, the establishment ofrfafzes, the ability to merge, consolidate and
acquire, dealings with insiders and affiliates #melpayment of dividends. Moreover, turmoil in tredit markets in recent years prompted the
enactment of unprecedented legislation that hasvatl the U.S. Department of the Treasury (the “Jued) to make equity capital available

qualifying
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financial institutions to help restore confidenoel atability in the U.S. financial markets, whichgoses additional requirements on institution:
in which the Treasury invests.

In addition, FBFS and the Banks are subject tolegxamination by their respective regulatory atitfes, which results in
examination reports and ratings that are not plytéicailable and that can impact the conduct awavtjr of business. These examinations
consider not only compliance with applicable laws aegulations, but also capital levels, assetiyuahd risk, management ability and
performance, earnings, liquidity, and various offaetors. The regulatory agencies generally hawaddiscretion to impose restrictions and
limitations on the operations of a regulated entihere the agencies determine, among other thihgssuch operations are unsafe or unsoun
fail to comply with applicable law or are otherwiseonsistent with laws and regulations or with siipervisory policies of these agencies.

The following is a summary of the material elemeftthe supervisory and regulatory framework aggille to us and our subsidiari
It does not describe all of the statutes, regulatiand regulatory policies that apply, nor doesstate all of the requirements of those that are
described. The descriptions are qualified in teatirety by reference to the particular statutaryegulatory provision.

Financial Regulatory Reform

On July 21, 2010, President Obama signed the DoddkPRVall Street Reform and Consumer Protection(tha “Dodd-Frank Act”)
into law. The Dodd-rank Act represents a sweeping reform of the stigxmty and regulatory framework applicable to fin@h institutions an
capital markets in the United States, certain aspefavhich are described below in more detail. Dioeld-Frank Act created new federal
governmental entities responsible for overseeiffgrdint aspects of the U.S. financial services stdy including identifying emerging
systemic risks. It also shifted certain authoriies responsibilities among federal financial isitbn regulators, including the supervision of
holding company affiliates and the regulation ofiamer financial services and products. In pamicidnd among other things, the Dodd-
Frank Act: (i) created the CFPB, which is authatize regulate providers of consumer credit, savipggment and other consumer financial
products and services; (ii) leveled the competifilaying field in some respects by narrowing thepscof federal preemption of state consu
laws enjoyed by national banks and federal sav@sgsciations and expanded the authority of stadenays general to bring actions to enforce
federal consumer protection legislation; (iii) ingeal more stringent capital requirements on most hatding companies and subjected certail
activities, including interstate mergers and adtjoiss, to heightened capital conditions; (iv) sfgrantly expanded underwriting requirements
applicable to loans secured by 1-4 family resiggméal property; (v) restricted the interchangesfpayable on debit card transactions for
issuers with $10 billion in assets or greater; (gfjuired the originator of a securitized loantha sponsor of a securitization, to retain at least
5% of the credit risk of securitized exposures s&line underlying exposures are qualified residentortgages or meet certain underwriting
standards to be determined by regulation; (viiptrd a Financial Stability Oversight Council astjpdia regulatory structure for identifying
emerging systemic risks and improving interageragyperation; (viii) provided for enhanced regulatafradvisers to private funds and of the
derivatives markets; (ix) enhanced oversight oflitmating agencies; and (x) prohibited bankingraxyerequirements tied to credit ratings.

Numerous provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act are regflito be implemented through rulemaking by the@mate federal regulatory
agencies. Many of the required regulations have Issied and others have been released for pubtiment, but there remain a number that
have yet to be released in any form. Furthermohélewthe reforms primarily target systemically innfamt financial service providers, their
influence is expected to filter down in varying degs to smaller institutions over time. Managenoé®BFS and the Banks will continue to
evaluate the effect of the changes; however, inymaspects, the ultimate impact of the Dodd-Frackwill not be fully known for years, and
no current assurance may be given that the DoddkF&at, or any other new legislative changes, mit have a negative impact on the results
of operations and financial condition of FBFS and subsidiaries.

The Increasing Regulatory Emphasis on Capital

FBFS is subject to various regulatory capital regmients administered by the federal and state bgnkigulators noted above. Fail
to meet regulatory capital requirements may raauertain mandatory and possible additional dismnary actions by regulators that, if
undertaken, could have a direct material effeabanfinancial statements. Under capital adequadyeijnes and the regulatory framework for
“prompt corrective action” (described below), FBR8st meet specific capital guidelines that invajuantitative measures of our assets,
liabilities and certain off-balance sheet itemgalsulated under regulatory accounting policies: €apital amounts and classifications are als
subject to judgments by the regulators regardirgitive components, risk weightings and othetdex




Table of Contents

While capital has historically been one of the kegasures of the financial health of both bank Imgidiompanies and depository
institutions, its role is becoming fundamentallymnanportant in the wake of the financial crisis,the regulators have recognized that the
amount and quality of capital held by banking oigations was insufficient to absorb losses duriagqals of severe stress. Certain provisions
of the Dodd-Frank Act and Basel lll, discussed belwill ultimately establish strengthened capitalrglards for banks and bank holding
companies, will require more capital to be helthia form of common stock and will disallow certfimds from being included in capital
determinations. Once fully implemented, these wiovis will represent regulatory capital requirersghtt are meaningfully more stringent
than those in place currently.

Holding Company and Bank Required Capital Leveank holding companies have historically had to plymvith less stringent
capital standards than their bank subsidiariesszare able to raise capital with hybrid instrumesush as trust preferred securities. The Dodd
Frank Act mandated the Federal Reserve to estabiisimum capital levels for bank holding comparoesa consolidated basis that are as
stringent as those required for insured depositwsijtutions. As a consequence, over a phase-ioghbef three years, the components of
holding company permanent capital known as “Tieagital” are being restricted to capital instrunsethiat are considered to be Tier 1 capital
for insured depository institutions. A result ofstichange is that the proceeds of trust prefereedrities are being excluded from Tier 1 capital
unless such securities were issued prior to May@Q20 by bank holding companies with less thanl$llion of assets. Because FBFS has
assets of less than $15 billion, it is able to raamits trust preferred proceeds as Tier 1 capitalwill have to comply with new capital
mandates in other respects, and will not be abtaise Tier 1 capital in the future through theigsce of trust preferred securities. In addition,
the Basel Il proposal, discussed below, includphase-out of trust preferred securities for afikbholding companies, including FBFS.

Under current federal regulations, the Banks abgestito, and, after the phase-in period, FBFS béllsubject to, the following
minimum capital standards:

* aleverage requirement, consisting of a mininmatio of Tier 1 capital to total assets of 3% floe tnost highly-rated banks with a
minimum requirement of at least 4% for all othensgl

» arisk-based capital requirement, consisting ofinimum ratio of total capital to total risk-waigd assets of 8% and a minimum ratio
of Tier 1 capital to total risk-weighted asset2l®§. For this purpose, “Tier 1 capital” consistawymarily of common stock,
noncumulative perpetual preferred stock and relatedlus less intangible assets (other than celdaimservicing rights and purcha
credit card relationships). Total capital conspsimarily of Tier 1 capital plus “Tier 2 capitalhich includes other non-permanent
capital items, such as certain other debt and yistruments that do not qualify as Tier 1 capitaid a portion of the Banks'
respective allowance for loan and leases losses.

The capital standards described above are mininegmirements. Federal law and regulations providewa incentives for banking
organizations to maintain regulatory capital atlevn excess of minimum regulatory requirements.dxample, a banking organization that is
“well-capitalized” may: (i) qualify for exemptiorfsom prior notice or application requirements othise applicable to certain types of
activities; (ii) qualify for expedited processinfjaiher required notices or applications; and @irept brokered deposits. Under the capital
regulations of the Federal Reserve, in order tonsd —capitalized,” a banking organization must maintairatio of total capital to total risk-
weighted assets of 10% or greater, a ratio of Tieapital to total riskweighted assets of 6% or greater and a ratio af Teapital to total asse
of 5% or greater. The Federal Reserve's guidelfsgsprovide that bank holding companies experiengiternal growth or making
acquisitions will be expected to maintain stronpitzd positions substantially above the minimumeswjsory levels without significant relian
on intangible assets. Furthermore, the guidelindeate that the Federal Reserve will continueotas@der a “tangible Tier 1 leverage
ratio” (deducting all intangibles) in evaluatingpposals for expansion or to engage in new activity.

Higher capital levels may also be required if watea by the particular circumstances or risk pesfibf individual banking
organizations. For example, the Federal Reseragitat guidelines contemplate that additional apitay be required to take adequate acc
of, among other things, interest rate risk, orribkes posed by concentrations of credit, nontraddl activities or securities trading activities.
Further, any banking organization experiencingraicgpating significant growth would be expectediaintain capital ratios, including
tangible capital positionsife., Tier 1 capital less all intangible assets), wélbve the minimum levels.

Prompt Corrective ActionA banking organization's capital plays an importaf in connection with regulatory enforcementesl.
Federal law provides the federal banking regulatétis broad power to take prompt corrective actwmesolve the problems of
undercapitalized institutions. The extent of thgulators' powers depends on whether the institutiqquestion is “adequately capitalized,”
“undercapitalized,” “significantly undercapitaliZedr “critically undercapitalized,” in each casedefined by regulation. Depending upon the
capital category to which an institution is assijrtée regulators' corrective powers include:guiring the institution to submit a capital
restoration plan; (ii) limiting the institution'sset
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growth and restricting its activities; (iii) requng the institution to issue additional capitalcitdincluding additional voting stock) or to be
acquired; (iv) restricting transactions betweenitiséitution and its affiliates; (v) restrictingdtinterest rate the institution may pay on deppsits
(vi) ordering a new election of directors of thetitution; (vii) requiring that senior executivefioérs or directors be dismissed,;

(viii) prohibiting the institution from acceptingegosits from correspondent banks; (ix) requiringittstitution to divest certain subsidiaries;
(x) prohibiting the payment of principal or intetes subordinated debt; and (xi) ultimately, apgtioip a receiver for the institution.

As of December 31, 2012: (i) the Banks were nofestttio a directive from the FDIC to increase calfib an amount in excess of the
minimum regulatory capital requirements; (ii) thari&s exceeded their respective minimum regulatapjtal requirements under FDIC capital
adequacy guidelines; and (iii) the Banks were éaail-capitalized,” as defined by FDIC regulatiodss of December 31, 2012, FBFS had
regulatory capital in excess of the Federal Resereguirements and met the Dodd-Frank Act reqLeérdm

Basel lll. The current risk-based capital guidelines descrdisale, which apply to the Banks and are beingqthasfor FBFS, are
based upon the 1988 capital accord known as “B&asaebpted by the international Basel CommitteeBamking Supervision, a committee of
central banks and bank supervisors, as implemdnytédle U.S. federal banking regulators on an igenay basis. In 2008, the banking
agencies collaboratively began to phase-in cagitaldards based on a second capital accord, rteres “Basel II,” for large or “core”
international banks (generally defined for U.S.gmses as having total assets of $250 billion orear consolidated foreign exposures of $10
billion or more). Basel Il emphasized internal asseent of credit, market and operational risk, e & supervisory assessment and market
discipline in determining minimum capital requirems

On September 12, 2010, the Group of Governors aatisiof Supervision, the oversight body of the B@senmittee on Banking
Supervision, announced agreement on a strengttsened capital requirements for banking organizegiaround the world, known as Basel
to address deficiencies recognized in connectigh thie global financial crisis. Basel Il requir@snong other things:
* anew required ratio of minimum common equity&do 4.5% of riskweighted asse!
* anincrease in the minimum required amount ef Ticapital from the current level of 4% of taiakets to 6% of risk-weighted assets
and
e acontinuation of the current minimum requiredoaint of total capital at 8% of riskeighted asse!

In addition, institutions that seek the freedonmtake capital distributions (including for dividenaisd repurchases of stock) and pay
discretionary bonuses to executive officers with@striction must also maintain 2.5% in common gqaitributable to a capital conservation
buffer to be phased in over three years. The perpbshe conservation buffer is to ensure that ban&intain a buffer of capital that can be
used to absorb losses during periods of financidleconomic stress. Factoring in the conservatigfebincreases the ratios depicted above tc
7% for common equity, 8.5% for Tier 1 capital artd5P6 for total capital.

On June 12, 2012, the federal banking regulatbes@ffice of the Comptroller of the Currency, thedEral Reserve and the FDIC)
(the “Agencies”) formally proposed for commenttlimee separate but related proposals, rules tceimght Basel Il in the United States. The
proposals are: (i) the “Basel Il Proposal,” whigbplies the Basel Il capital framework to almdstaS. banking organizations; (ii) the
“Standardized Approach Proposal,” which appliesaterelements of the Basel |l standardized appréaicbredit risk weightings to almost all
U.S. banking organizations; and (iii) the “Advand&gbroaches Proposal,” which applies changes ma@asel Il and Basel Ill in the past few
years to large U.S. banking organizations subjetii¢ advanced Basel Il capital framework. The ceminperiod for these notices of propo:
rulemaking ended October 22, 2012.

The Basel Il Proposal and the Standardized Apgrd@oposal are expected to have a direct impaEBH5 and the Banks. The Bz
[l Proposal is applicable to all U.S. banks tha subject to minimum capital requirements, inahgdiederal and state banks, as well as to
and savings and loan holding companies other tharall bank holding companiesjénerally bank holding companies with consolidatsskt:
of less than $500 million). There will be sepanait@se-in/phase-out periods for: (i) minimum capiios; (ii) regulatory capital adjustments
and deductions; (iii) nonqualifying capital instrants; (iv) capital conservation and countercyclaagital buffers; (v) a supplemental leverage
ratio for advanced approaches banks; and (vi) amtgthe FDIC's prompt corrective action rules.

The criteria in the U.S. proposal for common eqaityl additional Tier 1 capital instruments, as waslITier 2 capital instruments, are
broadly consistent with the Basel Il criteria. Amber of instruments that now qualify as Tier lizdvill not qualify, or their qualification
will change, if the Basel 11l Proposal becomes ffifir example, cumulative preferred stock andasertiybrid capital instruments, including
trust preferred securities, which FBFS may retaidar the Dodd-Frank Act,
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will no longer qualify as Tier 1 capital of any kinNoncumulative perpetual preferred stock, whiotv mualifies as simple Tier 1 capital,
would not qualify as common equity Tier 1 capitalf would qualify as additional Tier 1 capital.

In addition to the changes in capital requiremémthided within the Basel 1ll Proposal, the Stamlilzed Approach Proposal revises a
large number of the risk weightings (or their melblogies) for bank assets that are used to deterthancapital ratios. For nearly every class
of assets, the proposal requires a more compléailei® and calibrated assessment of credit riskcahtllation of risk weightings. For exam
under the current risk-weighting rules, residentialtgages have a risk weighting of 50%. Undemttopposed new rules, two categories of
residential mortgage lending would be createdr#iitional lending would be category 1, where sk weightings range from 35 to 100%;
and (ii) nontraditional loans would fall within egfory 2, where the risk weightings would range fi&0rto 150%. There is concern in the U.S.
that the proposed methodology for risk weightingjdential mortgage exposures and the higher risghiags for certain types of mortgage
products will increase costs to consumers and eethair access to mortgage credit.

In addition, there is significant concern notedfoy financial industry in connection with the BaBetulemaking as to the proposed
treatment of accumulated other comprehensive indA@CI"). The proposed treatment of AOCI would require urizedl gains and losses
available-for-sale securities to flow through tgukatory capital as opposed to the current treatmmich neutralizes such effects. There is
concern that this treatment would introduce capitddtility, due not only to credit risk but also interest rate risk, and affect the composition
of firms' securities holdings.

While the Basel Ill accord called for national gdictions to implement the new requirements begmdianuary 1, 2013, in light of t
volume of comments received by the Agencies anaddneerns expressed above, the Agencies have tedittzat the commencement date for
the proposed Basel Ill rules has been delayedtasdinclear when the Basel Il regime, as it mayiraplemented by final rules, will become
effective in the United States.

The Corporation

General.We are a bank holding company registered undeB#m Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended (“BHCAnd are
subject to regulation, supervision, and examinalipthe Federal Reserve. We are required to filaranual report with the Federal Reserve
such other reports as the Federal Reserve mayreedpuiaccordance with Federal Reserve policy,aandow codified by the Dodd-Frank Act,
we are legally obligated to act as a source ofiéie strength to the Banks and to commit resouteesipport the Banks in circumstances
where we might not otherwise do so. Under the BH®A are subject to periodic examination by the Fadeeserve.

Acquisitions, Activities and Change in Controlhe primary purpose of a bank holding company isotatrol and manage banks. The
BHCA generally requires the prior approval of trexleral Reserve for any merger involving a bankihgldompany or any acquisition by a
bank holding company of another bank or bank hgldiompany. Subject to certain conditions (includilegosit concentration limits
established by the BHCA and the Dodd-Frank Acg,Flederal Reserve may allow a bank holding compaagquire banks located in any
state of the United States. In approving interstatpuisitions, the Federal Reserve is requiredv® gffect to applicable state law limitations
the aggregate amount of deposits that may be tyeldebacquiring bank holding company and its indutepository institution affiliates in the
state in which the target bank is located (providhed those limits do not discriminate against olustate depository institutions or their hold
companies) and state laws that require that tlyetdrank has been in existence for a minimum peridiine (not to exceed five years) before
being acquired by an out-of-state bank holding camyp Furthermore, in accordance with the Déddnk Act, bank holding companies mus
well-capitalized and well-managed in order to efiaterstate mergers or acquisitions. For a digonssf the capital requirements, see “-The
Increasing Regulatory Emphasis on Capital” above.

The BHCA limits the amount of our investment in aompany that is not a bank and our ability to gi@ga any business other than
that of banking, managing and controlling bankfuanishing services to banks and their subsidiafi&ss limitation is subject to a number of
exceptions. The principal exception allows banldir@ companies to engage in, and to own sharesropanies engaged in, certain businesse
found by the Federal Reserve prior to Novemberl 929 to be “so closely related to banking . .tcdse a proper incident thereto.” This
authority would permit us to engage in a varietypanfking-related businesses, including the ownprahd operation of a thrift, or any entity
engaged in consumer finance, equipment leasingypbeation of a computer service bureau (includiofjware development) and mortgage
banking and brokerage. The BHCA generally doesptaate territorial restrictions on the domestic\atits of nonbank subsidiaries of bank
holding companies.

Federal law also prohibits any person or compammfacquiring “control” of an FDIC-insured depositanstitution or its holding
company without prior notice to the appropriatesied bank regulator. “Control” is conclusively puesed to

10




Table of Contents

exist upon the acquisition of 25% or more of théstanding voting securities of a bank or bank hmjdiompany, but may arise under certain
circumstances between 10% and 24.99% ownership.

Financial Holding Company RegulationBank holding companies that meet certain eligipil@équirements prescribed by the BHCA
and elect to operate as financial holding compamiag engage in, or own shares in companies engagadvider range of nonbanking
activities, including securities and insurance undiéing and sales, merchant banking and any atlegvity that the Federal Reserve, in
consultation with the Secretary of the Treasuryerines by regulation or order is financial inurat incidental to any such financial activity
or complementary to any such financial activity @loés not pose a substantial risk to the safespondness of depository institutions or the
financial system generally. We have not electegp@rate as a financial holding company.

Capital RequirementsBank holding companies are required to maintainmimn levels of capital in accordance with Federas&tve
capital adequacy guidelines, as affected by thedEkrdnk Act and Basel Ill. For a discussion of talpiequirements, see “-The Increasing
Regulatory Emphasis on Capital” above. If capitakls fall below the minimum required levels, albanlding company, among other things,
may be denied approval to acquire or establishtiaddil banks or nonbank businesses.

U.S. Government Investment in Bank Holding Compasi&vents in the U.S. and global financial market2008 and 2009,
including the deterioration of the worldwide credfiirkets, created significant challenges for fimalriostitutions throughout the country. In
response to this crisis affecting the U.S. bankiygtem and financial markets, on October 3, 2088|LS. Congress passed, and the Presidel
signed into law, the Emergency Economic Stabilratct of 2008 (the “EESA”). The EESA authorizeé tBecretary of the Treasury to
implement various temporary emergency programgydesli to strengthen the capital positions of finanistitutions and stimulate the
availability of credit within the U.S. financial stem. Financial institutions participating in cémtaf the programs established under the EESA
are required to adopt the Treasury's standardsxcutive compensation and corporate governanc@dber 14, 2008, the Treasury
announced that it would provide Tier 1 capitalttie form of perpetual preferred stock) to eligifit@ncial institutions. This program, known
the TARP Capital Purchase Program (the “CPP”)calied $250 billion from the $700 billion authorizZeglthe EESA to the Treasury for the
purchase of senior preferred shares from qualiffimancial companies. We did not participate in @fP.

Dividend PaymentsOur ability to pay dividends to our stockholdersynha affected by both general corporate law comataes and
policies of the Federal Reserve applicable to bai#ing companiesAs a Wisconsin corporation, we are subject to itinéations of the
Wisconsin Business Corporation Law, which prohifstfrom paying dividends if such payment wouldréidder us unable to pay our debts as
they become due in the usual course of businegs) oesult in our assets being less than the etiour total liabilities plus the amount needed
to satisfy the preferential rights upon dissolutidrany stockholders with preferential rights supeto those stockholders receiving the
dividend.

As a general matter, the Federal Reserve itetidhat the board of directors of a bank holdimggany should eliminate, defer or
significantly reduce the dividends if: (i) FBFS&tiincome available to stockholders for the pagt fpuarters, net of dividends previously paid
during that period, is not sufficient to fully furkde dividends; (ii) the prospective rate of eagsinetention is inconsistent with FBFS's capital
needs and overall current and prospective finamciatition; or (iii) FBFS will not meet, or is iradger of not meeting, its minimum regulatory
capital adequacy ratios. The Federal Reserve alsgegses enforcement powers over bank holding coegpand their nonbank subsidiaries to
prevent or remedy actions that represent unsaf@swund practices or violations of applicable séstand regulations. Among these powers i
the ability to proscribe the payment of dividengisblanks and bank holding companies.

Corporate Governancelhe Dodd-Frank Act addresses many investor pratectiorporate governance and executive compensatior
matters that will affect most U.S. publicly tradsaimpanies. The DodErank Act will increase stockholder influence obeards of directors |
requiring companies to give stockholders a nonligdiote on executive compensation and so-callettigoparachute” payments, and
authorizing the SEC to promulgate rules that walllow stockholders to nominate and solicit votenstheir own candidates using a compa
proxy materials. The legislation also directs tieeléral Reserve to promulgate rules prohibiting ssite compensation paid to bank holding
company executives, regardless of whether FBF8béigly traded.

The Banks
General. The Banks are Wisconsin-chartered banks, the deposdunts of which are insured by the FDIC's Daposurance Fund
(“DIF") to the maximum extent provided under feddeav and FDIC regulations. As Wisconsin-charteF&IC-insured banks, the Banks are

subject to the examination, supervision, reporéing enforcement requirements of the WDFI, the ehiaig authority for Wisconsin banks, and
the FDIC, designated by federal law as the prinfiadigral regulator

11




Table of Contents

of insured state banks that, like the Banks, atam@nbers of the Federal Reserve System (“non-meb#iks”). The Banks are members of
the Federal Home Loan Bank System, which providesnaral credit facility primarily for member ingttions.

As of January 1, 2012, FBB had reached total asdepeater than $1 billion, and as a result is solject to further reporting
requirements under FDIC rules, specifically 12 R.RRart 363 (“Annual Independent Audits and RepgriRequirements”). Pursuant to these
rules, management will prepare a report that coatan assessment by management of the Corporagitetsiveness of internal control
structure and procedures for financial reportingfafie end of the fiscal year. FBB will also bgu&ed to obtain an independent public
accountant's attestation report concerning itsmalecontrol structure over financial reportingttirecludes the Reports of Condition and Incc
(a so-called “Call Report”) and/or our FR Y-9C reptn accordance with FDIC rules, the Corporatigh satisfy these requirements on behalf
of FBB.

Deposit InsuranceAs FDIC-insured institutions, the Banks are recitee pay deposit insurance premium assessmerttg t6DQIC.
The FDIC has adopted a risk-based assessment sygteraby FDIC-insured depository institutions pasurance premiums at rates based or
their risk classification. An institution's riskadsification is assigned based on its capital $eaetl the level of supervisory concern the
institution poses to the regulators.

On November 12, 2009, the FDIC adopted a final e required insured depository institutions tegaly on December 30, 2009,
their estimated quarterly risk-based assessmenthddourth quarter of 2009 and for all of 201012, and 2012. As such, on December 31,
2009, the Banks prepaid their FDIC assessmentsllmastheir respective: (i) actual September 30928sessment base, increased quarte
a 5% annual growth rate through the fourth quart@012; and (ii) total base assessment rate acetin September 30, 2009, increased by ar
annualized three basis points beginning in 201&. ADIC began to offset prepaid assessments on MN&xcP010, representing payment of the
regular quarterly risk-based deposit insurancesassent for the fourth quarter of 2009. Any preadessment not exhausted after collection
of the amount due on June 30, 2013, will be reditoghe Banks.

Amendments to the Federal Deposit Insurance Actraigise the assessment base against which amthdapository institution's
deposit insurance premiums paid to the DIF wilcbkulated. Under the amendments, the assess@asatill no longer be the institution's
deposit base, but rather its average consolidatatidssets less its average tangible equity. fhig shift the burden of deposit insurance
premiums toward those large depository institutithrad rely on funding sources other than U.S. diégo#\dditionally, the Dodd-Frank Act
made changes to the minimum designated resereeafidiie DIF, increasing the minimum from 1.15%1t85% of the estimated amount of
total insured deposits, and eliminating the regn@et that the FDIC pay dividends to depositoryiingbns when the reserve ratio exceeds
certain thresholds. The FDIC is given until Sedien, 2020 to meet the 1.35% reserve ratio taBmteral of these provisions could increase
the Banks' FDIC deposit insurance premiums.

The Dodd-Frank Act permanently increases the maxiramount of deposit insurance for banks, savingfititions and credit unions
to $250,000 per insured depositor, retroactiveataudry 1, 2009. Although the legislation providedttnon-interest-bearing transaction
accounts had unlimited deposit insurance covethgé program ended on December 31, 2012.

FICO Assessmentd he Financing Corporation (“FICQ”) is a mixed-owsleip governmental corporation chartered by the ésrm
Federal Home Loan Bank Board pursuant to the CatiygeEquality Banking Act of 1987 to function adimancing vehicle for the
recapitalization of the former Federal Savings bodn Insurance Corporation. FICO issued 30-yeacaltsble bonds of approximately $8.1
billion that mature in 2017 through 2019. FICO'thauity to issue bonds ended on December 12, 19@te 1996, federal legislation has
required that all FDIC-insured depository instibui$ pay assessments to cover interest paymentiC@ifoutstanding obligations. These
FICO assessments are in addition to amounts asskegsbhe FDIC for deposit insurance. During therysraded December 31, 2012, the FICO
assessment rate was approximately 0.0066%, whildti®the change from an assessment base compuiggposits to an assessment base
computed on assets as required by the Dodd-Frahk Ac

Supervisory Assessmentsll Wisconsin banks are required to pay supervissyessments to the WDFI to fund the operatiotiseof
WDFI. The amount of the assessment is calculatati@basis of total assets. During the year endemb®Dber 31, 2012, FBB and FBB -
Milwaukee paid supervisory assessments to the @tlihg $43,000 and $7,600 , respectively.

Capital RequirementsBanks are generally required to maintain capitalein excess of other businesses. For a discuss$icapital
requirements, see “-The Increasing Regulatory Esiptan Capital” above.
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Dividend PaymentsUnder Wisconsin banking law, the Banks generally mat pay dividends in excess of their respectiveivided
profits, and if dividends declared and paid in eitbf the two immediately preceding years exceegtdncome for either of those two years
respectively, the Banks may not declare or paydivigend in the current year that exceeds yearate-det income. The various bank
regulatory agencies have authority to prohibit lsamkder their jurisdiction from engaging in an dasar unsound practice. Under certain
circumstances, the payment of a dividend by thekBaould be considered an unsafe or unsound peattiche event that: (i) the FDIC or the
WDFI increase minimum required levels of capita);the total assets of the Banks increase siganifily; (iii) the income of the Banks decre;i
significantly; or (iv) any combination of the forgigg occurs, then the boards of directors of thek8anay decide or be required by the FDIC
or the WDFI to retain a greater portion of the Balrdarnings, thereby reducing or eliminating divide

The payment of dividends by any financial institatis affected by the requirement to maintain adégjoapital pursuant to applicable
capital adequacy guidelines and regulations, divthacial institution generally is prohibited fropaying any dividends if, following payment
thereof, the institution would be undercapitalizad.described above, each of the Banks exceededrimum capital requirements under
applicable guidelines as of December 31, 2012 ofA3ecember 31, 2012 , approximately $64.7 millieas available to be paid as dividends
by FBB. FBB - Milwaukee did not have any capacityphty dividends at that time. Notwithstanding theikability of funds for dividends,
however, the FDIC may prohibit the payment of aiwd&nds by the Banks if the FDIC determines suaynpent would constitute an unsafe
unsound practice.

Insider TransactionsThe Banks are subject to certain restrictions iregdsy federal law on “covered transactions” betwiben
Banks and their affiliates. We are an affiliateeath of the Banks for purposes of these restrigtiand covered transactions subject to the
restrictions include extensions of credit to usestments in our stock or other securities andittoeptance of our stock or other securities as
collateral for loans made by the Banks. The DodahkrAct enhances the requirements for certain aetiens with affiliates as of July 21,
2011, including an expansion of the definition obvered transactions” and an increase in the anafuime for which collateral requirements
regarding covered transactions must be maintained.

Certain limitations and reporting requirementsas® placed on extensions of credit by the Bankkew respective directors and
officers, to our directors and officers, to oumgipal stockholders and to “related interests”waffsdirectors, officers and principal
stockholders. In addition, federal law and regoladimay affect the terms upon which any personiwlaadirector or officer of FBFS or the
Banks, or a principal stockholder of ours, may whtaedit from banks with which the Banks maintamrespondent relationships.

Safety and Soundness Standard$e federal banking agencies have adopted guidelivet establish operational and managerial
standards to promote the safety and soundnessgefdiéy insured depository institutions. The guiide$ set forth standards for internal
controls, information systems, internal audit systeloan documentation, credit underwriting, insérate exposure, asset growth,
compensation, fees and benefits, asset qualityarmings.

In general, the safety and soundness guidelinesibe the goals to be achieved in each area, asfdiestitution is responsible for
establishing its own procedures to achieve thos¢sgtf an institution fails to comply with any tife standards set forth in the guidelines, the
institution's primary federal regulator may requfe institution to submit a plan for achieving andintaining compliance. If an institution
fails to submit an acceptable compliance planais in any material respect to implement a conmgiéaplan that has been accepted by its
primary federal regulator, the regulator is requite issue an order directing the institution teecthe deficiency. Until the deficiency cited in
the regulator's order is cured, the regulator neasrict the institution's rate of growth, requine institution to increase its capital, restrict th
rates the institution pays on deposits or reqtiesitistitution to take any action the regulatorrde@ppropriate under the circumstances.
Noncompliance with the standards established bgaffiety and soundness guidelines may also comstjtounds for other enforcement act
by the federal banking regulators, including cess# desist orders and civil money penalty assedsmen

Branching Authority. The Banks have the authority under Wisconsin laestablish branches anywhere in the State of Wisopn
subject to receipt of all required regulatory amate.

Federal law permits state and national banks t@enaith banks in other states subject to: (i) ratnrly approval; (ii) federal and state
deposit concentration limits; and (iii) state lamitations requiring the merging bank to have bieexistence for a minimum period of time
(not to exceed five years) prior to the merger. &sblishment of new interstate branches or thaisition of individual branches of a bank in
another state (rather than the acquisition of arobgtate bank in its entirety) has historicallselm permitted only in those states the laws of
which expressly authorize such expansion. HoweherDodd-Frank Act permits well-capitalized and lweanaged banks to establish new
branches across state lines without these impedémen
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State Bank Investments and ActivitieBhe Banks are permitted to make investments andgenip activities directly or through
subsidiaries as authorized by Wisconsin law. Howeaweder federal law and FDIC regulations, FDihGured state banks are prohibited, sul
to certain exceptions, from making or retainingiggumvestments of a type, or in an amount, thatrast permissible for a national bank.
Federal law and FDIC regulations also prohibit Fix8ured state banks and their subsidiaries, sutgjemertain exceptions, from engaging as
principal in any activity that is not permitted famational bank unless the bank meets, and cagtittumeet, its minimum regulatory capital
requirements and the FDIC determines that theiactivould not pose a significant risk to the DIFhée restrictions have not had, and are no
currently expected to have, a material impact endgperations of the Banks.

Transaction Account ReserveBederal Reserve regulations require depositorjtitisins to maintain reserves against their tratisa
accounts (primarily NOW and regular checking actsuriFor 2013: (i) the first $12.4 million of otlvése reservable balances are exempt fror
the reserve requirements; (ii) for transaction aot® aggregating more than $12.4 million to $79ilian, the reserve requirement is 3% of
total transaction accounts; and (iii) for net tgt®n accounts in excess of $79.5 million, themes requirement is $2,013,000 plus 10% of th
aggregate amount of total transaction accountgdass of $79.5 million. These reserve requiremargssubject to annual adjustment by the
Federal Reserve. The Banks are in compliance Wétidregoing requirements.

Federal Home Loan Bank Systerithe Banks are members of the Federal Home Loan B&€kicago (the “FHLB"), which serves
as a central credit facility for its members. ThéLB is funded primarily from proceeds from the safe@bligations of the FHLB system. It
makes loans to member banks in the form of FHLBaades. All advances from the FHLB are requiredetdully collateralized as determined
by the FHLB.

As a member, each of the Banks is required to dvanes of capital stock in the FHLB in an amountatdqo the greatest of $500, 1%
of its aggregate unpaid residential mortgage lohos)e purchase contracts or similar obligatiorte@beginning of each year or 20% of its
outstanding advances. The FHLB also imposes valimitations on advances relating to the amounttgpé of collateral, the amount of
advances and other items. As of December 31, 28&Banks owned a total of $1.1 million in FHLB &t@nd they were both in compliance
with FHLB requirements. The Banks received a modestiend from the FHLB in 2012 and 2011 and nda#wd in the year 2010. The Bar
do not expect dividend income from their holding&HLB stock to be a significant source of incoroe the foreseeable future. Outstanding
FHLB advances as of December 31, 2012 amounted@®,$00 .

Community Reinvestment Act Requiremenithie Community Reinvestment Act requires each Bartlave a continuing and
affirmative obligation in a safe and sound manoérelp meet the credit needs of its entire commuiitiuding low- and moderate-income
neighborhoods. Federal regulators regularly agbesBanks' record of meeting the credit needsaif tiespective communities. Applications
for additional acquisitions would be affected bg thvaluation of the Banks' effectiveness in medtieiy Community Reinvestment Act
requirements.

Anti-Money Laundering.The Uniting and Strengthening America by Providkgpropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruc
Terrorism Act of 2001 (the “Patriot Act”) is desigghto deny terrorists and criminals the abilitphgain access to the U.S. financial system ar
has significant implications for depository instituns, brokers, dealers and other businesses iegiatvthe transfer of money. The Patriot Act
mandates financial services companies to haveipsland procedures with respect to measures desigraeldress any or all of the following
matters: (i) customer identification programs; iipney laundering; (iii) terrorist financing; (iildentifying and reporting suspicious activities
and currency transactions; (v) currency crimes;@&cdooperation between financial institutiongldaw enforcement authorities.

Commercial Real Estate Guidanc&he interagency Concentrations in Commercial Rette Lending, Sound Risk Management
Practices guidance (“CRE Guidance”) provides supery criteria, including the following numericaldicators, to assist bank examiners in
identifying banks with potentially significant conential real estate loan concentrations that mayamagreater supervisory scrutiny:

(i) commercial real estate loans exceeding 300%apital and increasing 50% or more in the precetlinge years; or (ii) construction and le
development loans exceeding 100% of capital. ThE GRidance does not limit banks' levels of comnaraal estate lending activities but
rather guides institutions in developing risk magragnt practices and levels of capital that are censurate with the level and nature of their
commercial real estate concentrations. Based ocwuent loan portfolio, the Banks do not exceazbséhguidelines. Even though the Banks dc
not exceed these regulatory guidelines, we belieaewe have taken appropriate precautions to addhe risks associated with our
concentrations in commercial real estate lending.dd&' not expect the CRE Guidance to adverselytadf@coperations or our ability to exec
our growth strategy.
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Monetary Policy

The monetary policy of the Federal Reserve hagrifiiant effect on the operating results of fin@hor bank holding companies and
their subsidiaries. Among the means available écRtderal Reserve to affect the money supply aea oprket transactions in U.S.
government securities, changes in the discountram@ember bank borrowings and changes in resequérements against member bank
deposits. These means are used in varying combirsatid influence overall growth and distributionbaink loans, investments and deposits,
and their use may affect interest rates chargddams or paid on deposits.

Consumer Financial Services

There are numerous developments in federal anel Istas regarding consumer financial products andaes that impact each Bank's
business. Importantly, the current structure oéfatlconsumer protection regulation applicablelltpraviders of consumer financial products
and services changed significantly on July 21, 20#fen the CFPB commenced operations to superasemforce consumer protection laws.
The CFPB has broad rulemaking authority for a watege of consumer protection laws that apply t@@iiiders of consumer products and
services, including the Banks, as well as the aitth prohibit “unfair, deceptive or abusive” aand practices. The CFPB has examination
and enforcement authority over providers with nmtban $10 billion in assets. Banks and savingstirtgins with $10 billion or less in assets,
like the Banks, will continue to be examined byitta@plicable bank regulators. Below are additioieakent regulatory developments relatin
consumer mortgage lending activities. Due to aunitéd consumer mortgage portfolio, we do not cutyeexpect these provisions to have a
significant impact on our operations; however, tiddal compliance resources will be needed to noomihanges.

Ability-to-Repay Requirement and Qualified Mortgadule. The Dodd-Frank Act contains additional provisionattaffect consumer
mortgage lending. First, it significantly expandslarwriting requirements applicable to loans setine1-4 family residential real property
and augments federal law combating predatory Igngiactices. In addition to numerous new disclosegeirements, the Dodd-Frank Act
imposes new standards for mortgage loan originatinall lenders, including banks and savings &asgogs, in an effort to strongly encoure
lenders to verify a borrower's ability to repay,illalso establishing a presumption of compliararecértain “qualified mortgages.” Most
significantly, the new standards limit the totalrge and fees that the Banks and/or a broker maygehon conforming and jumbo loans to 3%
of the total loan amount. In addition, the Dodd+k&ct generally requires lenders or securitizersetain an economic interest in the credit
risk relating to loans that the lender sells aftepassetbacked securities that the securitizer issuesifdans have not complied with the
ability-to-repay standards. The risk retention requirergenerally will be 5%, but could be increased orrdased by regulation.

On January 10, 2013, the CFPB issued a final affective January 10, 2014, which implements thddBrank Act's ability-taepay
requirements, and clarifies the presumption of daampe for “qualified mortgages.” In assessing atwer's ability to repay a mortgage-
related obligation, lenders generally must conséigint underwriting factors: (i) current or reasolyaexpected income or assets; (ii) current
employment status; (iii) monthly payment on thejsabtransaction; (iv) monthly payment on any sitanéous loan; (v) monthly payment for
all mortgage-related obligations; (vi) current debligations, alimony, and child support; (vii) mbly debt-toincome ratio or residual incom
and (viii) credit history. The final rule also indles guidance regarding the application of, andhatetiogy for evaluating, these factors.

Further, the final rule also clarifies that quadimortgages do not include “no-doc” loans anddoaith negative amortization,
interest-only payments, balloon payments, termexiess of 30 years, or points and fees paid bidh®wer that exceed 3% of the loan
amount, subject to certain exceptions. In additionqualified mortgages, the monthly payment nhestalculated on the highest payment tha
will occur in the first five years of the loan, atite borrower's total debt-to-income ratio gengralhy not be more than 43%. The final rule
also provides that certain mortgages that satisfygeneral product feature requirements for qedlifnortgages and that also satisfy the
underwriting requirements of Fannie Mae and Fredithe (while they operate under federal conservhtprsr receivership) or the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development, Depamt of Veterans Affairs, or Department of Agricué or Rural Housing Service are
also considered to be qualified mortgages. Thisrsgcategory of qualified mortgages will phaseamithe aforementioned federal agencies
issue their own rules regarding qualified mortgadfes conservatorship of Fannie Mae and Freddie &fas, and, in any event, after seven
years.

As set forth in the Dodd-Frank Act, subprime (agher-priced) mortgage loans are subject to thétgdi-repay requirement, and the
final rule provides for a rebuttable presumptionesfder compliance for those loans. The final al#® applies the ability-to-repay requirement
to prime loans, while also providing a conclusivegumption of compliancei . , a safe harbor) for prime loans that are alsoifiedl
mortgages. Additionally, the final rule generallppibits prepayment
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penalties (subject to certain exceptions) andfeetis a 3-year record retention period with resgealocumenting and demonstrating the
ability-to-repay requirement and other provisions.

Changes to Mortgage Loan Originator Compensatidgffective April 2, 2011, previously existing regtitms concerning the
compensation of mortgage loan originators were al®@nAs a result of these amendments, mortgageologinators may not receive
compensation based on a mortgage transaction's taroponditions other than the amount of credieeaed under the mortgage loan. Further,
the new standards limit the total points and fées & bank and/or a broker may charge on conformairtgjumbo loans to 3% of the total loan
amount. Mortgage loan originators may receive camepton from a consumer or from a lender, but 1wt bThese rules contain requirements
designed to prohibit mortgage loan originators ff@teering” consumers to loans that provide morgglagn originators with greater
compensation. In addition, the rules contain otkquirements concerning recordkeeping.

Foreclosure and Loan Modifications-ederal and state laws further impact foreclosanesloan modifications, many of which laws
have the effect of delaying or impeding the forsal@ process on real estate secured loans in de¥trtgages on commercial property car
modified, such as by reducing the principal amairthe loan or the interest rate, or by extendmegterm of the loan, through plans confirmed
under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. temeyears, legislation has been introduced irdtise Congress that would amend the
Bankruptcy Code to permit the modification of maggs secured by residences, although at this kimertactment of such legislation is not
presently proposed. The scope, duration and tefipstential future legislation with similar effecontinue to be discussed. We cannot predict
whether any such legislation will be passed orirtiygact, if any, it would have on our business.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

You should carefully read and consider the follayvitsks and uncertainties. We may encounter risksldition to those described
below, including risks and uncertainties not cutlseknown to us or that we currently deem to be aenial. The risks described below, as\
as such additional risks and uncertainties, mayingr materially and adversely affect our businessults of operations and financial
condition.

Risks Related to Our Busine:

If we do not effectively manage our credit risk, weay experience increased levels of delinquences)performing loans, and
charge-offs, which would require additional increas in our provision for loan and lease losses.

There are risks inherent in making any loan ordeacluding risks inherent in dealing with indival borrowers, risks of nonpayme
risks resulting from uncertainties as to the futumiie of collateral and cash flows available tviee debt and risks resulting from changes in
economic and market conditions. We cannot asswrghat our credit risk approval and monitoring maeres will reduce these credit risks,
and they cannot be expected to completely elimioatecredit risks. If the overall economic climatehe United States, generally, or our
market areas, specifically, fails to meaningfuityprove, or even if it does meaningfully improver borrowers may experience difficulties in
repaying their loans and leases, and the leveboparforming loans and leases, charge-offs andaledincies could rise and require further
increases in the provision for loan and lease ksshich would cause our net income and returncquitgto decrease.

Our allowance for loan and lease losses may notldequate to cover actual losses.

We establish our allowance for loan and lease fasd maintain it at a level considered appropbgtmanagement based on an
analysis of our portfolio and market environmerteTllowance for loan and lease losses represanestimate of probable losses inherent in
the portfolio at each balance sheet date and edoagon relevant information available to us. Tlh@aance contains provisions for probable
losses that have been identified relating to smefationships, as well as probable losses inttéreour loan and lease portfolio and credit
undertakings that are not specifically identifiddlditions to the allowance for loan and lease Issagich are charged to earnings through the
provision for loan and lease losses, are deterniaseéd on a variety of factors, including an anslgsour loan and lease portfolio by segm
historical loss experience and an evaluation ofezitreconomic conditions in our market areas. Tdteah amount of loan and lease losses is
affected by changes in economic, operating and athreditions within our markets, which may be beyaur control, and such losses may
exceed current estimates.

At December 31, 2012 , our allowance for loan aabé losses as a percentage of total loans ared leas 1.69% and as a percentag
of total nonperforming loans and leases was 109.0B#hough management believes that the allowdoctan and lease losses is
appropriate, we may be required to take additipnaVisions for losses in the future to further depgent the allowance, either due to
management's decision to do so or requirementsibkanking regulators. In addition,
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bank regulatory agencies will periodically revieur @allowance for loan and lease losses and the\attubuted to nonaccrual loans or to
properties acquired through foreclosure. Such etgny agencies may require us to adjust our detextioin of the value for these items. Any
significant increases to the allowance for loan leade losses may materially decrease our net iacafnich may adversely affect our busin
financial condition and results of operations.

A significant portion of our loan and lease portfidl is comprised of commercial real estate loans,iethinvolve risks specific to re:
estate values and the real estate markets in gehedaof which have experienced significant weals®in the past several years.

At December 31, 2012 we had $624.0 million of comuia real estate loans, which represented 68.378tictotal loan portfolio.
Because payments on such loans are often depemiléné successful operation or development of tbpgyty or business involved,
repayment of such loans is often more sensitive tther types of loans to adverse conditions irréa¢ estate market or the general economy
which are outside the borrower's control. In therg\that the cash flow from the property is redudtled borrower's ability to repay the loan
could be negatively impacted. The deteriorationraé or a few of these loans could cause a matedadase in our level of nonperforming
loans, which would result in a loss of revenue ftbese loans and could result in an increase iptnésion for loan and lease losses and an
increase in charge-offs, all of which could haveaterial adverse impact on our net income. Addiilyn many of these loans have real estate
as a primary or secondary component of collatdta. market value of real estate can fluctuate Sagmitly in a short period of time as a result
of economic conditions. Adverse developments afigateal estate values in one or more of our marketild impact collateral coverage
associated with the commercial real estate segofenir portfolio, possibly leading to increasedapie reserves or charge-offs, which would
adversely affect profitability.

A large portion of our loan and lease portfolio momprised of commercial loans secured by equipmantther collateral, the
deterioration in value of which could increase oexposure to future probable losses.

At December 31, 2012 , approximately 28.10% , &852 million , of our loan and lease portfolio wasnprised of commercial loans
to businesses collateralized by general businestsamcluding accounts receivable, inventory, @uipment. Our commercial loans are
typically larger in amount than loans to individeahsumers and, therefore, have the potentiabfgel losses on an individual loan basis.
Additionally, assetbased borrowers are usually highly leveraged artiiwe inconsistent historical earnings. Significahterse changes in
various industries could cause rapid declines Inesaand collectability associated with those bessnassets resulting in inadequate collateral
coverage that may expose us to future losses. é&mrase in specific reserves and charge-offs mag hawaterial adverse impact on our result:
of operations.

Nonperforming assets take significant time to regeland adversely affect our results of operatiomsldinancial condition, and
could result in further losses in the future.

At December 31, 2012 , our nonperforming loanséat&14.1 million , or 1.55% of our loan and leasetfolio, and our
nonperforming assets (which include nonperformaoank and foreclosed properties) totaled $15.7anillior 1.28%of total assets. In additio
we had $210,000 in accruing loans that were 30e8% delinquent as of December 31, 2012 .

Our nonperforming assets adversely affect ourmmtme in various ways. We do not record interestrime on nonaccrual loans or
foreclosed properties, thereby adversely affeatimgnet income and returns on assets and equigasing our loan administration costs and
adversely affecting our efficiency ratio. When \a&é collateral in foreclosure and similar procegdjwe are required to mark the collateral tc
its then fair market value, less estimated seltiogts, which may result in a loss. These nonpeifarioans and foreclosed properties also
increase our risk profile and the capital our ratpis believe is appropriate in light of such riskise resolution of nonperforming assets
requires significant time commitments from managena&d can be detrimental to the performance df tiker responsibilities. If we
experience increases in nonperforming loans angerforming assets, our net interest income mayegatively impacted and our loan
administration costs could increase, each of whalld have an adverse effect on our net incomeelated ratios, such as return on assets
equity.

Real estate construction and land development loans based upon estimates of costs and values &ssatwith the complete
project. These estimates may be inaccurate, andnag be exposed to significant losses on loans lfase projects

Real estate construction and land development loamprised approximately 7.12% of our total load ase portfolio as of
December 31, 2012 , and such lending involves iadit risks because funds are advanced upon therapleted value of the project, whict
uncertain prior to its completion, and costs mageexi realizable values in declining real estatketar Because of the uncertainties inhere
estimating construction costs and the realizablketasalue of the
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completed project and the effects of governmemglilation of real property, it is relatively diffilt to evaluate accurately the total funds
required to complete a project and the related-toaralue ratio. As a result, construction loangfinvolve the disbursement of substantial
funds with repayment dependent, in part, on theesgof the ultimate project and the ability of bleerower to sell or lease the property, rathe
than the ability of the borrower or guarantor tpay principal and interest. If our appraisal of Yadue of the completed project proves to be
overstated or market values or rental rates dealeanay have inadequate security for the repayofetiie loan upon completion of
construction of the project. If we are forced toefdose on a project prior to or at completion thua default, we may not be able to recover all
of the unpaid balance of, and accrued interesthanloan as well as related foreclosure and holdosgs. In addition, we may be required to
fund additional amounts to complete the project iaay have to hold the property for an unspecifiedqa of time while we attempt to dispose
of it.

Our business has been and may continue to be addgraffected by conditions in the financial markesd economic conditions
generally.

Although it has recently shown certain signs ofiay@ment, since late 2007, the U.S. economy hasrghy experienced challenging
economic conditions. Business activity across geaof industries and regions remains reduced fristofical levels under more favorable
economic conditions. Likewise, many local governtadrave been experiencing certain difficulties|uding lower tax revenues, which have
impacted their ability to cover costs. Unemploymaisb remains at elevated levels. For the pastyfaws, the financial services industry has
generally been affected by declines in the valdesamy significant asset classes, reduced levdiguaiflity and the lack of opportunities to
originate new loans. While these challenges aremgdly less severe than in recent years, their anpantinues to be felt.

As a result of these economic conditions, manyitenahstitutions, including the Banks, have expecid declines in the performance
of their loans from historical norms. Moreover, gmetition among depository institutions for depositsl quality loans has increased
significantly. In addition, the values of real éstaollateral supporting many loans remain deprkase may decline in the future. Bank and
bank holding company stock prices have generalinbreegatively affected over this time period, dralability of banks and bank holding
companies to raise capital or borrow in the dehtketa has generally been more difficult than it baen prior to 2007. There have been
significant new laws and regulations regarding legand funding practices and liquidity standawish a potential for further regulation in t
future, and bank regulatory agencies in generat fen diligent in responding to concerns and éhehtified in examinations, including
through formal or informal enforcement actions ofays. The impact of new legislation in responsinése developments may negatively
impact our operations by restricting our busingssrations, including our ability to originate otldeans, and adversely impact our financial
performance or our stock price.

In addition, if the overall economic climate in tbeited States, generally, or our market areas;igally, fails to continue to
improve, this may affect consumer confidence leaald may cause adverse changes in payment pattaussng increases in delinquencies
default rates, which may impact our charge-offs pravisions for credit losses. A worsening of thesrditions likely would exacerbate the
adverse effects of the recent market conditionasoand others in the financial services industry.

Our business is concentrated in and largely depemidepon the continued growth and welfare of the geal geographical markets
in which we operate.

Our operations are heavily concentrated in thelS@eintral region of Wisconsin and to a lesser extenSoutheastern and
Northeastern regions of Wisconsin, and, as a resuttfinancial condition, results of operationsl @ash flows are significantly impacted
changes in the economic conditions in those af@assuccess depends to a significant extent ugbukiness activity, population, income
levels, deposits and real estate activity in threagkets. Although our customers' business and éiahmterests may extend well beyond these
market areas, adverse economic conditions thattdffese market areas could reduce our growth affet the ability of our customers to
repay their loans to us, affect the value of cellaltunderlying loans and generally affect ourfiicial condition and results of operations.
Because of our geographic concentration, we asedbke than other regional or national financiatitntions to diversify our credit risks across
multiple markets. Although, in general, the Wisdareconomy and real estate market have not beentaff as severely as other areas of the
United States in recent years, they are not immaieballenging economic conditions that affecttheted States and world economies.
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Our financial condition and results of operationsocild be negatively affected if we fail to effectiyexecute our strategic plan or
manage the growth called for in our strategic plan.

Among other things, our strategic plan currentlyscir reducing the amount of our nonperformingets, generating in-market core
deposits to improve our net interest margin andeiasing fee income. Our ability to increase proflity in accordance with this plan will
depend on a variety of factors including the id@gtion of desirable business opportunities, catitige responses from financial institutions
our market areas and our ability to manage liquiditd funding sources. While we believe we haventheagement resources and internal
systems in place to successfully manage our sicapéan, we cannot guarantee that opportunitiesheilavailable and that the strategic plan
will be successful or effectively managed.

Although we do not have any current definitive glam do so, in implementing our strategic plan vaymxpand into additional
communities or attempt to strengthen our positioaudr current markets through opportunistic actjoiss of similar or complementary
financial services organizations. To the extent #@open new offices or undertake acquisitionsareelikely to experience the effects of
higher operating expenses relative to operatingnmefrom the new operations, which may have anradweffect on our levels of reported net
income, return on average equity and return onamesassets. Other effects of engaging in such brsirdtegies may include potential
diversion of our management's time and attentiahgemeral disruption to our business.

To the extent that we grow through additional afapenings, we cannot assure you that we will e tabtadequately and profitably
manage this growth. Acquiring other banks and mssias will involve similar risks to those commoadgociated with branching, but may alsc
involve additional risks, including potential expos to unknown or contingent liabilities of bank&ldusinesses we acquire and exposure to
potential asset quality issues of the acquired lmanklated business.

Monetary policies and regulations of the Federal 8&ve could adversely affect our business, finahcandition and results of
operations.

In addition to being affected by general econonoieditions, our earnings and growth are affectethieypolicies of the Federal
Reserve. An important function of the Federal Resés to regulate the money supply and credit dirdi. Among the instruments used by
Federal Reserve to implement these objectivesaar market operations in U.S. government securgigisistments of the discount rate and
changes in reserve requirements against bank depdkese instruments are used in varying comhinatio influence overall economic
growth and the distribution of credit, bank loainsestments and deposits. Their use also affet#sdst rates charged on loans or paid on
deposits.

The monetary policies and regulations of the Fddeeaerve have had a significant effect on the atpeg results of commercial ban
in the past and are expected to continue to do #ueifuture. The effects of such policies upontmusiness, financial condition and results of
operations cannot be predicted.

We operate in a highly regulated industry and thels and regulations that govern our operations, porate governance, executive
compensation and accounting principles, or changeghem, or our failure to comply with them, may adrsely affect us.

We are subject to extensive regulation and supervibat govern almost all aspects of our operatitmended to protect customers,
depositors and deposit insurance funds, thesedad/segulations, among other matters, prescribémim capital requirements, impose
limitations on our business activities, limit thiwidends or distributions that we can pay, resttiet ability of institutions to guarantee our debt
and impose certain specific accounting requireméitatsmay be more restrictive and may result iraggmeor earlier charges to earnings or
reductions in our capital than generally acceptambanting principles. Compliance with laws and #atians can be difficult and costly and
changes to laws and regulations often impose aaditicompliance costs. Further, our failure to clymygth these laws and regulations, eve
the failure was inadvertent or reflects a diffelentinterpretation, could subject us to restricsi@n our business activities, fines and other
penalties, any of which could adversely affect@msults of operations, capital base and the pficaiosecurities.

Recent legislative and regulatory reforms applicatib the financial services industry may have arsfgcant impact on our
business, financial condition and results of opeiats.

In the wake of the global financial crisis of 20B809, Congress enacted the Dodd-Frank Act, whighifsgantly changed the

regulation of financial institutions and the finéaleservices industry. The Dodd-Frank Act, togetivih the regulations developed and to be
developed thereunder, includes provisions affedinge and small financial institutions alike,

19




Table of Contents

including several provisions that will affect hoamamunity banks, thrifts and small bank and thrdtding companies will be regulated in the
future.

Among other things, the Dodd-Frank Act changes digfiesurance coverage and assessments and intpagisoducts and services
offered by financial institutions. It changes trasé for FDIC insurance assessments to a bank'ageveonsolidated total assets minus averag
tangible equity, rather than its deposit base, paently raises the current standard deposit inserfmit to $250,000, and expands the FDIC's
authority to raise insurance premiums. The leg@taalso calls for the FDIC to raise the ratio ederves to deposits from 1.15% to 1.35% for
deposit insurance purposes by September 30, 2@Répffset the effect” of increased assessmentmsured depository institutions with
assets of less than $10 billion. The Dodd-Franklidwits interchange fees payable on debit cardsaations for larger banks, allows financial
institutions to pay interest on business checkigpants, contains provisions on mortgaggated matters (such as steering incentives,
determinations as to a borrower's ability to repagl prepayment penalties) and establishes the @8R independent entity within the
Federal Reserve. This entity will have broad rulkimg, supervisory and enforcement authority overstmner financial products and services,
including deposit products, residential mortgadpesne-equity loans and credit cards. Moreover, thddFrank Act includes provisions that
affect corporate governance and executive compensai all publicly traded companies.

In addition, the Dodd-Frank Act, together with iaiives of the Basel Committee on Banking Supeovisliscussed below, is raising
the capital levels required to be maintained bykkamd thrift holding companies and financial ingittns and is changing the rules with respec
to the kinds of capital instruments that must ble.Hehe Collins Amendment to the Dodd-Frank Actuiegs bank holding companies to
maintain capital on the same basis as banks andube banks may not hold capital in the form dfttpreferred securities, eliminates trust
preferred securities from Tier 1 capital, excejt ttertain trust preferred securities issued gddviay 19, 2010 by bank holding companies
with total consolidated assets of $15 billion aslenay continue to be includible in Tier 1 capital.

The Group of Governors and Heads of Supervisianptlersight body of the Basel Committee on Banigngervision, adopted Basel
[l in September 2010, which constitutes a streegéd set of capital requirements for banking ogtiins in the United States and arounc
world. Basel Il is currently the subject of noticef proposed rulemakings released in June of B§1tBe respective U.S. federal banking
agencies. The comment period for these noticesapigsed rulemakings ended on October 22, 201jraltregulations have not yet been
released. Basel lll was intended to be implemeb&ginning January 1, 2013 and to be fufiipased in on a global basis on January 1, 2019.
However, on November 9, 2012, the U.S. Federal begulatory agencies announced that the implementaf the proposed rules to effect
Basel Il in the United States was indefinitelyalgdd. Basel 11l would require capital to be heldha form of tangible common equity,
generally increase the required capital ratiossplwaut certain kinds of intangibles treated astabhpind certain types of instruments, like trust
preferred securities, and change the risk weightofgassets used to determine required capitalstati

These provisions, as well as any other aspectaroémt or proposed regulatory or legislative chamgdaws applicable to the financ
industry, will impact the profitability of our buséss activities and may change certain of our legsipractices, including the ability to offer
new products, obtain financing, attract deposiskenoans, and achieve satisfactory interest spreed could expose us to additional costs,
including increased compliance costs. These chasigeanay require us to invest significant manageéragention and resources to make any
necessary changes to operations in order to corapty/could therefore also materially and advera#fsct our business, financial condition
results of operations. Our management is activahewing the provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act aras8l 111, many of which are to be
phased-in over the next several months and yeadsassessing the probable impact on our operatitmsever, the ultimate effect of these
changes on the financial services industry in ganand us in particular, is uncertain at this time

We are periodically subject to examination and stiny by a number of banking agencies and, dependimgpn the findings and
determinations of these agencies, we may be reqltcemake adjustments to our business that coulderdely affect us.

Federal and state banking agencies periodicalldectrexaminations of our business, including coerpe with applicable laws and
regulations. If, as a result of an examinatioredefal banking agency was to determine that ttenéiial condition, capital resources, asset
quality, asset concentration, earnings prospeasagement, liquidity, sensitivity to market riskather aspects of any of our operations has
become unsatisfactory, or that we or our managementviolation of any law or regulation, it couldke a number of different remedial acti
as it deems appropriate. These actions includpdher to enjoin “unsafe or unsound” practices gnuire affirmative actions to correct any
conditions resulting from any violation or practite issue an administrative order that can becjatly enforced, to direct an increase in our
capital, to restrict our growth, to change the assmposition of our portfolio or balance sheetassess civil monetary penalties against our
officers
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or directors, to remove officers and directors ahitjs concluded that such conditions cannotberected or there is an imminent risk of loss
to depositors, to terminate our deposit insuraticge become subject to such regulatory actionsbmsiness, results of operations and
reputation may be negatively impacted.

The repeal of federal prohibitions on payment oftémest on demand deposits could increase our ingéexpense.

On July 21, 2011, all federal prohibitions on tibdity of financial institutions to pay interest @emand deposit accounts were
repealed as part of the Dodd-Frank Act. As a resatne financial institutions have commenced dffginterest on these demand deposits to
compete for customers. If competitive pressuresireqis to pay interest on these demand depositraet and retain business customers, ou
interest expense would increase and our net interagyin would decrease. This could have a matadaérse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations. Further, tifeece of the repeal of the prohibition could be masignificant in a higher interest rate
environment, as business customers would haveagegri@acentive to seek interest on demand deposits.

Liquidity risks could affect operations and jeop&aes our business, financial condition, and resultt§ operations.

Our ability to implement our business strategy dépend on our liquidity and ability to obtain fumg for loan originations, working
capital and other general purposes. An inabilityeiee funds through deposits, borrowings, the stleans and other sources could have a
substantial negative effect on our liquidity. Oueferred source of funds consists of customer depeghich we supplement with other sour
such as brokered deposits. Such account and déjadaitces can decrease when customers perceiugatilte investments as providing a
better risk/return tradeoff. If customers move mpooat of bank deposits and into other investmemtsmay increase our utilization of broke
deposits, FHLB advances and other wholesale funstigces necessary to fund desired growth levelsaise these funds generally are more
sensitive to interest rate changes than our cquediiis, they are more likely to move to the highat# available. In addition, the use of
brokered deposits without regulatory approvalnstied to banks that are “well capitalized” accogitn regulation. As of December 31, 2012 ,
39.9% of FBB's total deposits and 8.9% of FBB-Milikae's total deposits were brokered depositselBidinks are unable to maintain their
capital levels at “well capitalizedhinimums, we could lose a significant source ofdiag, which would force us to utilize additional elasale
funding or potentially sell assets at a time whgeaipg may be unfavorable, increasing our fundingts and reducing our net interest income
and net income.

Our access to funding sources in amounts adequéiteahce or capitalize our activities or on tertimgt are acceptable to us could be
impaired by factors that affect us directly or fimancial services industry or economy in genesath as disruptions in the financial markets o
negative views and expectations about the prosparctse financial services industry. Regional @edmunity banks generally have less
access to the capital markets than do nationasapdrregional banks because of their smaller size anitidd analyst coverage. Since mid-
2007, the financial services industry and the ¢nedirkets generally have been materially and adWeedfected by declines in asset values an
by diminished liquidity. The liquidity issues haleen particularly acute for regional and commuhéwpks, as many of the larger financial
institutions significantly curtailed their lending regional and community banks to reduce theiosype to the risks of other banks. In addit
many of the larger correspondent lenders reducedenm eliminated federal funds lines for their espondent customers.

As a result, we rely on our ability to generateasts and effectively manage the repayment andnibyaschedules of our loans and
investment securities, respectively, to ensurewlgahave adequate liquidity to fund our operatidasy decline in available funding could
adversely impact our ability to originate loanjgst in securities, meet our expenses, pay divislémdur stockholders or fulfill obligations
such as repaying our borrowings or meeting depaidrawal demands, any of which could have a nietadverse impact on our liquidity,
business, financial condition and results of openst

The expiration of the FDIC's Transaction Account Guantee Program could negatively impact the Bankguidity and cost of
funds.

Under the FDIC's Transaction Account Guarantee farogcertain non-interedbearing transaction accounts, including those of
consumers and businesses, were insured by the ICand above the customary $250,000 limit throbghember 31, 2012, the expiration
date of the program. The expiration of this prog@ld cause depositors of the Banks to withdrapodies in excess of FDIC-insured levels.
The withdrawal of these deposits could negativelgact the Banks' liquidity. Furthermore, the withdal of these deposits could negatively
impact the Banks' cost of funds by potentially @dg their levels of core deposits and increasivgrtneed to rely on wholesale funding
sources, which typically represent higher cost fund
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We rely on our management, and the loss of one arenof those managers may harm our business.

Our success has been and will be greatly influebgsaur continuing ability to retain the servicdsoar existing senior management
and, if we expand, to attract and retain additi@nallified senior and middle management. The unetepdoss of key management personnel
or the inability to recruit and retain qualifiedrpennel in the future could have an adverse effeaiur business and financial results. In
addition, our failure to develop and/or maintainedfiective succession plan will impede our abitiyquickly and effectively react to
unexpected loss of key management and in turn raag hn adverse effect on our business.

Interest rate shifts may reduce net interest incoared otherwise negatively impact our financial catidn and results of operation:

Shifts in short-term interest rates may reducdntetest income, which is the principal compondniwr earnings. Net interest income
is the difference between the amounts receivedshynuour interesiarning assets and the interest paid by us omeenestbearing liabilities.
In certain scenarios, when interest rates riserdtesof interest we pay on our liabilities mayerimore quickly than the rate of interest that we
receive on our interesbearing assets, which could cause our profits toedese. Currently, because of the continuing pexfddw interest
rates, we have structured our balance sheet sthihaiterest we receive on our interesirning assets will increase more quickly than the
interest we pay on our interesiearing liabilities. However, the structure of ®matance sheet and resultant sensitivity to intesget in various
scenarios may change in the future.

Additionally, interest rate increases often resularger payment requirements for our borrowetsiclvincreases the potential for
default. At the same time, the marketability of eriging collateral may be adversely affected by eeduced demand resulting from higher
interest rates. In a declining interest rate emvitent, there may be an increase in prepaymentsriairc loans as borrowers refinance at lower
rates.

Changes in interest rates also can affect the \adli@ans. An increase in interest rates that esblgraffects the ability of borrowers to
pay the principal or interest on loans may leadrtancrease in nonperforming assets and a reduatimtome recognized, which could have a
material adverse effect on our results of operatamd cash flows. Further, when we place a loamomiaccrual status, we reverse any accruec
but unpaid interest receivable, which decreasesant income. Subsequently, we continue to hawstte fund the loan, which is reflected as
interest expense, without any interest income feedthe associated funding expense. Thus, anaser@ the amount of nonperforming assets
would have an adverse impact on net interest income

Rising interest rates may also result in a dedlinealue of our fixed-rate debt securities. Theaatized losses resulting from holding
these securities would be recognized in other cehmarsive income and reduce total stockholderstyedtidebt securities in an unrealized I
position are sold, such losses become realizeavilheduce our regulatory capital ratios.

If short-term interest rates remain at their histty low levels for a prolonged period, and assugrionger term interest rates fall
further, we could experience net interest margmm@aession if our intereséarning assets reprice downward while our inteteesaring liability
rates fail to decline in tandem. This may have ¢en adverse effect on our net interest incon @ur results of operations.

We could recognize losses on securities held in securities portfolio, particularly if interest rags increase or economic and
market conditions deteriorate.

As of December 31, 2012 , the fair value of ousiies portfolio was approximately $200.6 milliofractors beyond our control can
significantly influence the fair value of securgtia our portfolio and can cause potential advehsanges to the fair value of these securities
example, fixed-rate securities acquired by us areetally subject to decreases in market value viriterest rates rise. Additional factors
include, but are not limited to, rating agency dgvaues of the securities, defaults by the issu@rdividual mortgagors with respect to the
underlying securities, and continued instabilitytie credit markets. Any of the foregoing factoosid cause an other-than-temporary
impairment in future periods and result in realifesbes. The process for determining whether impeit is other-than-temporary usually
requires difficult, subjective judgments about thieire financial performance of the issuer and @wilateral underlying the security in order to
assess the probability of receiving all contracpraicipal and interest payments on the securigcaBise of changing economic and market
conditions affecting interest rates, the financi@hdition of issuers of the securities and thegrerénce of the underlying collateral, we may
recognize realized and/or unrealized losses irrdéyperiods, which could have an adverse effectusrfinancial condition and results of
operations.
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The Company is a bank holding company and its sas®f funds necessary to meet its obligations aratéd.

The Company is a bank holding company, and itsaifmers are primarily conducted by the Banks, whicdh subject to significant
federal and state regulation. Cash available toddagends to our stockholders, pay our obligatiand meet our debt service requirements is
derived primarily from our existing cash flow soes¢ our third party line of credit, dividends reeal from the Banks, or a combination
thereof. Future dividend payments by the Banksstwill require generation of future earnings by Banks and are subject to certain
regulatory guidelines. If the Banks are unableayp gividends to us, we may not have the resounceagh flow to pay or meet all of our
obligations.

Competition from other financial institutions coul@dversely affect our profitability.

We encounter heavy competition in attracting conuiaétoan, equipment finance and deposit cliente@lb as trust and investment
clients. We believe the principal factors thatased to attract core deposit accounts and thamglissh one financial institution from another
include valueadded relationships, rates of return, types of @ty service fees, convenience of office locatems hours and quality of
service to the depositors. We believe the primacydrs in competing for commercial loans are vaadeled relationships, interest rates, loan
fee charges, loan structure and timeliness andtgudlservice to the borrower.

Our competition includes banks, savings institigianortgage banking companies, credit unions, iea@mpanies, equipment
finance companies, mutual funds, insurance compahiekerage firms and investment banking firms.al¢e compete with regional and
national financial institutions that have a substpresence in our market areas, many of whicle fimeater liquidity, higher lending limits,
greater access to capital, more established meg&egnition and more resources and collective égpee than us. In addition, some larger
financial institutions that have not historicallyrapeted with us directly have substantial exceggdity and have sought, and may continue to
seek, smaller lending relationships in our targetkats. Furthermore, tax-exempt credit unions dparamost of our market areas and
aggressively price their products and servicesl&wge portion of the market. Our profitability depls, in part, upon our ability to successfully
maintain and increase market share.

We may be adversely affected by the soundnesshafrdinancial institutions.

Financial services institutions are interrelate@d assult of trading, clearing, counterparty, dvestrelationships. We have exposure to
many different industries and counterparties andimely execute transactions with counterpartieh@financial services industry, including
commercial banks, brokers and dealers, investreamkd) and other institutional clients. Many of gnémnsactions expose us to credit risk in
the event of a default by a counterparty or clidmy such losses could have a material adversetedfeour financial condition and results of
operations.

Our framework for managing risks may not be effeati in mitigating risk and loss to us.

Our risk management framework seeks to mitigatearsl loss to us. We have established processgsraceldures intended to
identify, measure, monitor, report and analyzetyipes of risk to which we are subject, includirguidity risk, credit risk, market risk, interest
rate risk, operational risk, compensation riskaleand compliance risk, and reputational risk, agnothers. However, as with any risk
management framework, there are inherent limitattonour risk management strategies as there niaty exdevelop in the future, risks that
we have not appropriately anticipated or identifi@dr ability to successfully identify and managks facing us is an important factor that car
significantly impact our results. If our risk mammgent framework proves ineffective, we could suffeexpected losses and could be mate
adversely affected.

We are subject to certain operational risks, inciad, but not limited to, customer or employee fraadd data processing system
failures and errors.

Employee errors and employee and customer miscoedutd subject us to financial losses or regulaganctions and seriously harm
our reputation. Misconduct by our employees contdiude hiding unauthorized activities from us, ioger or unauthorized activities on bet
of our customers or improper use of confidentiédimation. It is not always possible to prevent &ype errors and misconduct, and the
precautions we take to prevent and detect thigigcthay not be effective in all cases. Employemer or misconduct could also subject us to
financial claims for negligence.

We maintain a system of internal controls and iasoe coverage to mitigate against operational rinkfuding data processing
system failures and errors and customer or emplivged. If our internal controls fail to preventaetect an occurrence, or if any resulting los
is not insured or exceeds applicable insurancedijrticould have a material adverse effect onbmsiness, financial condition and results of
operations.
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If we are unable to keep pace with technologicavadces in our industry, our ability to attract angtain clients could be adversely
affected.

The banking industry is constantly subject to tedbgical changes with frequent introductions of rteashnologydriven products an
services. In addition to better serving clients, ¢ffective use of technology increases our efficjeand enables us to reduce costs. Our future
success will depend in part on our ability to addrihe needs of our clients by using technologydwide products and services that will
satisfy client demands for convenience as wellreate additional efficiencies in our operationsiinber of our competitors have substant
greater resources to invest in technological impnoents, as well as significant economies of sddlere can be no assurance that we will be
able to implement and offer new technolegdyiven products and services to our clients. Iffaieto do so, our ability to attract and retain
clients may be adversely affected.

A breach in security of our systems or our thirdarty service providers' communications and inforti@n technologies, including
with respect to our internet banking activities, @l have a material adverse effect on our business.

We rely heavily on communications and informatieohinology to conduct our business and internetibgrdctivities. Any failure or
interruption due to a breach in security, deniade@rfvice attack, virus, worm, “phishing” schemetirer disruptive activity by hackers could
result in failures or disruptions in our generalder, deposit, loan, investment management, eldctbanking and other systems or those o
internet banking customers. In addition, advannemputer capabilities or other developments coesdilt in a breach of our systems
designed to protect client data. We have policies@ocedures designed to prevent or limit thecef such a failure or interruption due to a
security breach of our information systems; howethesre can be no assurance that any such evdhiowoccur or, if they do, that they will
be adequately addressed. The occurrence of amydsgjlinterruptions or security breaches of owwrinternet banking clients' information
systems could damage our reputation, result issdd clients, subject us to additional regulatasutiny, or expose us to litigation and
possible financial liability which could have anvagse effect on our operating results and finareoaldition. Failure in any of these situations
subjects us to risks that may vary in size andescop

In addition, we rely on thireparty service providers for a substantial portibowr communications, information, operating and
financial control systems technology. While we hagkected these thirgparty vendors carefully, we do not control theiti@es. If any of these
third-party service providers experience financial, openal or technological difficulties, security bodees, or if there is any disruption in our
relationships with them, we may be required to te@dternative sources for these services. Thardeano assurance that we could negotiate
terms as favorable to us or obtain services witfilar functionality as we currently have withouetexpenditure of substantial resources. Any
of these circumstances could have a material ag\effect on our business.

Our business continuity plans could prove to be deuate, resulting in a material interruption in adisruption to, our business ar
a negative impact on our results of operations.

We rely heavily on communications and informatigatems to conduct our business, and our operati@dependent on our ability
to protect our systems against damage from fireigpdoss or telecommunication failure. The compsieatems and network infrastructure we
use could be vulnerable to unforeseen problemssé heoblems may arise in both our internally dgwetbsystems and the systems of our
third—party service providers. Any failure or interruptiof these systems, whether due to severe weaideiral disasters, acts of war or
terrorism, criminal activity or other factors, cduksult in failures or disruptions in general ledgleposit, loan, client relationship manager
and other systems. While we have a business catytiplan and other policies and procedures desigoguevent or limit the effect of a failu
interruption or security breach of our informat®ystems, there can be no assurance that any slwkdaor interruptions will not occur or, if
they do occur, that they will be adequately addrés$he occurrence of any failures or interruptiohsur information systems could damage
our reputation, result in a loss of clients, subjexto additional regulatory scrutiny, or exposeaucivil litigation and possible financial
liability, any of which could have a material adseeffect on our results of operations.

Our trust and investment services operations maynegatively impacted by changes in economic and keaiconditions.

Our trust and investment services operations mayeatively impacted by changes in general econenniditions and the conditiol
in the financial and securities markets, including values of assets held under management. Owagaarent contracts generally provide for
fees payable for services based on the market wdlassets under management. Because most of otracts provide for a fee based on
market values of securities, fluctuations in se@siprices will have an adverse effect on ourltesaf operations from this business. If the
financial and securities markets were to experience

24




Table of Contents

significant decline, the values of the assetswatanage generally would decline and result iareesponding decline in the performance of
our customers' portfolios. Market declines and ctidas in the value of our customers' trust an@é#tment services accounts could result in u
losing trust and investment services customerfydiy those who are also banking customers.

We are subject to claims and litigation pertainirig our fiduciary responsibilities.

Some of the services we provide, such as trustrargdtment services, require us to act as fiduesaior our customers and others.
From time to time, third parties make claims aricttkegal action against us pertaining to the peréorce of our fiduciary responsibilities. If
fiduciary investment decisions are not appropnjatiElcumented to justify action taken or tradespd@eed incorrectly, among other possible
claims, and if these claims and legal actions ateesolved in a manner favorable to us, we mag¥p@sed to significant financial liability
and/or our reputation could be damaged. Eithenedé results may adversely impact demand for aguats and services or otherwise have &
harmful effect on our business and, in turn, onfomancial condition and results of operations.

Negative publicity could damage our reputation aadversely impact our business and financial results

Reputation risk, or the risk to our earnings anpiteddue to negative publicity, is inherent in dwsiness. Negative publicity can
result from our actual or alleged conduct in a nandf activities, including lending practices, corite governance, and actions taken by
government regulators and community organizatiomme$ponse to those activities. Negative publicity adversely affect our ability to keep
and attract customers, and can expose us to igpatilin and regulatory action, all of which coulaMe a material adverse effect on our busir
financial condition and results of operations.

Potential acquisitions may disrupt our business adillite stockholder value

While we remain committed to organic growth, weoaisay consider acquisition opportunities involvo@mmplementary financial
service organizations if the right situation weseatise. Various risks commonly associated withugitions, include, among other things:

» Potential exposure to unknown or contingent ligibsi of the target compai

» Exposure to potential asset quality issues ofdhget compan

» Potential disruption to our busine

« Potential diversion of our management's time atehtion

* Possible loss of key employees and customers datiget compan

» Difficulty in estimating the value of the targetrnpany

» Potential changes in banking or tax laws or reguiatthat may affect the target compi

Acquisitions may involve the payment of a premiueobook and market values, and, therefore, sofnéati of our tangible book
value and net income per common share may ocaorinection with any future transaction. Furtherméa#ure to realize the expected
revenue increases, cost savings, increases inaaagror product presence, and/or other projecte@fits from an acquisition could have a
material adverse effect on our business, finargabition and results of operations.

Risks Related to Investing in Our Common Stc
Our stock is thinly traded and our stock price célactuate.

Low volume of trading activity and volatility in éhprice of our common stock and the NASDAQ Globalrkét, where our common
stock is listed, may make it difficult for our skapolders to sell common stock when desired and@pthey find attractive. Our stock price
can fluctuate significantly in response to a varigftfactors including, among other things:

* actual or anticipated variations in our quartedguits of operation

* recommendations by securities anal

» operating and stock price performance of other amigs that investors deem comparable t

*  news reports relating to trends, concerns ahdrassues in the financial services industry,udiig the failures of other
financial institutions in the current economic ddwm;

» perceptions in the marketplace regarding us ocomrpetitors and other financial services compa

* new technology used, or services offered, by coitgpst anc
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» changes in government regulatic

General market fluctuations, industry factors aadegal economic and political conditions and evenish as economic slowdowns
recessions, interest rate changes or credit leasl$r could also cause our stock price to decregsedless of our operating results,

To maintain adequate capital levels, we may be rieggl to raise additional capital in the future, buhat capital may not be
available when it is needed and could be dilutieedur existing stockholders.

We are required by regulatory authorities to mamgalequate levels of capital to support our opeanat In order to ensure our ability
to support the operations of the Banks we may tedchit or terminate cash dividends that can bigl pa our stockholders. In addition, we n
need to raise capital in the future. Our abilitydése capital, if needed, will depend in part an financial performance and conditions in the
capital markets at that time, and accordingly, wenot guarantee our ability to raise capital omseacceptable to us. In addition, if we decide
to raise equity capital in the future, the inter@sbur stockholders could be diluted. Any issuaoteommon stock at prices below tangible
book value would dilute the ownership of our cutrgtieckholders. In addition, the market price of common stock could decrease as a resu
of the sale of a large number of shares or simsaurities, or the perception that such sales aoeddr. If we cannot raise capital when nee:
our ability to serve as a source of strength toBhaeks, pay dividends, maintain adequate capit@l$eand liquidity, or further expand our
operations could be materially impaired.

If equity research analysts publish research or mets about our business with unfavorable commentanydowngrade our commo
stock, the price and trading volume of our commaeek could decline

The trading market for our common stock could eciéd by whether equity research analysts pubdisearch or reports about us
and our business and what is included in such relsea reports. If equity analysts publish reseaggorts about us containing unfavorable
commentary, downgrade our stock or cease publisteipgrts about our business, the price of our stockkd decline If any analyst electing to
cover us downgrades our stock, our stock price evbkiély decline rapidly. If any analyst electimyd¢over us ceases coverage of us, we coulc
lose visibility in the market, which in turn coutduse our common stock price or trading volumeetide and our common stock to be less
liquid.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None

Item 2. Properties

The following table provides certain summary infation with respect to the principal properties imietr we conduct our operations,
all of which were leased, as of December 31, 2012 :

Expiration
Location Function Date
401 Charmany Drive, Madison, WI Full service banking location of FBB and officekBFS 2028
18500 W. Corporate Drive, Brookfield, WI Full service banking location of FBB - Milwaukee 2020
3913 West Prospect Avenue, Appleton, W Loan production office of FBB 2017
230 Ohio Street, Oshkosh, WI Loan production office of FBB 2018
300 N. Broadway, Green Bay, WI Loan production office of FBB 2014

FBB also conducts trust and investment business &dimited purpose branch located at 3500 Unitieisivenue, Madison,
Wisconsin. For the purpose of generating businessldpment opportunities in asset-based lendingegngpment financing, office space is
also leased in the following metropolitan areasadiapolis, Minnesota; Cleveland, Ohio; St. Louissdduri; Detroit, Michigan; Denver,
Colorado; Chicago, lllinois; and Kansas City, Kagsader shorter-term lease agreements, which dbgnkesae terms of less than one year.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We believe that no litigation is threatened or pegdn which we face potential loss or exposurechitdould materially affect our
consolidated financial position, consolidated ressaf operations or cash flows. Since our subdehasct as depositories of funds, lenders and
trust agents, they are occasionally named as dafésch lawsuits involving claims to the ownersbfgunds in particular accounts. This and
other litigation is incidental to our business.
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ltem 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.

PART II.

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Relaed Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edty Securities
Holders, Price Range and Dividends Declared

The common stock of the Corporation is traded @NASDAQ Global Market under the symbol “FBIZ." AsFebruary 21, 2013,
there were 410 registered shareholders of recorBB61S common stock. Certain of the Corporationareb are held in “nominee” or “street”
name and the number of beneficial owners of suaheshis approximately 525.

The following table presents the range of high lamdclosing sale prices of our common stock forreqaarter within the two most
recent fiscal years, according to information pded by NASDAQ, and cash dividends declared in saehs.

High Low Dividend Declared

2012

1st Quarter $ 19.0C $ 1481 % 0.07
2nd Quarter 23.5( 16.2( 0.07
3rd Quarter 24.5] 20.0¢ 0.07
4th Quarter 26.3( 22.3¢t 0.07
2011

1st Quarter $ 135 $ 11.1¢  $ 0.07
2nd Quarter 15.0C 11.4¢ 0.07
3rd Quarter 17.2: 13.32 0.07
4th Quarter 17.2¢ 13.7¢ 0.07
Dividend Policy

It has been our practice to pay a dividend to comsiwmreholders. Dividends historically have bead pathe month following the
end of each calendar quarter. However, the timmjamount of future dividends are at the discretibthe Board of Directors of the
Corporation (the "Board") and will depend upon tasolidated earnings, financial condition, ligtydand capital requirements of the
Corporation and its subsidiaries, the amount off clgidends paid to the Corporation by its subsid& applicable government regulations an
policies, supervisory actions and other factorssared relevant by the Boalefer to Item t Business—Supervision and Requlatidar
additional discussion regarding the limitationsdiridends and other capital contributions by th@lBato the Corporation. The Board
anticipates it will continue to declare dividendsagppropriate based on the above factors.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table summarizes certain informatwith respect to compensation plans under whichtgaeicurities of the
Corporation are authorized for issuance as of Déeerd1, 2012 .

Number of securities
remaining available for
future issuance under
equity compensation
plans (excluding
securities reflected in
column (a))

Number of securities to

be issued upon exercise

of outstanding options,
warrants and rights

@ (b) ()
Equity compensation plans approved by security drsld 124,03: $ 22.4: 218,11!
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechotglers — — —

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding options,

Plan category warrants and rights

Issuer Purchases of Securities

The following tables sets forth information abdu Corporation's purchases of its common stockdutie three months ended
December 31, 2012 .

Total Number of
Shares Purchasec

Approximate
Dollar Value of

Total Number of
Shares Purchaset(

Period (1)

as Part of
Publicly
Average Price

Paid Per Share or Programs

Announced Plans

Shares that May
Yet Be Purchased
Under the Plans
or Programs

October 1, 2012 - October 31, 2012
November 1, 2012 - November 30, 2012

5,05¢

— % ] —
23.1i —

$ —

December 1, 2012 - December 31, 2012

(1) The shares in this column represent: (i) tA24 shares that were surrendered to us to satisfyne tax withholding obligations in
connection with the vesting of restricted sharest @) 928 shares used to exercise stock optisrsast of a cashless exercise.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data
Five Year Comparison of Selected Consolidated Finaml Data

As of and for the Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(Dollars In Thousands, Except Share Data)

INCOME STATEMENT:

Interest income $ 54,76¢  $ 56,217 % 56,62¢ % 56,35¢ $ 59,77
Interest expense 16,88¢ 20,75¢ 24,67¢ 28,32: 33,51t
Net interest income 37,88: 35,46 31,95 28,03 26,25¢
Provision for loan and lease losses 4,24: 4,25( 7,044 8,22¢ 4,29¢
Non-interest income 8,69¢ 7,06( 6,747 6,45( 5,10¢
Non-interest expense 28,07¢ 25,97° 25,46¢ 23,81( 20,84:
Goodwill impairment — — 2,68¢ — —
Loss on foreclosed properties 58t 42( 20€ 691 1,04:
Income tax expense 4,75( 3,44¢ 2,34¢ 717 2,05¢
Net income $ 892¢ $ 8,42t % 9241 $ 1,041 % 3,12¢
Yield on earning assets 4.86% 5.22% 5.3% 5.57% 6.3%%
Cost of funds 1.7%% 2.2(% 2.51% 3.02% 3.8%%
Interest rate spread 3.11% 3.02% 2.8% 2.5% 2.5(%
Net interest margin 3.3t% 3.2%% 3.0&% 2.71% 2.81%
Return on average assets 0.7%% 0.7%% 0.0% 0.1(% 0.32%
Return on average equity 12.6%% 14.0% 1.67% 1.9(% 6.11%
ENDING BALANCE SHEET:

Total assets $ 1,226,100 $ 1,177,160  $ 1,107,05 $ 1,117,430 $ 1,010,78:
Securities 200,59¢ 170,38t 153,37¢ 122,28t 109,12
Loans and leases, net 896,56( 836,68 860,93! 839,80° 840,54t
Deposits 1,092,25. 1,051,31; 988,29¢ 984,37: 838,87:
FHLB advances and other borrowings 12,40¢ 40,29: 41,50« 57,51¢ 94,52¢
Junior subordinated notes 10,31¢ 10,31¢ 10,31¢ 10,31¢ 10,31¢
Stockholders’ equity 99,53¢ 64,21« 55,33t 54,39: 53,00¢

FINANCIAL CONDITION ANALYSIS:
Allowance for loan and lease losses to year-

end loans 1.6% 1.6€% 1.85% 1.65% 1.3%
Allowance to non-accrual loans and leases 109.0%% 65.03% 42.3% 50.7€% 72.7%
Net charge-offs to average loans and leases 0.35% 0.74% 0.57% 0.6% 0.28%
Non-accrual loans to gross loans and lease 1.55% 2.56% 4.31% 3.26% 1.91%
Average equity to average assets 5.9% 5.32% 5.11% 5.1% 5.21%
STOCKHOLDERS’ DATA:

Basic earnings per common shére $ 33C % 32: % 037 $ 0.41 1.2¢
Diluted earnings per common shéte 3.2¢ 3.2¢ 0.37 0.41 1.2¢
Book value per share at end of period 25.41 24.4¢ 21.3C 21.42 20.8:
Tangible book value per share at end of pe 25.41 24.4¢ 21.2¢ 20.3¢ 19.7¢
Dividend declared per share 0.2¢ 0.2¢ 0.2¢ 0.2¢ 0.2¢
Dividend payout ratio 8.5(% 8.67% 75.6¢% 68.29% 22.5¢%
Shares outstanding 3,916,66 2,625,56 2,597,82 2,539,30! 2,545,541

(1) Basic and diluted earnings per share reflaaotiags per common share as calculated under thelags method due to the existence of particigatin
securities.
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Item 7. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial @dition and Results of Operations
Forward-Looking Statements

When used in this report, and in any oral statemmaratde with the approval of an authorized execuffieer, the words or phrases
“may,” “could,” “should,” “hope,” “might,” “believe” “expect,” “plan,” “assume,” “intend,” “estimate’anticipate,” “project,” “likely,” or
similar expressions are intended to identify “fordd4ooking statements.” Such statements are sutjetks and uncertainties, including,
without limitation, changes in economic conditionghe market area of FBB or FBB — Milwaukee, chesin policies by regulatory agencies,
fluctuation in interest rates, demand for loanthaenmarket area of FBB or FBB — Milwaukee, borrosvéefaulting in the repayment of loans
and competition. These risks could cause actualteet® differ materially from what the Corporatibas anticipated or projected. These risk
factors and uncertainties should be carefully aersid by our shareholders and potential invesBmsltem 1A—Risk Factorgor discussion
relating to risk factors impacting the Corporatibnzestors should not place undue reliance on anlp forward-looking statements, which
speak only as of the date made. The factors destuilithin this Form 10-K could affect the finangmrformance of FBFS and could cause
actual results for future periods to differ matlyifrom any opinions or statements expressed vé#pect to future periods.

” o LT ” w ” ” w ”

Where any such forward-looking statement includetatement of the assumptions or bases underlyicly forward-looking
statement, FBFS cautions that, while its manageieigves such assumptions or bases are reasamabblre made in good faith, assumed
facts or bases can vary from actual results, aadliffierences between assumed facts or bases aral gesults can be material, depending on
the circumstances. Where, in any forward-lookirageshent, an expectation or belief is expressed fadure results, such expectation or belief
is expressed in good faith and believed to hawaaanable basis, but there can be no assurandbétetpected result will be achieved or
accomplished.

FBFS does not intend to, and specifically disclagmg obligation to, update any forward-looking staénts.

The following discussion and analysis is intendea@ aeview of significant events and factors affegthe financial condition and
results of operations of FBFS for the periods iatkd. The discussion should be read in conjunetitinthe Consolidated Financial Stateme
and the Notes thereto and the Selected Consolidteahcial Data presented in this Form 10-K.

Overview

Our principal business is conducted by FBB and FBBilwaukee and certain subsidiaries of FBB andststs of a full range of
commercial banking products and services tailooemi¢et the financial service needs of small- andiume-size businesses, business owners,
executives, professionals, and high net worth iddials. Products include commercial lending, absstd lending, equipment financing,
factoring, trust and investment services, treasupagement services and a broad range of depoditigts. Our operating philosophy is
focused on local decision making and local cliemviee from each of our primary banking locatiom$viadison, Brookfield and Appleton,
Wisconsin combined with the efficiency of centratizadministrative functions such as support fasrimfation technology, loan support and
deposit support, finance and accounting and humsources. We believe we have a unique niche bsshaking model and we consistently
operate within this niche. This allows us to prevalgreat deal of expertise in offering financ@ltons to our clients with an experienced ¢
who serve our clients on an ongoing basis.

Our profitability depends on our ability to execotar strategic plan. Our 2012 strategic plan emgbhdsmproving the overall credit
quality of our loan and lease portfolio, generatimganic growth in our loan and lease portfoliosréasing our market share of in-market core
deposits and increasing fee income. We have adhiswecess on all points of this strategic plan dstipg record core earnings, experiencing
substantial growth across each of our primaryfieeme sources and improving asset quality, whitesiasing the size of our overall loan and
lease portfolio. We expect to continue our focusnaproving our asset quality throughout 2013. Weaso planning to grow our loan and
lease portfolio more significantly than we havéhia past few years. We believe that we can achiesaningful growth as the economy
continues to show signs of gradual improvementad result of the significant disruption in oumgeetitors' businesses throughout our
Wisconsin market areas. This change is providingruspportunity to add new business developmeitesf, obtain new commercial lending
relationships, and expand banking relationshiph witr existing clients to continue to increaseioumarket deposits and our fee income. We
continue to believe there is significant opportufidr this type of organic growth in our commerdiaisiness lines, particularly within our
Milwaukee and Northeast Wisconsin markets.

30




Table of Contents

Operational highlights

»  The successful public offering of $29.1 milliondammon equity closed in December 2012 at $23.0GIp&re, nearly 40% higher tt
2011's closing stock price of $16.50 per share.

* Net income for thdfull year ended December 31, 2012 was a record®8li®n , 5.9% higher than the previous record8f4 million
earned for the full year ended December 31, 204t income for the full year 2011 had also includeslibstantial one-time tax
benefit relating to a change in Wisconsin tax law.

* Diluted earnings per common share were $3.2¢hifull year 2012 compared to $3.23 earned irptiwr year. Diluted earnings per
share for the full year 2011 had also includedtzstantial one-time tax benefit relating to a chaimgé/isconsin tax law.

» Return on average assets and return on avecgify éor the full year ended December 31, 2012en@i75% and 12.65% respectively,
compared to 0.75% and 14.03% in 2011 . Returnthéfull year 2011 benefited from the substantie-time tax benefit relating to a
change in Wisconsin tax law.

e Top line revenue, which consists of net intenesbme and non-interest income, of $46.6 millionthe full year 2012 grew 9.5%
compared to $42.5 million for the full year 2011 .

» Core earnings, defined as pre-tax income exetuthie effects of provision for loan and leasedsssther identifiable costs of credit
and other discrete items unrelated to the Compaoy&sbusiness activities, grew 11.8% to recoré earnings of $18.5 milliofor the
full year of 2012 as compared to $16.5 million hoe full year of 2011 .

* Net interest margin we3.36% for the full year of 2012 , improving sevesis points compared to the full year of 2011
e Our total assets increased to $1.226 billionfd3ecember 31, 2012 , a 4.16% an increase , frorh7¥ billion at December 31, 2011

* Netloans and leasesDecember 31, 2012 increased $59.9 million , or 7.284896.6 million from $836.7 million as of
December 31, 2011 .

e Non-performing assets of $15.7 million at December281,2 decreased by $8.3 million , or 35% , from é&eber 31, 2011 . Non-
performing assets now measure 1.28% of total gssmigpared to 2.04% at December 31, 2011 .

* Net charg-offs as a percentage of average loans was 0.3b%dqear ended December 31, 2012 compared t&d0f@dthe year
ended December 31, 2011 .

* Average in-market deposits of $649.0 million fioe full year 2012 grew 25.0% , increasing to &4 & total deposits, compared to
$519.3 million , or 51.6% of total deposits, foettull year of 2011 .

Results of Operations
Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

Top Line Revenue. Top line revenue is comprised of net interesbime and non-interest income. This measuremensgds al
commonly referred to as operating revenue. In 20dp line revenue grew by approximately 9.5% fithi prior year. The components of top
line revenue were as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 Change
(Dollars In Thousands)
Net interest income $ 37,88, $ 35,46 6.8%
Non-interest income 8,69¢ 7,06( 23.2
Total top line revenue $ 46,58( $ 42,52 9.F

Core Earnings.Core earnings is comprised of our pre-tax inconus plovision for loan and leases losses, othettifirie costs of
credit and other discrete items that are unrelatedir core business activities. In our judgmemg, gresentation of core earnings allows our
management team, investors and analysts to betessthe growth of our core business by remohiagalatility that is associated with costs
of credit and other discrete items that are unedl&d our core business and facilitates a morarsiiered comparison of core growth to our
benchmark peers. Core earnings is a non-GAAP finhmeasure that does not represent and shouldenobdnsidered as an alternative to net
income derived in accordance with U.S. generalbepted accounting principles ("GAAP").
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Our core earnings metric has improved by 11.8% wdwenparing the year ended December 31, 2012 tpaheended December 31, 2011 .

For the Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 Change
(Dollars in Thousands)

Net income before taxes $ 13,67¢ $ 11,87 15.2 %
Add back:

Provision for loan and lease losses 4,24: 4,25( (0.2

Net loss on foreclosed properties 58t 42C 39.2

Gain on sale of securities — — —
Core earnings $ 18,50 $ 16,54« 11.¢

Return on Average Assets and Return on Average Eqtyi. Return on average assets remained flat for thegrdad December 31,
2012 at 0.75% when compared to the year ended Dmedi, 2011 . Despite earnings growth, we expeeiéd.78% growth in average assets
which, along with the 2011 substantial one-timeliarefit, caused our return on average assetsnmaimelat. We are pleased with the asset
growth in 2012 given current economic conditions.

Return on average equity for the year ended DeceB81he2012 was 12.65% compared to 14.03% for tlae gpded December 31,
2011 . Although net income improved year over yegtyrn on average equity decreased in 2012 priynasia result of the effects of the
common stock offering that occurred in December220¥e successfully raised approximately $29.1 onillihrough the issuance of 1,265,000
shares of common stock at a price of $23.00 peesfiie net proceeds of the offering, approxima®@y.1 million, were immediately used to
repay a portion of subordinated debt. We view retur equity as an important measurement for mangagrofitability, and continue to focus
on improving our return to our shareholders by echeg the overall profitability of our client relahships, controlling our expenses and
minimizing our costs of credit.

Net Interest Income.Net interest income is dependent on the amourasdfyields on interest-earning assets as comparte t
amounts of and rates on interest-bearing liakslitiéet interest income is sensitive to changesarket rates of interest and the asset/liability
management strategies used by management in résgdadsuch changes.
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The table below provides information with respectl) the change in interest income attributablehanges in rate (changes in rate
multiplied by prior volume), (2) the change in irgst income attributable to changes in volume (ghann volume multiplied by prior rate) a
(3) the change in rate/volume (changes in rateiptieitl by changes in volume) for the year endeddbager 31, 2012 compared to the year
ended December 31, 2011 and for the year endednidere31, 2011 compared to the year ended Decemb@030 .

Rate/Volume Analysis

Increase (Decrease) for the Year Ended December 31,

2012 compared to 2011 2011 compared to 2010
Rate/ Rate/
Rate Volume Volume Net Rate Volume Volume Net

(In Thousands)
Interest-Earning Assets
Commercial real estate and other

mortgage loans $ (165 $ (1,367 $ 7 $ (1,52 $ (87¢) $ 59 $ (15 $ (299
Commercial and industrial loans (93%) 2,00z (111 957 63¢ (127 4 51¢
Direct financing leases (89 (67) 5 (157 (53 (410 15 (44%)
Other loans (23 (69) 3 (89) 101 57 10 16¢

Total loans and leases receivable  (1,217) 501 (96) (807) (189 12z 6 (6C)
Mortgage-related securities (1,240 21C (58) (98¢) (979 787 (270) (357)
Investment securities (4) 41¢ (17%) 23¢ 2 — 8 1C
Federal Home Loan Bank Stock 4 (@D} (D) 2 2 — — 2
Short-term investments 26 63 14 102 Q) 3 — (4)

Total net change in income on

interest-earning assets (2,326) 1,191 (31€) (1,457 (1,160 907 (15€) (409)
Interest-Bearing Liabilities
Interest-bearing transaction account: — 24 — 24 (54) (172 36 (290)
Money market (672) 93t (217 52 (250 457 (42) 16€
Certificates of deposit (16%) 29 4 (140 (559 (92 30 (615)
Brokered certificates of deposit (2,109) (2,289 37z (4,025 (3,149 19t (39 (2,999

Total deposits (2,94%) (1,309 157 (4,08¢) (4,00€) 38¢ (14) (3,637)
FHLB advances (28) 80 (58) (6) 13€ (610) (129 (603)
Other borrowings 36¢€ (12¢€) (19 221 167 13¢ 11 31¢€
Junior subordinated notes 3 — — 3 — — — —

Total net change in expense on

interest-bearing liabilities (2,609 (1,349 80 (3,87)) (3,709 (84) (132) (3,919

Net change in net interest income$ 27¢  $ 2,53t ¢ (39€) $ 2,42 $ 2,54 % 991 $ (29 $ 35U

The table on the next page shows our average leaimterest, average rates, net interest margintenspread between combined
average rates earned on our interest-earning assesost of interest-bearing liabilities for theripds indicated. The average balances are
derived from average daily balances.
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For the Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Average Average Average
Average yield/ Average yield/ Average yield/
balance Interest cost balance Interest cost balance Interest cost
(Dollars In Thousands)

Interest-Earning Assets
Commercial real estate and

other mortgage loarf$ $ 583,59: $ 31,66 54:% $ 608,66 33,19: 5.45% 598,06 $  33,49( 5.6(%
Commercial and industrial

loans® 245,70t 17,91¢ 7.2% 219,75 16,95¢ 7.72% 221,32 16,44: 7.4%%
Direct financing lease® 15,87: 88¢ 5.5% 16,97+ 1,03¢ 6.12% 23,42¢ 1,487 6.35%
Other loans” 16,89 654 3.87% 18,59 742 3.9%% 16,91 574 3.3%
Total loans and leases
receivable? 862,07: 51,12¢ 5.99% 863,98: 51,93 6.01% 859,73: 51,99: 6.05%
Mortgage-related securiti&€s 171,04 3,16¢ 1.85% 162,81 4,15¢ 2.55% 138,63 4,51% 3.26%
Investment securitie3 17,53 24¢ 1.42% 41C 10 2.36% — — —%
Federal Home Loan Bank
stock 1,531 4 0.2¢% 2,361 2 0.1(% 2,361 — —%
Short-term investments 74,49: 22C 0.3(% 48,39¢ 117 0.2% 49,87¢ 121 0.24%
Total interest-earning assets 1,126,67 54,76¢ 4.86% 1,077,97: 56,217 5.22% 1,050,61 56,62¢ 5.3%
Non-interest-earning assets 56,31 S 51,07¢ - 48,81
Total assets $ 1,182,99 $ 1,129,05. 1,099,42
Interest-Bearing Liabilities -
Interest-bearing transaction

accounts $ 34,18( 94 0.2¢% $ 25,38¢ 70 0.2&% 74,78¢ 26C 0.35%
Money market 395,25¢ 3,02¢ 0.7€¢% 300,65 2,971 0.9% 258,56 2,80¢ 1.08%
Certificates of deposit 82,43( 96¢ 1.17% 80,32t 1,10¢ 1.3¢% 84,82¢ 1,72¢ 2.0%%
Brokered certificates of deposit 400,69 8,941 2.2%% 486,59 12,96¢ 2.66% 480,70 15,95¢ 3.3%
Total interest-bearing deposit 912,56: 13,02¢ 1.45% 892,95 17,11¢ 1.92% 898,891 20,74 2.31%
Federal Home Loan Bank

advances 2,03¢ 3z 1.5% 65€ 38 5.8% 13,41 641 4.7¢%
Other borrowings 39,38 2,71: 6.8%% 41,48¢ 2,491 6.0(% 39,01( 2,17¢ 5.58%
Junior subordinated notes 10,31 1,11¢ 10.81% 10,31 1,112 10.7¢% 10,31¢ 1,112 10.7¢%
Total interestsearing liabilities 964,29 16,88" 1.75% 945,41 20,75¢ 2.2(% 961,62 24,67 2.51%
Demand deposits 137,11 112,89 68,43(
Non-interest-bearing liabilitie: 11,01¢ 10,67: 13,15:
Total liabilities 1,112,43 1,068,99 1,043,21
Stockholders’ equity 70,55; 60,06 56,21
Total liabilities and

stockholders’ equity $ 1,182,99 $ 1,129,05 1,099,42
Net interest income $ 37,88: - 35,46 $ 31,95
Net interest spread - 3.11% - 3.02% 2.820
Net interest-earning assets  $ 162,38( $  132,55¢ 88,98°
Net interest margin 3.36% - 3.2¢0% 3.0%%
Average interest-earning ass

to average interest-bearing

liabilities 116.8% 114.0% 109.2"%
Return on average assets 0.75% 0.75% 0.09%
Return on average equity 12.65% 14.09% 1.67%
Average equity to average
assets 5.9¢% 5.32% 5.11%
Non-interest expense to

average assets 2.42% 2.3% 2.58%

(1) The average balances of loans and leasesimalon-performing loans and leases. Interest incetaged to norperforming loans and leases is recognized wheeatell
(2) Includes amortized cost basis of assets held aaithhle for sale
(3) Yields on tax-exempt municipal obligations am¢ presented on a taquivalent basis in this tak
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Net interest income increased by $2.4 million 6@2% , during the year ended December 31, 2019ared to the same period in
2011 . Our success in growing in-market depositsrabalancing our deposit portfolio in 2012 drouweduction in the overall cost of funds
which offset the effects of declines in the weight&erage yield of the securities portfolio and lsan and lease portfolio.

The yield on average earning assets for the yededeBecember 31, 2012 was 4.86% compared to 5.82%d year ended
December 31, 2011 . The yield on average earnisgtssvas negatively affected by the declining ggerates associated with our investment
portfolio. We have invested in collateralized madg obligations with structured cash flow paymenikte cash flows generated from these
expected prepayments are reinvested in additianigteralized mortgage obligations or tax-exemphiuipal obligations. Given the continued
low interest rate environment, the overall coupomew security purchases has typically been lohem the rates on securities that experienc
prepayments. This has caused the mortgage relegedities investment yield to decline by approxieta0 basis points. The total loans and
leases receivable yield was 5.93% for the yearcidrember 31, 2012 compared to 6.01% for the gieded December 31, 2011 . Lower
average yields on commercial and industrial loar2012 reflected new originations booked at loweldg than exiting relationships.

The overall weighted average rate paid on intdrearing liabilities was 1.75% for the year endedddeber 31, 2012 , a decrease of
45 basis points from 2.20% for the year ended Déegr81, 2011 . The decline in interest expenseiisapily due to lower deposit funding
costs caused by the continued success of the Cgrspaitiative to attract in-market deposits throutgew business relationships and increase
client deposit balances. In-market client depesitsmprised of all transaction accounts, money etaakcounts, and non-brokered certificates
of deposit - grew 18.7% to $717.9 million at DecemBl, 2012 from $604.6 million at December 31,20Correspondingly, the Company
also continued to reduce its overall reliance @hi-cost brokered certificates of deposit by $72ilBon , or 16.2% , lowering balances to
$374.4 million at December 31, 2012 . The declminferest expense is also partially influencedhgyreduction of interest expense on other
borrowings due to the substantial pay-down of sdinated debt from the common stock offering prosdaddecember 2012. Subordinated
debt was reduced from $39.0 million at Decembe2811 to $11.9 million at December 31, 2012 . Tagdown will further reduce our
funding costs in 2013.

Net interest margin increased seven basis poir@s3t%o for the year ended December 31, 2012 fr@®9%8.for the year ended
December 31, 2011 . The improvement in net intaresgin correlates with a nine basis point incréagbhe net interest rate spread coupled
with an increase in the value of the net free fud&rage non-interest-bearing demand depositeasad $24.2 million to $137.1 million for
the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to $irilién for the year ended December 31, 2011 .

Provision for Loan and Lease Lossed he provision for loan and lease losses totaled 8llion and $4.3 milliorfor the years end:e
December 31, 2012 and 2011 , respectively. Ourigimvfor loan and lease losses is dependent ditaqeality and determined based upon
the inherent credit risk and other subjective fexfmursuant to our allowance for loan and lease esthodology, the magnitude of net charge-
offs recorded in the period and the amount of reseestablished for impaired loans that presetateoal shortfall positions. To establish the
appropriate level of the allowance for loan andéelsses, we regularly review our historical chawff migration analysis and an analysis of
the current level and trend of several factors Wabelieve may indicate losses in the four primsagments of our loan and lease portfolio.
These factors include delinquencies, volume, awesie, average risk rating, technical defaultenysloyment rates, geographic
concentrations, industry concentrations, loansleases on internal monitoring reports, experienddé credit granting functions, changes in
underwriting standards, and level of non-perfornasgets and related fair value of underlying cetkdt
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During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2Elfactors influencing the provision for loan dedse losses were the
following:

For the Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011
(In Thousands)

Changes in the provision for loan and lease lossassociated with:

Establishment/modification of specific reservedrapaired loans, net $ 1,901 $ (365)
Subjective factor changes — 62
Charge-offs in excess of specific reserves 2,20¢ 5,02¢
Recoveries (481) (864)
Change in inherent risk of the loan and lease platf 617 392
Total provision for loan and lease losses $ 4.24: $ 4,25(

The establishment/modification of specific resersrsmpaired loans represents new specific reserstblished on impaired loans
where, although collateral shortfalls are presestbelieve that we will be able to recover our gipal and/or it represents the release of
previously established reserves that are no loreggrired. Charge-offs in excess of specific reserepresents an additional provision for loan
and lease losses required to maintain the allowBordean and leases at a level deemed approgrjateanagement. This amount is net of the
release of any specific reserve that may havedjrbaen provided. Charge-offs in excess of speferves can occur in situations where (1)
a loan has previously been partially written dowiit$ estimated fair value and continues to decliPerapid deterioration of a credit requires
an immediate partial or full charge-off, or (3) #ecific reserve was not adequate to cover thaeiatrad the required chargsf. Change in th
inherent risk of the portfolio can be influenceddrgpwth or migration in and out of an impaired ladassification where a specific evaluation
of a particular credit may be required rather ttrenapplication of a general reserve ratio.

Non-Interest Income.Non-interest income, consisting primarily of feesred for trust and investment services, servieeges on
deposits, loan fee income and income from bank-oMife insurance, increased by $1.6 million , or228 , to $8.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2012 , from $7.1 million for the yeaded December 31, 2011 .

Trust and investment services fee income increbgekB895,000 , or 15.6% , to $2.9 million for theayended December 31, 2012 compared t
$2.5 million for the year ended December 31, 20Idust and investment services fee income is drbsethe amount of assets under
management and administration and can be positorahegatively influenced by the timing and magdéwf volatility within the equity
markets.

At December 31, 2012 , our trust assets under neemeagt were $613.5 million , or 15.2% more thantthst assets under
management of $532.6 million at December 31, 204Hile our assets under administration grew appnaxely 18.4% , to $170.7 million at
December 31, 2012 from $129.7 million at Decemtder2®11. The growth in the assets under management anshiathation is primarily dut
to improved market values, establishing new refetidps and the addition of business developmefit Bi2013, we expect to continue to
increase our assets under management, but wexadeotehat assets under management and trust eestinent services fee income will
continue to be affected by market volatility foetforeseeable future.

Service charges on deposits increased by approaiyr®316,000 , or 18.5% , to $2.0 million for theay ended December 31, 2012
from $1.7 million for the year ended December 311 2. The increase in service charges on deposaggdivectly related to continued success
in acquiring new commercial relationships with e&sed deposit transaction volume creating additseraice charge income.

Loan fees increased by approximately $545,00B6@% , to $2.0 million for the year ended Decen81er2012 from $1.5 million
for the year ended December 31, 2011 . The Bangsriznced improved pricing and volumes of lettdrsredit and other administrative loan
fees during the year. In addition, we completedrgd loan syndication during the fourth quarte2@f2 that contributed to the increase in loar
fees.

Other non-interest income increased by $375,00B6®% , to $811,000 for the year ended Decembge?@12 from $436,00fdr the
year endeDecember 31, 2011 . The increase in other incorpeansarily due to an initial fair value recognitioelated to interest rate swaps.
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Non-Interest ExpenseNon-interest expense increased by $2.3 million8.6%6 , to $28.7 million for the year ended Decengie
2012 from $26.4 million for the comparable perid®611 primarily due to increases in compensatelated expenses, marketing expenses,
loss on foreclosed properties, and other expepsesally offset by decreases in FDIC insurancdscasd collateral liquidation costs.

Compensation expense increased by $2.1 milliorl4d2% , to $17.0 million for the year ended Decengi, 2012 from $14.9
million for the year ended December 31, 2011 . iflceease in compensation expense was primarilyppart strategic investments in
additional talent. From December 2011 to Decemb&22he Company expanded its team of Business Dement Officers by nearly 30%, to
44, Further, compensation expense increased daenieal salary merit increases, increased accrestgmted with non-equity incentive
compensation programs, and other ancillary benefits

Marketing expense increased by $230,000 , or 23.t981.2 million for the year ended December 3L, 2from $1.0 million for the
year endedDecember 31, 2011 . The increase in marketing esgpesas a direct result of our efforts to furthguitsdize on market disruption in
Wisconsin, the promotion of additional specialtydang products and the addition of business devednt talent.

During the year ended December 31, 2012 , we rezeda net loss on foreclosed properties of $58b¢@npared to a loss of
$420,000 for the year ended December 31, 201gemeral, we believe that real estate values ofgstgs within our portfolio have stabilized.
However, we recorded impairment adjustments tayei$00,000 for the year ended December 31, 20h2apifiy due to the decline in value on
one particular property we own due to negotiatioite willing buyers. Slightly offsetting the valiah adjustments for foreclosed properties is
the recognition of gains totaling $15,000 on prtipsrthat we have sold to independent third parfisf December 31, 2012 , we believe tha
foreclosed properties are recorded at their estichitir value, less estimated costs to sell. Weaatige in pursuing appropriate foreclosure
actions to further protect our interest in ideetfimpaired loans. We continue to expect an eleMatee| of foreclosed properties owned by us
for the foreseeable future and the ultimate le¥@npairment adjustments or potential future losseslisposals of properties is uncertain.

Other non-interest expense increased by $493,0022.0% , to $2.7 million for the year ended Deben81, 2012 compared to $2.2
million for the same time period of 2011 . Mostatdaly the increase in other non-interest expendeésto real estate costs associated with the
process of exiting certain foreclosed propertiegctvincreased by approximately $269,000, or 84.a#4He year ended December 31, 2012.

FDIC insurance expense decreased by $754,0000.8%43, to $1.7 million for the year ended Decengfer2012 compared to $2.5
million for the year ended December 31, 2011 . &fte April 1, 2011, the FDIC amended the Federgbdsit Insurance Act to, among other
changes, modify the definition of an institutiolsposit insurance assessment base from a depesit-balculation to an average assets less
average tangible equity-based calculation and dhgrtge assessment rate adjustments. Given that Fi3lurance expense is based upon a
formula that incorporates a variety of risk elensantluding the overall risk profile of the institon, a change in any one of these risk elemen
during the comparative reporting periods may cdlisainderlying assessment base rate to fluctuatéhanefore influence the total expense
accrued.

Collateral liquidation costs decreased by $131,08016.7% , to $655,000 for the year ended Dece®be2012 from $786,000 for
the year ended December 31, 2011 . Collateraldafion costs are expenses incurred by us to feiliesolution of impaired commercial
loans. The amount of collateral liquidation costsarded in any particular period are influencedhgytiming and level of effort required for
each individual loan. Our ability to recoup thessts from our clients is uncertain and thereforgemsed as incurred through our consolidatec
results of operations. To the extent we are sutiddssrecouping these expenses from our clietis recovery of expense is shown as a net
reduction to this line item.

Income Taxes.Income tax expense was $4.8 million for the yealeenDecember 31, 2012 compared to $3.4 milliom tHe year
ended December 31, 2011 . The overall increaseiexpense is primarily due to the increased lef/ple-tax income in comparison to the
prior year and the absence of significant disc@tebenefits, including a substantial one-timeliarefit, recorded in the year ended
December 31, 2011 . The effective tax rate foryter ended December 31, 2012 was 34.7% compa231@e6 for the year ended
December 31, 2011 . The impact of discrete iterosrged during the year ended December 31, 201lidedwa net benefit of approximately
5.9%. Discrete items primarily consist of the rekeaf valuation allowance and additional state rgpaecognized as a result of the complete
filings of our state income tax returns. In Juné2GFBB and FBCC entered into a confidential setdet with the Wisconsin Department of
Revenue. This settlement did not result in a ligbihaterially different than that which had beempously accrued. In addition, on June 26,
2011, the State of Wisconsin 2011-2013 Budget Basembly Bill 40, was signed into law. The bilbpided that, starting with the first tax
year beginning after December 31, 2011, and themefafr the next 19 years, a combined group merntizrhas p1-2009
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net business loss carryforwards can, after firstgusuch net business loss carryforwards to offsetwn income for the taxable year and after
using shared losses, use up to five percent gbr#009 net business loss carryforwards to offsetVisconsin income of other group
members on a proportionate basis. The net busiogsss can be used to the extent the income iisudttble to the group’s unitary business. If
loss carryforwards equal to the five-percent thoéleannot be fully used in any tax year, the rewei can be added to the portion that may
offset the Wisconsin income of all other combinedlup members in a subsequent year in the twentyperéod, until those carryforwards are
completely used or expired. We evaluated the piatientilization of the outstanding Wisconsin neeogting losses under the provisions of this
new law and determined that it is more likely timat our net operating losses will be realized. Asslt, in 2011 we released the valuation
allowance previously associated with these netaijrey losses.

Financial Condition
December 31, 2012

General. At December 31, 2012 our total assets were $1.2R6b, an increase of $48.9 million , or 4.16%aqm $1.177 billion at
December 31, 2011 .

Short-term investments.Short-term investments decreased by $49.4 milbope4.0 million at December 31, 2012 from $113.4
million at December 31, 2011 . Our short-term inments primarily consist of interest-bearing detsokeld at the Federal Reserve Bank
("FRB"), commercial paper and brokered certificaideposits purchased from domestic financialtusons. The level of our short-term
investments is influenced by the timing of depgsithering, scheduled maturities of brokered depoiinding of loan and lease growth when
opportunities are presented, and the level of vailable-for-sale securities portfolio. The oveddicline in short-term investments was
primarily due to reducing excess liquidity by aliogy maturing brokered certificates of deposit to afff, increasing the size of our available-
for-sale investment portfolio and supporting thevgth in our loan and lease receivables portfoli@ Vdlue the safety and soundness providec
by the FRB and therefore we incorporate short-tiesrastments in our on-balance sheet liquidity paogrPlease refer taquidity and Capital
Resourcesor further discussion.

Securities.Securities available-for-sale increased by $30I/Eanito $200.6 million at December 31, 2012 frodi7$.4 million at
December 31, 2011 . During this time period, wavested cash flows received from our securitiesugh purchases of additional securities.
Our available-for-sale investment portfolio prinhaconsists of collateralized mortgage obligatiansl agency obligations and is used to
provide a source of liquidity, including the abjlib pledge securities for possible future cashaades, while contributing to the earnings
potential of the Banks. We purchase investmentrgggiintended to protect our net interest maxgivle maintaining an acceptable risk
profile. In addition, we will purchase investmetdsautilize our cash position effectively within appriate policy guidelines and estimates of
future cash demands. While collateralized mortgagigations present prepayment risk and extensgln we believe the overall credit risk
associated with these investments is minimal, bstantially all of the obligations we hold were tarsteed by the Government National
Mortgage Association ("GNMA"), a U.S. governmenengy. Of the total available-for-sale mortgage sées we held at December 31, 2012
$151.6 million , or 75.6% , were guaranteed by GNMne of the securities within our portfolio a@lateralized by sub-prime mortgages.
We do not hold any Federal Home Loan Mortgage Qaitpmn ("FHLMC") or Federal National Mortgage Asson ("FNMA") preferred
stock. If general interest rates decline, the namégrelated securities portfolio would be subjegtrepayments caused by borrowers seeking
lower financing rates. Conversely, an increaseeimegal interest rates could cause the mortgageedetcurities portfolio to be subject to a
longer term to maturity caused by borrowers beass likely to prepay their loans. Such a rate emgecould also cause the fair value of the
mortgage related securities portfolio to declinee Bélieve the estimated prepayment streams assoeidth this segment of the investment
portfolio also allow us to better match our shertat liabilities, however, given the economic enmir@ent and current elevated foreclosure
rates, prepayment activities have become lessqiaduiie.

The Banks’ investment policies allow for varioupayg of investments, including tax-exempt municgedurities. The addition of tax-
exempt municipal securities provides for furtheporunity to improve the overall yield on our int@ent portfolio. We evaluate the credit r
of the municipal obligations prior to purchase #imit our exposure of obligations to general obtiga issuances from municipalities primat
in Wisconsin.

As we continue to evaluate the level of on-balastoeet liquidity, we have added U.S. Government @gebligations, primarily those
obligations issued by FHLMC and FNMA to our investmportfolio. We have structured these purchaséste bullet maturities within two
to four years from the issue date. Certain of #musties contain either quarterly or one-time &ditures. The maturity structure of our
securities portfolio allows us to effectively mapabe cash flows of these securities along withctiiateralized mortgage obligations to be
able to meet loan demand in the near future witblmeineed to immediately borrow funds from our @asi funding sources and proactively
adjust the portfolio if interest rates rise withire next two to four years. Our management deegsetimvestments to be creditworthy and
believes that
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these investments exhibit appropriate market yiddshe risks assumed. As additional appropriatestment securities are available in the
marketplace, we expect that additional investmeiitde purchased.

All of our securities are classified as availaldegale and carried at fair value with unrealized gand losses, net of tax, reported
component of comprehensive income. We did not haldsecurities designated as held-to-maturityastitrg as of December 31, 2012 or
2011 . During the year ended December 31, 2012rea@gnized unrealized holding losses of $503,8@@ugh other comprehensive income.
The majority of the securities we hold have actreeling markets, and we are not currently expenmndifficulties in pricing our securities.
We use a third party pricing service as our prinsyrce of market prices for our investment poigfadDn a quarterly basis, we validate the
reasonableness of prices received from this sabroeigh independent verification on a represergagvmple of the portfolio, data integrity
validation through comparison of current price timpperiod prices, and overall analytical expeotabf movement in prices based upon the
changes in the related yield curves and other m#akeors. On a periodic basis, we review the tpiatty pricing vendor's pricing methodology
for pricing relevant securities and results of inté control assessments. Our portfolio is sersitd/fluctuations in the interest rate environn
and has limited sensitivity to credit risk due lte hature of the issuers of our securities as posly discussed. If interest rates decline and the
credit quality of the securities remains constaritiproves, the market value of our debt securjpiedfolio would likely improve, thereby
increasing our total comprehensive income. If imtgrates increase or the credit quality of theisees decline, the market value of our debt
securities portfolio would likely decline and thine decrease our total comprehensive income. Norgies within our portfolio were deemed
to be other-than-temporarily impaired as of Decem@de 2012 . There were no sales of securitiesndutie years ended December 31, 2012
and 2011 .

At December 31, 2012 , $23.1 million of our mortgaglated securities were pledged to secure oimuspbligations including
outstanding advances with the FHLB and interest satap contracts or to secure unused borrowingcitgpeith the FHLB.

The table below sets forth information regarding dmortized cost and fair values of our investmantsmortgage-related securities
at the dates indicated.

As of December 31,
2012 2011 2010

Amortized cos Fair value Amortized cos Fair value Amortized cos Fair value

(In Thousands)
Securities available-for-sale

U.S. Government agency obligations - government-

sponsored enterprises $ 19,667 $ 19,72 $ — % — ¢ — 3 —
Municipal obligations 11,891 12,03: 2,73¢ 2,831 — —
Collateralized mortgage obligations - governmesuésl 148,36¢ 151,64! 161,44: 165,40: 149,94¢ 152,77t
Collateralized mortgage obligations - government-

sponsored enterprises 17,12¢ 17,19; 2,16¢ 2,15¢ 591 603

$ 197,06. $ 200,59¢ ¢ 166,34t $ 170,38 $ 150,53¢ $ 153,37¢

U.S. Government agency obligations - governmentspied enterprises represent securities issueuebyHLMC and FNMA.
Collateralized mortgage obligations - governmestiégl represent securities guaranteed by GNMA. teatlized mortgage obligations -
government-sponsored enterprises include secugtiasmanteed by FHLMC and the FNMA. Municipal obtigas include securities issued by
various municipalities located primarily within tis¢ate of Wisconsin and are tax-exempt generagjatitin bonds. As of December 31, 2012,
no issuer's securities exceeded 10% of our tatakbblders' equity.

The following table sets forth the contractual misguand weighted average yield characteristictheffair value of our debt securities
at December 31, 2012 , classified by remainingre@tial maturity. Actual maturities may differ frazontractual maturities because issuers
have the right to call or prepay obligations withoall or prepayment penalties. Yields on tax-exeaigigations have not been computed on
tax equivalent basis.
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Less than One Year One to Five Years Five to Ten Years Over Ten Years
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average Average
Balance Yield Balance Yield Balance Yield Balance Yield Total

(Dollars In Thousands)
Available-for-sale securities

Agency obligations $  — —% $ 14,18 09% $ 553 0.96% $  — —% $ 19,72

Municipal obligations — = = — 7,57( 2.1¢ 4,46¢ 2.3¢ 12,03
Collateralized mortgage obligations —

government issued 5 5.14 — — 6,28: 2.9¢ 145,35 2.41 151,64!
Collateralized mortgage obligations —

government sponsored enterprises — — — — 4,47¢ 1.1z 12,72 0.9¢ 17,19°

$ 5 $ 14,18¢ $ 23,86¢ $ 162,54: $ 200,59t

Derivative Activities. The Banks’ investment policies allow the Banks astigipate in hedging strategies or use financitlres,
options or forward commitments or interest ratesmvaith prior Board approval. The Banks utilizerfr time to time, derivative instruments
the course of their asset/liability managementoABecember 31, 2012 and 2011 , the Banks did olot ény derivative instruments that were
designated as cash flow or fair value hedges. Enieative portfolio consists of interest rate swaffered directly to qualified commercial
borrowers which allowed the Banks to provide adixate alternative to their clients while mitigafimterest rate risk by keeping a variable
loan in their portfolios. The Banks economicallydbe client derivative transactions by entering igoial and offsetting interest rate swap
contracts executed with dealer counterparties.etomomic hedge with the dealer counterparties alline Banks to primarily offset the fixed
rate interest rate risk. Derivative transactionsoeed through this program are not designated@suating hedge relationships and are
marked-to market through earnings each period.

As of December 31, 2012 , the aggregate amortizotgpnal value of interest rate swaps with varioasmercial borrowers was
approximately $64.9 million . We receive fixed mend pay floating rates based upon LIBOR on thepswith commercial borrowers. These
swaps mature between February 2013 and FebruaBy.200December 31, 2012 , the fair value of thagsvwith commercial borrowers was
approximately $3.1 million and was included in amxt interest receivable and other assets. On thettifig swap contracts with dealer
counterparties, we pay fixed rates and receivdifigaates based upon LIBOR. These interest ragpswlso mature between February 2013
and February 2023 . Dealer counterparty swaps ve@@ted on our balance sheet as a net derivaaiviity of $3.1 million due to master
netting and settlement contracts with dealer copat#ies and is included in accrued interest payahH other liabilities as of December 31,
2012.

Loans and Leases Receivableoans and leases receivable, net of allowanceofor And lease losses, increased by $59.9 milbon ,
7.2% , to $896.6 million at December 31, 2012 fi#8836.7 million at December 31, 2011 . We principalliginate commercial and industrial
loans and commercial real estate loans. The ovwmialbf our portfolio remained consistent in 201Bem compared to 20Mith approximatel
68.4% of our loan and lease portfolio concentratezcbmmercial real estate loans primarily in oumewoccupied and non-owner-occupied
classes. We successfully added new relationshipartportfolio and are beginning to see signs oféased demand for lending opportunities.
The economic environment continues to presentehgdéls and the growth percentage of our loan asé lgartfolio is below historical growth
levels. We have also experienced greater competisobanks operating in our primary geographic ateanpt to deploy excess liquidity. We
remain committed to our underwriting standards aitidnot deviate from those standards for the gmlgpose of growing our loan and lease
portfolio. Nonetheless, we expect our new loanlaade activity to be more than adequate to replacmal amortization and to continue to
grow in future quarters.

Commercial real estate lending typically involvagger loan principal amounts than that for resid¢ntortgage loans or consumer
loans. The repayment of these loans generallypsmigent on sufficient income from the propertiesuseg the loans to cover operating
expenses and debt service. Payments on loans ddguommmercial real estate are often dependent timosuccessful operation and
management of the properties; therefore, repaywfahese loans may be affected by factors outsidébrrower’s control, including adverse
conditions in the real estate market or the econdmthe event that the cash flow from the prop&tseduced, the borrower’s ability to repay
the loan could be impacted. The deterioration & onmore of these loans could cause a significe&néase in our percentage of non-
performing loans. An increase in non-performingn®aesults in a loss of earnings from these loadscauld result in an increase in the
provision for loan and lease loss and an incraasbarge-offs, all of which could have a materalexrse impact on our net income.

The allowance for loan and lease losses as a gageenf gross loans and leases was 1.69% as ofhibere1, 2012 and 1.66% as of
December 31, 2011 . Non-accrual loans and leasapascentage of gross loans and leases decreasdib®o at December 31, 20é@mparel
to 2.56% at December 31, 2011 . Non-performing $odecreased $7.6 million , or 35.1% , to $14.1lionlht December 31, 2012 compared to
$21.8 million at December 31, 2011 . As we are grpeing improvements
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in asset quality trends, our allowance for loan keade loss reserves are measured more througrafeharacteristics of our portfolio rather
than through specific identification. As a resultidis measurement and methodology, the allowaactn and lease loss as a percentage of
total loans and leases has remained relativelyestsbbcompared to December 31, 20We continue to aggressively work through our peot
loans and leases and are experiencing succesdaimeexit strategies; however, we continue to idgmew loans or leases where we believe
the borrowers do not have adequate liquidity to ertaleir payments in accordance with the termsettntractual arrangements, thus
requiring a consistent level of allowance for |dass reserve.

During the year ended December 31, 2012 , we reconét charge-offs on impaired loans and leasapmoximately $3.0 million ,
comprised of $3.5 million of charge-offs and $4&D ®f recoveries. During the year ended Decembg2@11 , we recorded net chargiés on
impaired loans and leases of approximately $6.4ani| comprised of $7.2 million of charge-offs ad864,000 of recoveries. In 2012, the
charge-offs recorded were primarily due to lossestrired through liquidation of collateral on onentoercial and industrial client and to a
lesser extent based upon a decline in real estfitewin certain of our market areas. In 2011 ctisrge-offs recorded were primarily due to
declining real estate values supporting our loaneresthe collateral was no longer sufficient toarabhe outstanding principal and the
borrowers did not have other means to repay thigatidn. Based upon our internal methodology wtlactively monitors the asset quality and
inherent risks within the loan and loss portfolimtanagement concluded that a loan and lease lomyeesf $15.4 million , or 1.69% of total
loans and leases, was appropriate as of Decembp@032 . Refer to thAsset Quality section for more information.

Credit underwriting through a committee process k&y component of our operating philosophy. Bussrievelopment officers have
relatively low individual lending authority limitgnd thus a significant portion of our new credieasions require approval from a loan
approval committee regardless of the type of laale@se, amount of the credit, or the related cexipés of each proposal. In addition, we
make every effort to ensure that there is apprtgpdallateral at the time of origination to protect interest in the related loan or lease. To
monitor the ongoing credit quality of our loans d@alses each credit is evaluated for proper riskgaising a nine grade risk rating system at
the the time of origination, subsequent renewa)weation of updated financial information from dagorrowers, or as other circumstances
dictate.
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Loan Portfolio Composition. The following table presents information concernting composition of the Banks’ consolidated loans
and leases held for investment at the dates iraticat

As of December 31,
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

(Dollars in Thousands)
Commercial real estate

loans
Commercial real estate —

owner occupied $ 144,98t 15% $ 150,52¢ 17.1% $ 152,56( 17.0% $ 168,21! 19.1% $ 158,10° 18.5%
Commercial real estate —

non-owner occupied 323,66( 35.5 304,59 35.¢ 307,30° 35.C 273,59: 32.C 231,98 27.2
Construction and land

development 64,96¢ 7.1 38,12« 4.t 61,64t 7.C 64,19 7.t 84,77¢ 9.¢
Multi-family 58,45 6.4 43,90¢ 5.2 43,01: 4.¢ 43,95¢ 5.1 42,51« 5.C
1-4 family 31,94: 3.t 43,51 5.1 53,84¢ 6.1 56,13 6.€ 51,54 6.C
Total commercial real

estate loans 624,01: 68.4 580,66 68.2 618,37: 70.4 606,09( 70.€ 568,92¢ 66.7
Commercial and industrial

loans 256,45¢ 28.1 237,09¢ 27.¢ 225,92: 25.7 199,66: 23.2 232,35( 27.2
Direct financing leases, ne 15,92¢ 1.7 17,12¢ 2.C 19,28¢ 2.2 27,60° 3.2 29,72: 3.t

Consumer and other
Home equity loans and

second mortgage loans 4,64: 0.t 4,97( 0.€ 5,091 0.€ 7,87¢ 0.€ 7,38¢ 0.€
Other 11,67: 1.2 11,68: 1.4 9,31t 1.1 13,26( 1.€ 14,44¢ 1.7
Total consumer and other 16,31: 1.8 16,65: 2.C 14,40¢ 1.€ 21,13¢ 2.t 21,83: 2.€
Total gross loans and lease

receivables ﬂ 100.(% ﬂ 100.(% ﬂ 100.(% ﬂ 100.(% ﬂ 100.(%
Less:
Allowance for loan and

lease losses 15,40( 14,15¢ 16,27: 14,12: 11,84¢
Deferred loan fees 7A€ 704 782 56€ 43¢
Loans and lease i .

receivables, net $ 896,56 $ 836,68 $ 860,93 $ 839,80 $ 840,54

The following table shows the scheduled contraatualurities of the Banks’ consolidated gross loamd leases held for investment,
as well as the dollar amount of such loans ancekeasich are scheduled to mature after one yearhwiave fixed or adjustable interest rates,
as of December 31, 2012 .

Interest terms on amounts due

Amounts Due after one year
After One
In One Year Year through After Five
or Less Five Years Years Total Fixed Rate Variable Rate

(In Thousands)
Commercial real estate

Owner-occupied $ 29,277 % 83,75¢ $ 31,954 $ 14498 $ 78,36 % 37,34¢
Non-owner occupied 85,72¢ 170,73l 67,20¢ 323,66( 187,06( 50,87¢
Construction and land development 29,29: 25,87 9,80: 64,96¢ 11,82 23,85:
Multi-family 18,26« 32,36¢ 7,821 58,45¢ 28,12: 12,06¢
1-4 family 12,26¢ 15,77 3,90¢ 31,94 17,71¢ 1,962
Commercial and industrial 85,64 151,83t 18,98( 256,45t 67,19¢ 103,62(
Direct Financing Leases 2,28: 11,49( 2,15¢ 15,92¢ 13,64: —
Other 5,861 9,74 701 16,31: 9,49t 95(C

$ 26861 $ 50157. $ 14252. $ 912,706 $ 413,41¢ $ 230,67!
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Commercial Real Estate LoansThe Banks originate owner-occupied and non-ownetipied commercial real estate loans which
have fixed or adjustable rates and generally teringp to five years and amortizations of up to ttyefive years on existing commercial real
estate and new construction. The Banks also otigileans to construct commercial properties andpdera land development projects.

The Banks’ construction loans generally have tesfrex to 24 months with fixed or adjustable intreates and fees that are due at
the time of origination. Loan proceeds are dishdiieencrements as construction progresses andogecpinspections warrant. Multi-family
loans are primarily secured by apartment buildiswgd are mostly located in Dane and Waukesha cau@iee-to-four family first mortgage
loans are generally secured by properties helthf@stment and primary and secondary residencearaflients.

Because payments on commercial real estate loaraftan dependent on the successful operationval@ement of the property or
business involved, repayment of such loans is aftere sensitive than other types of loans to a@vessditions in the real estate market or th
general economy, which are outside the borroweri¢ral. In the event that the cash flow from thepgarty is reduced, the borrower's ability to
repay the loan could be negatively impacted. Theration of one or a few of these loans couldsesa material increase in our level of
nonperforming loans, which would result in a lo§savenue from these loans and could result imarease in the provision for loan and lease
losses and an increase in charge-offs, all of wbatlld have a material adverse impact on our renire. Additionally, many of these loans
have real estate as a primary or secondary componeallateral. The market value of real estate actuate significantly in a short period of
time as a result of economic conditions. Adversestigpments affecting real estate values in onearernf our markets could impact collateral
coverage associated with the commercial real es&gment of our portfolio, possibly leading to gmsed specific reserves or charge-offs,
which would adversely affect profitability.

Commercial and Industrial Loans. The Banks’ commercial and industrial loan portfaicomprised of loans for a variety of
purposes which principally are secured by inventacgounts receivable, equipment, machinery aner @brporate assets and are advanced
within limits prescribed by our loan policy. The joity of such loans are secured and typically leacky personal guarantees of the owners ¢
the borrowing business.

Of the $256.5 million of commercial and industii@dns, including asset based loans, outstanding Bscember 31, 2012 , $101.1 million
were originated by FBCC, our asset-based lendibgidiary. These asset-based loans are typicallyreddy the borrower’s accounts
receivable and inventory. Therefore, these loamgi@dly have higher interest rates, non-originafess collected in lieu of interest and are
accompanied by close monitoring of assets. Assst¢ibans secured by owner-occupied real estataragptbto $15.4 million as of
December 31, 2012 and are included in the ownewed commercial real estate loan portfolio.

Our commercial loans are typically larger in amatinain loans to individual consumers and, therefaa@e the potential for larger
losses on an individual loan basis. Additionallgsetbased borrowers are usually highly leveraged artdige inconsistent historical earnings.
Significant adverse changes in various industriegcccause rapid declines in values and colledtalzsissociated with those business assets
resulting in inadequate collateral coverage that exose us to future losses. An increase in speeiéerves and charge-offs may have a
material adverse impact on our results of operation

LeasesLeases initiated through FBEF are originated witixed rate and typically a term of seven year&ess. It is customary in the
leasing industry to provide 100% financing, howeWBEF will, from time-to-time, require a down pagmt or lease deposit to provide a credi
enhancement. All equipment leases must have ati@ualiinsured endorsement and a loss payableelauthe interest of FBEF and must
carry sufficient physical damage and liability insoice.

FBEF leases machinery and equipment to clientsruedses which qualify as direct financing leasedihancial reporting and as
operating leases for income tax purposes. Undeaditeet financing method of accounting, the minimie&se payments to be received under
the lease contract, together with the estimatediaramteed residual value (approximating 3 to 20%hefcost of the related equipment), are
recorded as lease receivables when the leasenisdsand the lease property is delivered to thatcliehe excess of the minimum lease
payments and residual values over the cost ofghg@ment is recorded as unearned lease income rilagtiease income is recognized ovel
term of the lease on a basis which results in @l lete of return on the unrecovered lease invastrhease payments are recorded when due
under the lease contract. Residual value is thenatgd fair market value of the equipment on lesidease termination. In estimating the
equipment’s fair value, FBEF relies on historicgberience by equipment type and manufacturer, pagd sources of used equipment pricing
internal evaluations and, when available, valuatioy independent appraisers, adjusted for knowrtsre

Our commercial leases are typically larger in anmidban leases to individual consumers and, thezeftave the potential for larger
losses on an individual basis. Significant advetseEnges in various industries could cause rapitirgscin values of leased equipment resul
in inadequate collateral coverage that may expede tuture losses. An increase in specific researal charge-offs may have a material
adverse impact on our results of operations.
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Consumer and Other Loans.The Banks originate a small amount of consumerdaamsisting of home equity, second mortgage,
credit card and other personal loans for profesdiand executive clients of the Banks.

Non-performing Assets.Our non-accrual loans and other non-performingtassmsisted of the following as of the dates iatéid.

As of December 31,
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

(Dollars In Thousands)
Non-accrual loans and leases
Commercial real estate:

Commercial real estate — owner occupied $ 76 $ 297 $ 6,28 $ 7,99 $ =
Commercial real estate — non-owner occupied 2,871 2,24¢ 5,14« 48€ 2,97¢
Construction and land development 4,94¢ 7,22¢ 9,27¢ 3,311 5,27¢
Multi-family 46 2,00¢ 4,18¢ 1,76( —
1-4 family 1,00¢ 3,50¢ 4,237 3,01t 2,082
Total non-accrual commercial real estate 9,63¢ 17,96¢ 29,12t 16,57« 10,34(
Commercial and industrial 2,84: 1,55¢ 6,43¢ 7,08¢ 5,41
Direct financing leases, net — 18 — 1 24
Other:
Home equity and second mortgage 612 1,00z 93¢ 872 37¢
Other 1,03( 1,22 1,90¢ 3,29: 13C
Total non-accrual other loans 1,64: 2,22¢ 2,84t 4,16¢ 50¢
Total non-accrual loans and leases 14,12: 21,76¢ 38,40¢ 27,82¢ 16,28¢
Foreclosed properties, net 1,57¢ 2,23¢ 1,75(C 1,671 3,011
Total non-performing assets $ 15,69¢ $ 24,000 $ 40,15¢ $ 29,49%¢ $ 19,29¢
Performing troubled debt restructurings $ 1,108 % 111 % 71 $ — % —
Total non-accrual loans and leases to gross laash¢cases 1.55% 2.56% 4.37% 3.26% 1.91%
Total non-performing assets to total assets 1.28% 2.04% 3.62% 2.64% 1.91%
Allowance for loan and lease losses to gross laaddeases 1.65% 1.6€% 1.85% 1.65% 1.3¢%
Allowance for loan and lease losses to non-acdoaals and leases 109.0%% 65.0%% 42.3% 50.76% 72.7%

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011 , $8.8 million $h8.3 million of the non-accrual loans are congddroubled debt
restructurings, respectively. As noted in the ababde, non-performing assets consisted of nonuatdoans and leases and foreclosed
properties totaling $15.7 million , or 1.28% ofdbassets, as of December 31, 2012 , a decreasmiperforming assets of 34.6% , or $8.3
million , from December 31, 2011 . We experiencedduction in our non-accrual portfolio, which wthe result of borrowers obtaining
alternative sources of funds, borrower initiatel@saf underlying collateral, continued paymentexdions that have been applied directly to
principal, and recognition of further charge-offgem valuations of underlying collateral for codiedl dependent loans.

A summary of our current period non-accrual load kase activity is as follows:

(In Thousands)

Non-accrual loans and leases as of December 31, 201 $ 21,76¢
Loans and leases transferred into non-accrualsstatu 9,94«
Non-accrual loans and leases returned to accrataisst (1,617%)
Non-accrual loans and leases transferred to fosediproperties (1,51)
Non-accrual loans and leases partially or fullyrgled-off (3,409
Cash received and applied to principal of non-aadaans and leases (11,057
Non-accrual loans and leases as of December 32, 201 $ 14,12:

We use a wide variety of available metrics to as#es overall asset quality of the portfolio andome metric is used independently to
make a final conclusion as to the asset qualithefportfolio. As of December 31, 2012 , non-perfingy
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assets as a percentage of total assets decliie@l@¥ from 2.04% at December 31, 2011 . The evdtexgies undertaken, including but not
limited to foreclosure actions, charge-offs, ang-p#s, have outpaced the identification of new &irpd loans and therefore we experienced &
net reduction in our non-accrual loans and leasg$oreclosure is a viable exit strategy for uptmsue, we are seeing an overall reduction in
our ratio of non-performing assets to total loand keases and foreclosed properties. Total norepaifig assets to total loans and leases and
foreclosed properties as of December 31, 2012 awtDber 31, 2011 were 1.72% and 2.81% , respecthdéd believe this ratio provides
insight as to our success in working problem adbetaigh the entire process and eliminating furtbsses.

We also monitor early stage delinquencies to pmindight into potential future problems. As of Betber 31, 2012 , the payment
performance did not point to any new areas of conaes approximately 99.3% of the loan and leas#gdio was in a current payment status.
This metric can change rapidly however, if factangnown to us change. We also monitor our assditytiarough our established categories
as defined iNote 4of our Consolidated Financial Statements. We agegea larger portion of our portfolio classifiedthe categories that
would be considered to have adequate credit qualitfjough we continue to see signs of asset quiaiprovement, we will continue to and
will always actively monitor the credit quality ofir loan and lease portfolio. Through this monitgréeffort, we may identify additional loans
and leases for which the borrowers or lesseesaiadndifficulties making the required principaldamterest payments based upon factors
including, but not limited to, the inability to $&nd, inadequate cash flow from the operationthefunderlying businesses, liquidation events
or bankruptcy filings. Therefore, we expect to aomé to experience new additions to non-accruaidamnd leases. We believe current
economic conditions will remain largely the sametfee near term. As a result, we expect that weasiitinue to experience historically
elevated levels of impaired loans and leases. Wemactively working with our impaired loan borrens to find meaningful solutions to
difficult situations that are in the best interestshe Banks. As we continue to have these disonsswe expect we will continue to see further
reductions in our overall non-accrual portfoliocas clients' financial performance returns to gedfle levels, collateral is liquidated to provide
sufficient reductions in outstanding principal,atients establish banking relationships with othen-related institutions.

In 2012, as well as in the previous four fiscadnge there were no loans over 90 days past dustdlinaccruing interest. Loans and
leases greater than 90 days past due are considgradted and are placed on non-accrual statu$ @aeived while a loan or a lease is on
non-accrual status is generally applied againsbtiistanding principal.

Impaired loans and leases exhibit weaknessesrthiitirepayment in compliance with the originaites of the note or lease.
However, the measurement of impairment on loandeasks may not always result in a specific resieiraladed in the allowance for loan and
lease losses. As part of the underwriting procgssyell as our ongoing monitoring efforts, we yensure that we have appropriate collateral
to protect our interest in the related loan ordedss a result of this practice, a significant fmrtof our outstanding balance of non-performing
loans or leases either does not require additigpedific reserves or requires only a minimal amaidimequired specific reserve, as we believe
the loans and leases are adequately collateradized the measurement period. In addition, manageim@roactive in recording charge-offs to
bring loans to their net realizable value in sita$ where it is determined with certainty thatwi# not recover the entire amount of our
principal. This practice may lead to a lower allowa for loan and lease loss to non-accrual loaddemses ratio as compared to our peers or
industry expectations. As of December 31, 2012241dl , our allowance for loan and lease lossestéb mon-accrual loans and leases was
109.05% and 65.03% , respectively. As we begireisiprovements in asset quality, resulting in mesment of our loan and lease loss more
through general characteristics of our portfolithea than through specific identification, we v@#e this ratio continue to rise. Conversely, if
we identify further impaired loans, this ratio codéll if the impaired loan is adequately collatered and therefore no specific or general
reserve need be provided. Given our business pegctind evaluation of our existing loan and leastdqgdio, we believe this coverage ratio is
appropriate for the probable losses inherent in@am and lease portfolio as of December 31, 2012 .
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Additional information about impaired loans as pfldor the years indicated was as follows:

As of December 31,

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(In Thousands)
Impaired loans and leases with no impairment reserv $ 11,006 $ 18,88¢ $ 19,74¢ $ 13,241 $  9,98¢
Impaired loans and leases with impairment resenegsired 4,221 2,98¢ 19,37¢ 14,58: 6,29¢
Total impaired loans and leases 15,22 21,87 39,12« 27,82¢ 16,28t
Less:
Impairment reserve (included in allowance for laaal lease
losses) 1,517 88¢ 3,45¢ 1,84¢ 1,417
Net impaired loans and leases $ 13,71 $ 2098¢ $ 3566 $ 2597¢ $ 14,86¢
Average impaired loans and leases $ 17,94 $ 33,79¢ $ 29,71+ $ 20,39" $ 8,37¢
For the years ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(In Thousands)
Interest income attributable to impaired loans eades $ 1432 $ 268. $ 2,70 $ 1,75¢ $ 752
Less: Interest income recognized on impaired |@anikleases 321 787 10z 14¢ 49
Net foregone interest income on impaired loansleases $ 1,127 $ 1,898 $§ 260 $ 1,60¢ $ 703

In addition to all non-accrual loans and leasegained loans and leases as of December 31, 2012Mridalso included $1.1 million
and $111,000 of loans that are performing trouklielok restructurings, and thus are not on non-atstatus, but are considered impaired, due
to the concession in terms. Loans with no speo#féerves required represent impaired loans wheredttateral, based upon current
information, is deemed to be sufficient or thatéaeen partially charged-off to reflect our nelizadle value of the loan. When analyzing the
adequacy of collateral, we obtain external appl=igaur policy regarding appraisals requires thization of appraisers from our approved
list, the performance of independent internal negi¢o monitor the quality of such appraisals ami@ of new appraisals for impaired loan:
least annually, or more frequently as circumstamesant. We make adjustments to the appraisalagdpropriate selling costs. In addition, the
ordering of appraisals and review of the appraiaedsperformed by individuals who are independétheloan approval process. Based on the
specific evaluation of the collateral of each immpdiloan, we believe the reserve for impaired lomas adequate at December 31, 2012 .
However, we cannot provide assurance that the éaxtircumstances surrounding each individual iregddoan will not change and that the
specific reserve or current carrying value will betdifferent in the future which may require agbdil charge-offs or specific reserves to be
recorded.

Foreclosed properties are recorded at the loweostfor net realizable value. If, at the time okfdosure, the fair value less cost to
sell is lower than the carrying value of the lote difference, if any, is charged to the allowafirdoan and lease losses prior to transfer to
foreclosed property. The fair value is based orrapgls, discounted cash flow analysis (the majafitwhich is based on current occupancy
and lease rates) or verifiable offers to purchA#er foreclosure, valuation allowances or futunétedowns to net realizable value are charge
directly to non-interest expense. Foreclosed pt@sewere $1.6 million , a decrease of 29.6% ,etddnber 31, 2012 from $2.2 million at
December 31, 2011 . The decrease in foreclosecepiep is primarily attributable to dispositiongbperties and further valuation allowances
taken to reflect the market values of the propsri®e recorded impairment losses of $600,000 ®ydar ended December 31, 2012 . Net
gains on sales of existing foreclosed property oy were $15,000 for the year ended Decembe2@12 . We continue to evaluate possible
exit strategies on our impaired loans when foreglesction may be probable and we expect thatawad bf foreclosed assets may increase in
the future. Loans are transferred to forecloseggnties when we claim legal title to the propetties
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A summary of foreclosed properties activity for trears ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 is asvfollo

For the Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011
(In Thousands)
Balance at the beginning of the period $ 2,23t % 1,75(C
Transfer of loans to foreclosed properties, at logfecost or fair value 1,511 3,11¢
Payments to priority lien holders of foreclosedpmuies 367 —
Impairment adjustments (600 (627)
Net book value of properties sold (1,940 (2,0172)
Balance at the end of the period $ 1572 % 2,23¢

Allowance for Loan and Lease Losse§.o determine the level and composition of the ailooe for loan and lease losses, we break
out the portfolio by segments and risk ratings. fik& evaluate loans and leases for potential immpant classification. Once a loan or lease is
determined to be impaired we then analyze the iragdoans and leases on an individual basis tam@te a specific reserve based upon the
estimated value of the underlying collateral foltateral-dependent loans, or alternatively, thespre value of expected cash flows. In order to
establish the level of the general portion of theweance for loan and lease losses, we regulaxiieve and update the calculations within our
existing allowance methodology by incorporatingdrigal charge-off migration analysis and an analg$ the current level and trend of
several factors that we believe may indicate logs#se various segments of the loan and leaségtiortThese factors include delinquencies,
volume and average size loan relationships, avaiskeating, technical defaults, geographic cotiaions, loans and leases on management
attention watch lists, unemployment rates in ourkmareas, experience in the credit granting fonst changes in underwriting standards an
level of non-performing assets and related faiv@alf underlying collateral. The historical chafémigration analysis utilizes the most rec
five years of net charge-offs and traces the migmadf the risk rating from origination through ege-off. The historical percentage of the
amounts charged-off for each risk rating is aveddge the five-year period giving greater weightlire calculation to the recent years. We thel
apply these percentages to the current loan asé |eartfolio.

When it is determined that we will not receive eatire contractual principal or the loss is conBdnwe record a charge against the
allowance for loan and lease loss reserve to liiadoan or lease to its net realizable value. fdube current economic conditions, estimated
proceeds from the sales of property securing @bdtlependent loans have generally been deemaiffi¢cient to repay the related debt,
confirming our inability to receive our entire ceattual principal on certain commercial real estaséss. Many of the impaired loans are
collateral dependent. It is part of our routineqass to obtain appraisals on all impaired loahseaast annually, or more frequently as
circumstances warrant. As we have completed nevwa#gls and/or market evaluations, we have fouatlithgeneral real estate values have
stabilized; however, in specific situations currkit values collateralizing certain impaired loamsre inadequate to support the entire amoun
of the outstanding debt. Foreclosure actions ma lhaen initiated on certain of these commercill eéstate and other mortgage loans.

We continue to proactively monitor our loan andskeportfolio for further deterioration and apply gpuescribed allowance for loan
and lease loss reserve methodology. As a resthiofeview process, we have concluded that anogpiate allowance for loan and lease loss
reserve for the existing loan and lease portfolés Ww15.4 million or 1.69% of gross loans and lessteBecember 31, 2012 . Taking into
consideration net charge-offs of $3.0 million , thquired provision for loan and lease losses wa2 fillion for the year ended December 31,
2012 . At December 31, 2011 , the allowance fon laad lease losses was $14.2 million , or 1.66Yrass loans and leases, reflecting net
charge-offs of $6.4 million and a provision for foand lease losses of $4.3 million for the yeardrdecember 31, 2011 .

Given complexities with legal actions on certairoaf large commercial real estate and commerciliraustrial loans and current
economic conditions, we continue to evaluate tha indformation available to us to determine the am®f the loans that are uncollectable.
We believe the loans were recorded at the appitepraues at December 31, 2012 ; however, furtharge-offs could be recorded if changes
in facts and circumstances in the future lead wsddferent conclusion.
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A summary of the activity in the allowance for loand lease losses follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(Dollars In Thousands)
Allowance at beginning of period $ 14,158 $ 16,270 $ 14,12¢ $ 11,84¢ $ 9,85/
Charge-offs:
Commercial real estate
Commercial real estate — owner occupied (119 (1,376 (25¢) — —
Commercial real estate — non-owner occupied — (1,617) — — —
Construction and land development 47 (2,097 (2,110 (2,68)) (81%)
Multi-family (130 (312) (1,059 (424) (102
1-4 family (322) (942) (596) (542 (243%)
Commercial and industrial (2,739 (47%) (352) (2,03)) (1,209
Direct financing leases — — — (231) —
Consumer and other
Home equity and second mortgage (72 (119 (142 (157) (33
Other (56) (309) (699) (36) (2)
Total charge-offs (3,479 (7,230 (5,210 (6,1072) (2,39¢)
Recoveries:
Commercial real estate
Commercial real estate — owner occupied 5 — — — 2
Commercial real estate — non-owner occupied 192 — — — —
Construction and land development 101 13 23 — —
Multi-family — 28¢ — — 84
1-4 family 77 — 1€ — —
Commercial and industrial 66 473 26& 147 3
Direct financing leases — 19 8 — —
Consumer and other
Home equity and second mortgage 11 68 1 8 —
Other 29 2 — — —
Total recoveries 481 864 313 15¢ 89
Net charge-offs (2,99¢) (6,36€) (4,897) (5,947 (2,307
Provision for loan and lease losses 4,243 4,25( 7,04« 8,22¢ 4,29¢
Allowance at end of period $ 1540 $ 14,15 $ 16,27 $ 14,12¢ $ 11,84¢
Net charge-offs as a % of average gross loanseasegs 0.35% 0.74% 0.57% 0.6%% 0.28%

During the year ended December 31, 2012 , we redonét charge-offs on impaired loans and leasapmoximately $3.0 million
comprised of $3.5 million of charge-offs and $4&D ®f recoveries. In 2012 , the charge-offs rectndere primarily due to losses incurred
through liquidation efforts on one commercial andustrial client and to a lesser extent based apaecline in real estate values on various
collateral dependent loans in certain of our maskeas. The majority of the charge-offs in 201 Lited from declining values of collateral
associated with impaired loans and leases. Ougehaifs in 201were primarily concentrated in our commercial esthte portfolio, includir
construction and land development, as we contino@xperience an elevated level of charge-offsctvig substantially related to land
development projects. In addition, in 2011 we eigrared losses in our owner-occupied and non-owneupied commercial real estate clas
These charge-offs were associated with declinirigtenal values.

We review our methodology and periodically adjuktcation percentages of allowance by segmentefiacted in the following table
based upon historical results. Within the spediéitegories, certain loans or leases have beenfiddrfor specific reserve allocations as wel
the whole category of that loan type or lease begwgewed for a general reserve based on the farggmalysis of trends and overall balance
growth within that category.
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The table below shows our allocation of the alloeeafor loan and lease losses by loan portfolio ssdsat the dates indicated.

As of December 31,

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Percent of Percent of Percent of Percent of Percent of
Allowance loans in Allowance loans in Allowance loans in Allowance loans in Allowance loans in
for loan each for loan each for loan each for loan each for loan each
and lease categoryto andlease categoryto andlease categoryto andlease categoryto andlease category to
losses total loans losses total loans losses total loans losses total loans losses total loans

(Dollars In Thousands)

Loan segments:

Commercial real estate  $ 10,69 68.31% $ 9,55¢ 68.1% $ 11,26 704% $ 8,89( 70.9% $ 7,187 66.71%
Commercial and

industrial 4,12¢ 28.1(% 3,971 27.8% 4,271 25.7% 4,131 23.3% 3,98¢ 27.2%
Direct financing leases,

net 207 1.7/% 24C 2.01% 24& 2.2(% 357 3.2% 33C 3.4%
Consumer and other 371 1.7%% 384 1.96% 482 1.64% 74€ 2.41% 34& 2.56%
Total $ 15,40( 100.0% $ 14,15 100.0% $ 16,27: 100.0% $ 14,12« 100.0% $  11,84¢ 100.0%

Although we believe the allowance for loan and édlasses was appropriate based on the currentdéledn delinquencies, non-
accrual loans, trends in charge-offs, economic itimms and other factors as of December 31, 2Qfk&re can be no assurance that future
adjustments to the allowance will not be necess&igadhere to high underwriting standards in otdenaintain strong asset quality and
continue to pursue practical and legal methodbéction, repossession and disposal of any sueibted assets.

Deposits.As of December 31, 2012 , deposits increased byd®#dlion to $1.092 billion from $1.051 billion &ecember 31, 2011 .
Deposits are the primary source of the Barfiliads for lending and other investment activitigszariety of accounts are designed to attract
short- and long-term deposits. These accountsdeahon-interest-bearing transaction accounts,@stdyearing transaction accounts, money
market accounts and time deposits. Deposit terfieseaf by the Banks vary according to the minimutaiee required, the time period the
funds must remain on deposit, the rates and prediftred by marketplace competition and the irsterates charged on other sources of fu
among other factors. Attracting in-market depdsés been a renewed focus of the Banks’ businesdapeuent officers. With two separately
chartered financial institutions within our orgaatinn, we have the ability to offer our clients #idehal FDIC insurance coverage by
maintaining separate deposits with each Bank. tiighchange in the regulations regarding the intdirags on NOW accounts to qualify for
unlimited FDIC insurance, we have seen a shiftuntmlances out of NOW accounts into non-interestring transaction accounts. The ending
balances within the various deposit types fluctiaged upon maturity of time deposits, client deisdor the use of their cash coupled with
servicing and maintaining client relationships. ¥eus on attracting and servicing deposit relatigps, as compared to rate sensitive clients,
and therefore we monitor the success of growth-oharket deposits based on the average balan@es deposit accounts. Rate sensitive
clients may create an element of volatility to daposit balances.

Our Banks’ in-market deposits are obtained prirgdrdm the South Central, Northeastern and Souteaasegions of Wisconsin. Of
our total average deposits, approximately $649I0ami, or 61.8% , were considered in-market defsoir the year ended December 31, 2012
This compares to average in-market deposits of $54@lion , or 51.6% , for the year ended Decenfier2011 Attracting client deposits a
increasing overall deposit market share is affebied competitive environment. We continue to remiatused on increasing our in-market
deposit base and reducing our overall dependentyakered certificates of deposits; however, asigha in regulation occur, specifically
those affecting deposit insurance, we cannot beredghat our clients will maintain their balansegely with one institution. Our competition
and the banking industry as a whole will also féie challenge of retaining existing deposits whighbelieve may create new opportunities tc
develop relationships and attract new money.
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The following table sets forth the amount and mtas of the Banks’ certificates of deposit, indlugl brokered deposits, at
December 31, 2012 .

Over six months

Three months and Over three months through twelve Over twelve
Interest rate less through six month months months Total
(In Thousands)
0.00% to 0.99% $ 14,32: $ 18,27( $ 25,83t $ 76,36¢ % 134,79
1.00% to 1.99% 14,96¢ 1,36( 20,30¢ 67,20( 103,83
2.00% to 2.99% 16,57¢ 29,54* 49,75 90,31z 186,18!
3.00% to 3.99% 281 — — 14,897 15,17¢
4.00% to 4.99% 13 — 48t 2,49( 2,98¢

5.00% and greater — — — — —
$ 46,16: $ 49,17 % 96,38( $ 251,26¢ $ 442,98

At December 31, 2012 , time deposits included $&tilon of certificates of deposit in denominatgreater than or equal to
$100,000. Of these certificates, $9.0 million areesluled to mature in three months or less, $6l%min greater than three through six
months, $10.9 million in greater than six througielive months and $9.2 million in greater than tweeaivonths.

Of the total time deposits outstanding as of Deaandi, 2012 , $191.7 million are scheduled to neatur2013 , $124.1 million in
2014 , $65.9 million in 2015 , $23.8 million in 201$5.1 million in 2017 , and $32.3 million theftea. As of December 31, 2012 , we have
$28.3 million of brokered certificates of deposiat the Banks have the right to call prior to tbleesluled maturity. These certificates have
original maturities ranging from 7-17 years withtiops to call after the first six months of holditige certificates and either semi-annually or
monthly call options thereafter.

Borrowings. We had total borrowings of $22.7 million as of Dextxer 31, 2012 , a decrease of $27.9 million , 02%9, from $50.6
million at December 31, 2011 . In December 2012suecessfully raised approximately $29.1 milliorotigh the issuance of 1,265,000 share
of common stock at a price of $23.00. The net pedsef the offering, approximately $27.1 milliorere immediately used to repay a portion
of our subordinated notes.

The following table sets forth the outstanding baks, weighted average balances and weighted averi@gest rates for our
borrowings (short-term and long-term) as indicated.

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Weighted  Weighted Weighted  Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average average average average average
Balance balance rate Balance balance rate Balance balance rate

(Dollars In Thousands)

Federal funds purchased $ — 3 237 0.82% $ — 3 252 0.9(% $ — 3 — —%
FHLB advances 46¢ 2,03¢ 1.5¢ 482 65€ 5.8: 2,49¢ 13,41« 4.7¢%
Line of credit 1C 1,66¢€ 4.07 81C 2,23¢ 4.0€ 10 1C 4.0€%
Subordinated notes payable  11,92¢ 37,48: 7.0z 39,00¢( 39,00¢( 6.1z 39,00( 39,00¢( 5.5(%
Junior subordinated notes 10,31t 10,31t 10.81 10,31t 10,31t 10.7¢ 10,31t 10,31t 10.7¢%
$ 22,72( $ 51,73! 7.46 $ 50,600 $ 52,45¢ 6.94 $ 5181¢ $ 62,73¢ 6.26%
Short-term borrowings $ 47¢ $ 81C $ 2,01
Long-term borrowings 22,24 49,79' 49,80¢
$ 22,72( $ 50,60° $ 51,81¢
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The following table sets forth maximum amounts tartding at each month-end for specific types ofdwings for the periods
indicated.

Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010

(In Thousands)
Maximum month-end balance:
FHLB advances $ 1547 % 49 $ 18,50«
Federal funds purchased — — —

Stockholders’ Equity. As of December 31, 2012 , stockholders’ equity $@8.5 million , or 8.1% of total assets, compared t
stockholders’ equity of $64.2 million , or 5.5%tofal assets, as of December 31, 2011 . Stocki®ldquity increased by $35.3 million during
the year ended December 31, 2012 primarily aswudtresthe completion of an equity raise in Decemd@l2 where we successfully raised
approximately $29.1 million through the issuancd @65,000 shares of common stock at a price of0828enerating net proceeds after
underwriter discount and offering expenses of agprately $27.1 million. The increase of equity Isaattributable to record net income of
$8.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 .

Non-bank Consolidated Subsidiaries

First Madison Investment Corporation. First Madison Investment Corporation ("FMIC") isvaolly-owned operating subsidiary of
FBB that was incorporated in the State of Nevadei®3. FMIC was organized for the purpose of mamagiportion of FBB'’s investment
portfolio, and no longer invests in commercial restlate loans previously in the form of loan pg&tons from FBB, which it did until
October 1, 2011. FMIC invests in marketable seiasitAs an operating subsidiary, FMIC’s result®pérations are consolidated with FBB’s
for financial and regulatory purposes. FBB’s invesht in FMIC was $148.5 million at December 31,20EMIC had net income of $1.7
million for the year ended December 31, 2012 . Eoimpares to a total investment of $147.1 milliobDacember 31, 2011 and net income of
$4.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 .

First Business Capital Corp.FBCC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of FBB formedl®95 and headquartered in Madison, Wisconsin
FBCC is an asset-based lending company establishaéet the financing needs of companies thatemerglly unable to obtain traditional
bank financing. FBCC underwrites its loans withiiddal emphasis placed on collateral coveragdhasompanies it finances are growing
rapidly, highly leveraged, or undergoing a turneard period. FBB’s investment in FBCC at December2®il2 was $22.1 milliongross loan
outstanding were $116.5 million and net incometffieryear ended December 31, 2012 was $2.1 millidris compares to a total investmen
$19.9 million , gross loans of $127.5 million aret mcome of $3.3 million at and for the year en@etember 31, 2011 .

FMCC Nevada Corp.FMCC Nevada Corp. was a wholly-owned subsidiarif®E€C incorporated in the state of Nevada in 2000.
FMCCNC invested in assbtased loans in the form of loan participations fileBCC with FBCC retaining servicing. Effective Oots 1, 2011
this subsidiary was dissolved and its assets wansferred to FBCC.

First Business Equipment Finance, LLCFBEF, headquartered in Madison, Wisconsin, was éorm 1998 for the purpose of
originating leases and extending credit in the fofrfoans to small and medium-sized companies nafide and is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of FBB. FBB's total investment in FBEF at DecemBé&r 2012 was $6.5 million , gross loans and leaséstanding were $43.5 million and
FBEF had net income of $60,000 for the year endecehber 31, 2012 . This compares to a total investwf $6.4 million , gross loans and
leases outstanding of $22.6 million and net incam®569,000 at and for the year ended Decembe2(R1l], .

FBB Real Estate, LLC. FBB Real Estate, LLC ("FBBRE") is a wholly-ownsdbsidiary of FBB and was formed in 2009 for the
purpose of holding and liquidating real estate atfeér assets acquired through foreclosure or d¢lged proceedings. FBB'total investment i
FBBRE at December 31, 2012 was $1.0 million and RBBiad a net loss of $25,000 for the year endeeémber 31, 2012 . This compares to
a total investment of $561,000 and a net loss 6 at and for the year ended December 31, 2011 .

FBB-Milwaukee Real Estate LLC.FBB-Milwaukee Real Estate LLC ("FBBMRE") is a whelbwned subsidiary of FBB —
Milwaukee and was formed in 2009 for the purposkadfling and liquidating real estate and othertassequired through foreclosure or other
legal proceedings. FBB-Milwaukee’s total investmienFBBMRE was $631,000 at December 31, 2012 anBNFBE had a net loss of
$197,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012s. ddpares to a total investment of $1,338,000n&ndbss of $297,000 at and for the yea
ended December 31, 2011 .
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

We expect to meet our liquidity needs through divids received from the Banks, existing cash on hestdblished cash flow sourc
and our senior line of credit with a third partydhcial institution. While the Banks are subjectéotain regulatory limitations regarding their
ability to pay dividends to the Corporation, werdi believe that the Corporation will be adversafgcted by these dividend limitations. The
Corporation’s principal liquidity requirements ae&mber 31, 2012 are the repayment of the outstgrdilance on its senior line of credit,
interest payments due on subordinated notes aexksitpayments due on junior subordinated noteSeptember 2012, FBB declared and pai
a dividend in the amount of $6.0 million to the Gaoration. Prior to this payment, the Banks hadmade any dividend payments to the
Corporation since 2000. The capital ratios of tlegpOration and its subsidiaries continue to mdetm@licable regulatory capital adequacy
requirements and have either remained stable @ slaown signs of improvement from December 31, 20ltie Corporation's and the Banks'
respective Boards of Directors and management teamsre to the appropriate regulatory guidelinedemsions which affect their capital
positions, including but not limited to, decisiam$ating to the payment of dividends and increaginigbtedness.

The Banks maintain liquidity by obtaining fundsrfrseveral sources. The Banks’ primary sourcesraddiare principal and interest
payments on loans receivable and mortgage-relamgisies, deposits and other borrowings, suctedsrl funds and FHLB advances. The
scheduled payments of loans and mortgage-relategises are generally a predictable source of umtkposit flows and loan prepayments,
however, are greatly influenced by general interatsts, economic conditions and competition.

We view on-balance-sheet liquidity as a criticaneént to maintaining adequate liquidity to meetaash and collateral obligations.
We define our on-balance-sheet liquidity as thaltot our short-term investments and our unpledgglirities available-for-sale. As of
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 , our inateeon-balance-sheet liquidity was $241.4 milleovd $260.5 million , respectively. At
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 , the Bak$53.1 million and $113.2 millimn deposit with the FRB, respectively. Any exc
funds not used for loan funding or satisfying otbash obligations were maintained as part of odpalance-sheet liquidity in our interest-
bearing accounts with the FRB. We plan to utilizesss liquidity to fund loan and lease portfoliowth, pay down maturing debt, allow run
off of maturing brokered certificates of depositjrvest in securities to maintain adequate ligyidt an improved margin.

We had $374.4 million of outstanding brokered dépa@t December 31, 2012 , compared to $446.7aniliif brokered deposits as of
December 31, 2011 , which represented 34.3% ard#l2respectively, of ending balance total depo¥its are committed to our ongoing
efforts to raise in-market deposits and reduceowarall dependence on brokered certificates of siépdowever, brokered deposits are an
efficient source of funding for the Banks and allthem to gather funds across a larger geograplsie agprice levels and maturities that are
more attractive than single service deposits wieenired to raise a similar level of deposits withaishort time period. Access to such deposits
allows us the flexibility to refrain from pursuirsingle service deposit relationships in markets tlage experienced unfavorable pricing levels
In addition, the administrative costs associateti Wiokered deposits are considerably lower thaaetihat would be incurred for a similar
level of local deposits with a similar maturitywstture. Our in-market relationships remain stabteyever, deposit balances associated with
those relationships will fluctuate. We expect ttablsh new client relationships and continue mtnkeefforts aimed at increasing the balar
in existing clients’ deposit accounts. Nonethelesswill likely continue to use brokered deposi@sbmpensate for shortfalls in deposit
gathering in specific maturity periods, typically¢e to five years, needed to effectively matchikerest rate sensitivity measured through ou
defined asset/liability management process. Inrai@erovide for ongoing liquidity and funding, a&lf our brokered deposits are certificates of
deposit that do not allow for withdrawal at theioptof the depositor before the stated maturitye Banks’ liquidity policies limit the amount
of brokered deposits to 75% of total deposits, w&itoal of 50% or less of brokered deposits td tt#posits. The Banks were in compliance
with the policy limits as of December 31, 2012 .

The Banks were able to access the brokered cattfiaf deposit market as needed at rates and tenmgarable to market standards
during the year ended December 31, 2012 . In tbatdhat there is a disruption in the availabitifypbrokered deposits at maturity, the Banks
have managed the maturity structure, in compliavitie our approved liquidity policy, so at least oyear of maturities could be funded
through on-balance-sheet liquidity. These poteffitiatling sources include deposits with the FRB lamdlowings with the FHLB or Federal
Reserve Discount Window utilizing currently unendered securities as collateral. As of DecembeRB812 , the available liquidity was in
excess of the stated minimum and was equal to appately 29 months of maturities. We believe tranBs will also have access to the
unused federal funds lines, cash flows from borrowpayments, and cash flows from security magsgitThe Banks also have the ability to
raise local market deposits by offering attractaies to generate the level required to fulfillithiguidity needs.
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The Banks are required by federal regulation tonta& sufficient liquidity to ensure safe and sowpérations. We believe that the
Banks have sufficient liquidity to match the balamd net withdrawable deposits and short-term lwaings in light of present economic
conditions and deposit flows.

During the year ended December 31, 2012 , operatitigities resulted in a net cash inflow of $1illion . Operating cash flows
included net income of $8.9 million . Net cash usethvesting activities for the year ended DecenBie 2012 was approximately $99.8
million which consisted primarily of cash outfloirem net purchases of securities available for aatkfunding of net loan growth. Net cash
provided by financing activities for the year end@tember 31, 2012 was $39.3 million primarily fraet increases in deposits.

In December 2012, we successfully raised approxiy&29.1 million through the issuance of 1,265,8088res of common stock at a
price of $23.00 per share. The net proceeds dbffieeing, approximately $27.1 million, were immetdily used to repay a portion of
subordinated debt. As of December 31, 2012 outtaaaitios remained in excess of the highest reqguiegulatory benchmark levels. In
addition, the common stock offering improved thenposition of the Corporation's capital by incregsliier 1 capital in the form of equity and
allowing us to pay down Tier Il capital previoudtythe form of subordinated debt. We expect thepneteeds to ultimately support our future
growth plans, including accelerated investmentgaaic growth and the potential for future acqiosis of niche talent and organizations.

The following table summarizes the Corporationd Banks’ capital ratios and the ratios requiredtbyederal regulators at
December 31, 2012 and 2011 , respectively:

Minimum Required to be Well
Capitalized Under Prompt

Minimum Required for Capital Corrective Action
Actual Adequacy Purposes Requirements
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

(Dollars In Thousands)

As of December 31, 2012

Total capital
(to risk-weighted assets)
Consolidated $ 132,04. 129%% $  81,45: 8.0(% N/A N/A
First Business Bank 115,61 12.7: 72,64( 8.0C $ 90,80( 10.0(%
First Business Bank — Milwaukee 15,74: 14.6(C 8,62¢ 8.0C 10,78 10.0C
Tier 1 capital
(to risk-weighted assets)
Consolidated $ 107,35¢ 10.5¢ $  40,72¢ 4.0C N/A N/A
First Business Bank 104,23. 11.4¢ 36,32( 400 % 54,48( 6.0C
First Business Bank — Milwaukee 14,39: 13.3¢ 4,31: 4.0C 6,47( 6.0C
Tier 1 capital
(to average assets)
Consolidated $ 107,35¢ 8.9¢ $  47,75( 4.0C N/A N/A
First Business Bank 104,23. 10.4¢ 39,73 400 % 49,66¢ 5.0C
First Business Bank — Milwaukee 14,39: 6.72 8,56: 4.0C 10,70z 5.0C
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Minimum Required to be Well
Capitalized Under Prompt

Minimum Required for Capital Corrective Action
Actual Adequacy Purposes Requirements
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

(Dollars In Thousands)
As of December 31, 2011

Total capital
(to risk-weighted assets)
Consolidated $ 118,89 13.11% $  72,55¢ 8.0(% N/A N/A
First Business Bank 108,86( 13.3¢ 65,05¢ 8.0C $ 81,32 10.0(%
First Business Bank — Milwaukee 15,07 16.11 7,484 8.0C 9,35t 10.0¢
Tier 1 capital
(to risk-weighted assets)
Consolidated $ 71,72 791 $ 36,27¢ 4.0C N/A N/A
First Business Bank 98,66¢ 12.1: 32,52¢ 400 $ 48,79 6.0C
First Business Bank — Milwaukee 13,89¢ 14.8¢ 3,74z 4.0C 5,61 6.0C
Tier 1 capital
(to average assets)
Consolidated $ 71,72 6.2z $ 46,15 4.0C N/A N/A
First Business Bank 98,66¢ 9.9¢ 39,55¢ 400 $ 49,44 5.0C
First Business Bank — Milwaukee 13,89¢ 7.9t 6,99: 4.0C 8,741 5.0C

Off-balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2012 , the Banks had outstanchingmitments to originate $257.2 million of loamsla&ommitments to extend
funds to or on behalf of clients pursuant to stariélters of credit of $17.8 million . As of Deceen81, 2012 , the Banks had $134.1 millain
commitments to extend funds which extend beyondyeae. We do not expect any losses as a resutesktfunding commitments. We have
evaluated outstanding commitments associated wgthd that were identified as impaired loans andlooed that there are no additional los
associated with these unfunded commitments. We\rethat additional commitments will not be grante@dditional collateral will be
provided to support any additional funds advan@éd Banks also utilize interest rate swaps fopilgoses of interest rate risk management,
as described further iNote 15— Derivative Financial Instruments the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Additionally the Corporation has committed to paeian additional $960,000 to Aldine Capital Fun@, Wwhich is a private equity
mezzanine funding limited partnership in which veed invested and which began its operations inli@ctd006. We expect to participate in
the Aldine Capital Fund Il, LP in 2013.

We believe adequate capital and liquidity are add from various sources to fund projected comimiitts.
Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our contractual aalsligations at December 31, 2012 :

Payments Due by Period

Lessthan 1 More than 5
Total Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years Years

(In Thousands)

Operating lease obligations $ 8,62/ $ 70z % 1,25¢ $ 1,22 % 5,44
Time deposits 442 ,98: 191,71¢ 190,04! 28,94( 32,28:
Line of credit 10 10 — — —
Subordinated notes 11,92¢ — — — 11,92¢
Junior subordinated notes 10,31t — — — 10,31t
FHLB advances 46¢ 46¢ — — —
Total contractual obligations $ 474,32t $ 192,897 $ 191,30: $ 30,16 $ 59,96¢
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith GAAP requires management to make estimatesassumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilitiesdasclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiethatdate of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses dugngplorting period. By their nature, changes is¢hessumptions and estimates could
significantly affect the financial position or rdtsuof operations for FBFS. Actual results coulffedifrom those estimates. Discussed below ar
certain policies that are critical to FBFS. We viexnitical accounting policies to be those which kighly dependent on subjective or complex
judgments, estimates, and assumptions, and whargek in those estimates and assumptions couldahsigaificant impact on the financ
statements.

Allowance for Loan and Lease Lossedhe allowance for loan and lease losses represantgcognition of the risks of extending
credit and our evaluation of the quality of thed@ad lease portfolio and as such, requires the@fiselgment as well as other systematic
objective and quantitative methods. The risks ¢érding credit and the accuracy of our evaluatithe quality of the loan and lease portfolio
are neither static nor mutually exclusive and cogkllt in a material impact on our ConsolidatetbRcial Statements. We may over-estimate
the quality of the loan and lease portfolio resigitin a lower allowance for loan and lease lossas hecessary, overstating net income and
equity. Conversely, we may under-estimate the tualfithe loan and lease portfolio, resulting ihigher allowance for loan and lease losses
than necessary, understating net income and edirityallowance for loan and lease losses is a tratuallowance for probable credit losses,
increased by the provision for loan and lease kase decreased by charge-offs, net of recovaliesestimate the allowance reserve balance
required and the related provision for loan andédasses based on monthly evaluations of thedodriease portfolio, with particular attenti
paid to loans and leases that have been spegjfidalhtified as needing additional management aimlyecause of the potential for further
problems. During these evaluations, considerasaiso given to such factors as the level and casitipo of impaired and other non-
performing loans and leases, historical loss egpesg, results of examinations by regulatory agenaielependent loan and lease reviews, the
fair value of collateral, the strength and avaligbdf guarantees, concentration of credits arfteofactors. Allocations of the allowance ma
made for specific loans or leases, but the enliogvance is available for any loan or lease thagur judgment, should be charged off. Loan
and lease losses are charged against the allowdramewe believe that the uncollectability of a larease balance is confirmed. $éme 1—
Nature of Operations and Summary of Significantd\aging Policiedn the Consolidated Financial Statements for furtiecussion of the
allowance for loan and lease losses.

We also continue to exercise our legal rights @mdedies as appropriate in the collection and dapgfisnon-performing assets, and
adhere to rigorous underwriting standards in oigiation process in order to continue to mainsthong asset quality. Although we believe
that the allowance for loan and lease losses wai®ppate as of December 31, 2012 based upon tileation of loan and lease delinquencies
non-performing assets, charge-off trends, econaomdlitions and other factors, there can be no assarthat future adjustments to the
allowance will not be necessary. If the qualityadns or leases deteriorate, then the allowanckéor and lease losses would generally be
expected to increase relative to total loans aasds. If loan or lease quality improves, then tlosvance would generally be expected to
decrease relative to total loans and leases.

Income TaxesFBFS and its wholly owned subsidiaries file a cdidsted federal income tax return and a combinedddfisin state
tax return. Deferred income taxes are recognizethifuture tax consequences attributable to idiffees between the financial statement
carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilitied their respective tax bases. The determinaficnrrent and deferred income taxes is base
on complex analyses of many factors, includingitierpretation of federal and state income tax |ats difference between the tax and
financial reporting basis of assets and liabilifiesnporary differences), estimates of amountsecitty due or owed, such as the timing of
reversals of temporary differences, and currenbaciing standards. We apply a more likely thanapgroach to each of our tax positions
when determining the amount of tax benefit to rdéorour Consolidated Financial Statements. Defetag assets and liabilities are measured
using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxabbme in the years in which those temporaryedifices are expected to be recovered or
settled. The effect of a change in tax rates oerded taxes is recognized in income in the petiad includes the enactment date. We have
made our best estimate of valuation allowancewinty positive and negative evidence and evaluatiosources of taxable income including
tax planning strategies and expected reversalmofg differences to determine if valuation allowas were needed for deferred tax assets.
Realization of deferred tax assets over time iddpnt on our ability to generate sufficient tagadrrnings in future periods and a valuation
allowance may be necessary if management deterrtiaei is more likely than not that the deferes$et will not be utilized. These estimates
and assumptions are subject to change. Changleeda estimates and assumptions could adversett affare consolidated results of
operations.
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The federal and state taxing authorities who makessments based on their determination of taxrdaaysperiodically review our
interpretation of federal and state income tax lalves liabilities could differ significantly fromhe estimates and interpretations used in
determining the current and deferred income tailltees based on the completion of taxing authyoekaminations.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Marlet Risk

Our primary market risk is interest rate risk, wharises from exposure of our financial positiohanges in interest rates. It is our
strategy to reduce the impact of interest rateaisket interest margin by maintaining a favorabégch between the maturities and repricing
dates of interest-earning assets and interestrgphabilities. This strategy is monitored by tlespective Banks’ Asset/Liability Management
Committees, in accordance with policies approvetheyrespective Bank8oards. These committees meet regularly to reviEnsensitivity o
their respective Bank’s assets and liabilitiesharges in interest rates, liquidity needs and ssy@nd pricing and funding strategies.

We use two techniques to measure interest rate ek first is simulation of earnings. In this ma@snent technique the balance sl
is modeled as an ongoing entity whereby future ginpwricing, and funding assumptions are implemg:ntdese assumptions are modeled
under different rate scenarios that include a gimmglous, instant and sustained change in intextest.r

The following table illustrates the potential impa€ changes in market rates on our net interestnire for the next twelve months, as
of December 31, 2012 . Given the current low irgerate environment, we do not expect that intesgst will fall by greater than 50 basis
points from December 31, 2012 levels. We also asshiat managed rate liability prices will rise ataanount less than the instantaneous rate
shock in the below scenarios.

Change in interest rates in basis points Down 50 No Change Up 100 Up 200 Up 300 Up 400
Impact on net interest income (0.60% — (2.90% (1.49% (3.71)% (2.19%

The second measurement technique used is stat@ngdysis. Gap analysis involves measurement difference in asset and
liability repricing on a cumulative basis withirspecified time frame. In general, a positive gapidates that more interest-earning assets thatr
interest-bearing liabilities reprice/mature inmdi frame and a negative gap indicates the oppdstehown in the cumulative gap position in
the table presented below, at December 31, 20#2reist-bearingjabilities have the general characteristics thiditallow them to reprice fast
than interest-earning assets in the short-terradtition to the gap position, other determinantsetfinterest income are the shape of the yielc
curve, general rate levels and the correspondifegtedf contractual interest rate floors, reinvestinspreads, balance sheet growth and mix,
and interest rate spreads. Our recent successagtatg in-market deposits adds to the intergstliability sensitivity of the organization.
During recent years many of our variable rate It certain of our variable rate borrowings haeerbpriced at a rate equivalent to a fixed
spread above a market rate index combined witimi@nast rate floor. These interest rate floorgiaghe rate from repricing in tandem with
market rates. As rates increase, these interesfloatrs will restrict the subject assets and liibs from experiencing rate increases until the
interest rate floor is exceeded which may put presen net interest margin.

We manage the structure of interest-earning asseténteresbearing liabilities by adjusting their mix, yielchaturity and/or repricin
characteristics based on market conditions. Brakeegtificates of deposit are a significant sowtinds. We use a variety of maturities to
augment our management of interest rate exposure.
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The following table illustrates our static gap pasi.

Assets:
Short-term investments
Investment securities
Commercial loans
Real estate loans
Asset-based loans
Lease receivables
Consumer loans

Total earning assets
Liabilities
Interest-bearing transaction
Money market accounts
Time deposits under $250,000
Time deposits $250,000 and over
FHLB advances
Short-term borrowings
Long-term debt

Total interest-bearing liabilities
Interest rate gap
Cumulative interest rate gap

Cumulative interest rate gap to total earning asset

Estimated Maturity or Repricing at December 31,201

Within 3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years After 5 years Total
(Dollars In Thousands)

$ 58,81¢ $ 1,96( $ 3,18¢ — 63,96(

8,027 46,13: 119,36. 27,07( 200,59¢

85,16¢ 22,48: 53,88 2,88:¢ 164,42(

216,25¢ 80,06! 248,01( 58,58 602,91(

114,61 897 — — 115,51«

1,08¢ 4,84¢ 9,52 46¢ 15,92¢

524 50 74 — 64¢

$ 484,49 $ 156,43! $ 434,04 89,00: 1,163,97.

$ 4354. % — 3 — — 43,54:

443,74 — — — 443,74

28,62: 151,89¢ 216,87( 32,28 429,67

2,27¢ 8,91¢ 2,11t — 13,31(

46¢ — — — 46¢

10 — — — 10

5,711 — — 16,53( 22,241

$ 524,37 $ 160,81 $ 218,98! 48,81 952,98¢

$ (39879 $  (4,38) $ 215,05t 40,19( 210,98!

$ (39879 $ (44,26) $ 170,79 210,98t

(3.49% (3.80% 14.67% 18.1%
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF FIRST BUSINESS FINANCIAL SERVICES

The following financial statements are includedhis Annual Report on Form 10-K:

Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&9d2011

Consolidated Statements of Income for the YearsHBidecember 31, 2012 and 2011

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incoméhéo¥ears Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockhdl&epsity for the Years Ended December 31, 2012 @id 2

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the YEnded December 31, 2012 and 2011

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfiinm
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First Business Financial Services, Inc.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,
2012

December 31,
2011

(In Thousands, Except Share Data)

Assets
Cash and due from banks $ 21,62¢ $ 16,70:
Short-term investments 63,96( 113,38t
Cash and cash equivalents 85,58¢ 130,09:
Securities available-for-sale, at fair value 200,59t 170,38t
Loans and leases receivable, net of allowanceofor &nd lease losses of $15,400 and

$14,155, respectively 896,56( 836,68
Leasehold improvements and equipment, net 96¢ 99¢
Foreclosed properties 1,57¢ 2,23¢
Cash surrender value of bank-owned life insurance 22,27: 17,66(
Investment in Federal Home Loan Bank stock, at cost 1,14¢ 2,361
Accrued interest receivable and other assets 17,40¢ 16,731
Total assets $ 1,226,100 $ 1,177,16!
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Deposits $ 1,092,25. $ 1,051,31:
Federal Home Loan Bank and other borrowings 12,40¢ 40,29:
Junior subordinated notes 10,31¢ 10,31t
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities 11,59¢ 11,03:
Total liabilities 1,126,56! 1,112,95
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 2,500,000 stear#®rized, none issued or outstanding — —
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 25,000,000 shatbeazed, 4,011,370 and 2,714,985

shares issued, 3,916,667 and 2,625,569 sharearmditsj at December 31, 2012 and

2011, respectively 40 27
Additional paid-in capital 53,50¢ 25,84:
Retained earnings 45,59¢ 37,50
Accumulated other comprehensive income 2,18: 2,491
Treasury stock (94,703 and 89,416 shares at Deae3ib@012 and 2011, respectively),

cost (1,787 (1,64¢)
Total stockholders’ equity 99,53¢ 64,21«
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 1,226,100 $ 1,177,16

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financaé®ents.
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First Business Financial Services, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Income

Interest income
Loans and leases
Securities income
Short-term investments
Total interest income
Interest expense
Deposits
Notes payable and other borrowings
Junior subordinated notes
Total interest expense
Net interest income
Provision for loan and lease losses
Net interest income after provision for loan arakke losses
Non-interest income
Trust and investment services fee income
Service charges on deposits
Loan fees
Increase in cash surrender value of bank-ownedhgerance
Credit, merchant and debit card fees
Other
Total non-interest income
Non-interest expense
Compensation
Occupancy
Professional fees
Data processing
Marketing
Equipment
FDIC insurance
Collateral liquidation costs
Net loss on foreclosed properties
Other
Total non-interest expense
Income before income tax expense
Income tax expense
Net income
Earnings per common share:
Basic
Diluted
Dividends declared per share

For the Year Ended December 31,

2012

(In Thousands, Except Share Data)

51,12t $ 51,93:
3,417 4,16¢
224 11¢
54,76¢ 56,21:
13,02¢ 17,11¢
2,744 2,52¢
1,11¢ 1,112
16,88t 20,75¢
37,881 35,46
4,24: 4,25(
33,63¢ 31,21
2,92 2,53:
2,02¢ 1,712
2,02¢ 1,481
708 67¢
204 221
811 43¢
8,69¢ 7,06(
17,01¢ 14,89¢
1,27( 1,37¢
1,63¢ 1,49:
1,31¢ 1,25:¢
1,22¢ 994
49C 44¢
1,732 2,48¢
65% 78¢€
58¢ 42(
2,73¢ 2,241
28,66! 26,39"
13,67¢ 11,87
4,75C 3,44¢
8,92¢ $ 8,42¢
33C % 3.2¢
3.2¢ 3.2¢
0.2¢ 0.2¢

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financié®ents
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First Business Financial Services, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

For the Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011
(In Thousands)
Net income $ 8,92¢ $ 8,42¢
Other comprehensive income, before tax
Unrealized securities (losses) gains arising duttiegperiod (509 1,19¢
Income tax benefit (expense) 19t (499
Comprehensive income $ 8,61t $ 9,12¢

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financiaé®ents
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First Business Financial Services, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholdergquity

Accumulated

Balance at December 31, 2010

Net income

Other comprehensive income

Share-based compensation - restricted shares
Share-based compensation - tax benefits
Cash dividends ($0.28 per share)

Treasury stock purchased

Balance at December 31, 2011

Net income

Other comprehensive loss

Issuance of common stock

Exercise of stock options

Share-based compensation - restricted share
Share-based compensation - tax benefits
Cash dividends ($0.28 per share)

Treasury stock purchased

Treasury stock re-issued

Balance at December 31, 2012

Common Additional other
shares Common paid-in Retained comprehensive  Treasury
outstanding stock capital earnings income stock Total
(In Thousands, Except Share Data)

2,597,821 $ 27 $ 2525 $ 29.80¢ $ 1,79 $ (1,54%) $ 55,33t
— — — 8,42t — — 8,42t
— — — — 69¢ — 69¢
34,62¢ — 57¢ — — — 57¢
— — 11 — — — 11
— — — (732 — — (732)
(6,87¢€) — — — — (20%) (209
2,62556! $ 27 ¢ 2584! $ 3750 $ 2,491 $ (1,64 $ 64,21«
— — — 8,92¢ — — 8,92¢
— — — — (30¢) — (30¢)
1,265,001 13 27,06 — — — 27,07¢
1,00(¢ — 22 — — — 22
30,38¢ — 54¢ — — — 54§
— — 107 — — — 107
— — — (82¢) — — (82¢)
(9,445 — — — — (21€) (21¢)
4,15¢ — (77) — — 77 —
3,916,66 $ 40 $ 5350¢ $ 4559¢ $ 2,18: $ (1,787 $ 99,53¢

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financié®ents.
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First Business Financial Services, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31,

2012

Operating activities

Net income $
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea by operating activities:
Deferred income taxes, net

Provision for loan and lease losses

Depreciation, amortization and accretion, net

Share-based compensation

Increase in cash surrender value of bank-ownedhiifierance

Origination of loans for sale

Sale of loans originated for sale

Gain on sale of loans originated for sale

Net loss on foreclosed properties

Excess tax benefit from share-based compensation

Decrease in accrued interest receivable and ofisets

Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payabletardliabilities

(In Thousands)

Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities

Proceeds from maturities of available-for-sale s&es
Purchases of available-for-sale securities

Proceeds from sale of foreclosed properties

Payments to priority lien holders of foreclosedpendies
Net (increase) decrease in loans and leases
Investment in Aldine Capital Fund, L.P.

Distributions from Aldine Capital Fund, L.P.

Proceeds from sale of FHLB Stock

Purchases of leasehold improvements and equipmetnt,
Proceeds from sale of leasehold improvements anigpment, net
Premium payment on bank owned life insurance mslici

Proceeds from surrender of bank owned life insweaddicies

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities

Financing activities

Net increase in deposits

Repayment of FHLB advances

Net (decrease) increase in short-term borrowedsfund
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated notes payabl
Repayment of subordinated notes payable

Excess tax benefit from share-based compensation
Common stock issuance

Cash dividends paid

Exercise of stock options

Purchase of treasury stock

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equiwalent

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofdéhedg

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period $

8,92¢ $ 8,42t
(1,90€) 1,95¢
4,24% 4,25(
3,05¢ 2,40¢
54¢ 57¢
(703 (67€)
(1,54¢) (1,289
1,69t 1,29(
(147) (6)
58¢E 42(
(107) (12)
64¢€ 79¢
712 (569)
15,99¢ 17,57
56,99. 44,15(
(90,407 (62,000
1,95¢ 2,21°
(367) —
(65,629 16,87¢
— (210)

89 81
1,22¢ —
(561) (411
— 46
(4,025) (32
11€ —
(99,809 71€
40,94: 63,01+
(139 (2,012
(800C) 80C
6,21¢ —
(33,289 -
107 11
27,07 -
(73¢) (729)
22 —
(216) (109)
39,30: 60,98:
(44,507 79,27:
130,09: 50,81¢
8558t $ 130,09:

Supplementary cash flow information



Interest paid on deposits and borrowings $ 17,80(

Income taxes paid 5,71¢
Transfer to foreclosed properties 1,511
Reissuance of treasury stock 77

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financiaé®ents.
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First Business Financial Services, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 — Nature of Operations and Summary of Sigridant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations.The accounting and reporting practices of FirstiBess Financial Services (the “Corporation”), itsaly-owned
subsidiaries, First Business Bank (“FBB”) and FBssiness Bank — Milwaukee (“FBB — Milwaukee”) haween prepared in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. BRB FBB — Milwaukee are sometimes referred to togreds the “Banks FBB operates as
commercial banking institution in the Madison, Wissin market, consisting primarily of Dane Countyl ¢he surrounding areas, with loan
production offices in Oshkosh, Appleton, and GrBaw, Wisconsin. FBB also offers trust and investhsamvices through First Business
Trust & Investments (“FBTI"), a division of FBB. BB— Milwaukee operates as a commercial bankingtiutitn in the Milwaukee, Wisconsin
market, consisting primarily of Waukesha County #trelsurrounding areas. The Banks provide a faljeaof financial services to businesses,
business owners, executives, professionals andragtvorth individuals. The Banks are subject tmpetition from other financial institutions
and service providers and are also subject to atatdederal regulations. FBB has the followingsdiaries: First Business Capital Corp.
(“FBCC"), First Madison Investment Corp. ("FMIC'Hjrst Business Equipment Finance, LLC ("FBEF") &BB Real Estate, LLC
("FBBRE"). FMIC is located in and was formed untlex laws of the state of Nevada. Effective Octdhe2011, the Corporation dissolved
FMCC Nevada Corp, a former subsidiary of FBCC. FAB~aukee has one subsidiary, FBB — Milwaukee Resthte, LLC ("FBBMRE").

Basis of Financial Statement PresentatioriThe Consolidated Financial Statements include tceunts of the Corporation and its wholly-
owned subsidiaries. In accordance with the promisiof Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Tog10, the Corporation’s ownership
interest in FBFS Statutory Trust Il ("Trust 11") $iaot been consolidated into the financial statemeil significant intercompany balances ¢
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Management of the Corporation is required to maitenates and assumptions that affect the reportexiats of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiehatdate of the financial statements as well asrted amounts of revenues and expenses durir
the reporting period. Actual results could diffegréficantly from those estimates. Material estiesathat could experience significant changes
in the near-term include the value of foreclosempprty, lease residuals, property under operatiagds, securities, income taxes and the leve
of the allowance for loan and lease losses. Sulesgevents have been evaluated through the isswétive Consolidated Financial
Statements. No significant subsequent events hewged through this date requiring adjustmenh#ofinancial statements or disclosures.

Cash and Cash EquivalentsThe Corporation considers federal funds sold, @gebearing deposits and short-term investmentdhthee
original maturities of three months or less to hstcequivalents.

Securities Available-for-Sale.The Corporation classifies its investment and negtgrelated securities as available-for-sale, teelahaturity
and trading. Debt securities that the Corporatias the positive intent and ability to hold to maguare classified as held-to-maturity and are
stated at amortized cost. Debt and equity secsifitiight expressly for the purpose of selling sribar term are classified as trading securitie
and are measured at fair value with unrealizedsgaimdl losses reported in earnings. Debt and esedyrities not classified as held-to-maturity
or as trading are classified as available-for-salailable-for-sale securities are measured atfaline with unrealized gains and losses reporte
as a separate component of stockholders’ equitygfrtax. Realized gains and losses, and declimealue judged to be other than temporary,
are included in the consolidated statements ofriecas a component of non-interest income. Theafastcurities sold is based on the specific
identification method. The Corporation did not halty held-to-maturity or trading securities at Daber 31, 2012 and 2011 .

Discounts and premiums on investment and mortgagkdu securities are accreted and amortized itgoeist income using the effective yield
method over the weighted average life of the s&easri

Declines in the fair value of investment securiagailable for sale (with certain exceptions fobideecurities noted below) that are deemed to
be other-than-temporary are charged to earningsraalized loss, and a new cost basis for the Biesus established. In evaluating other-than
temporary impairment, management considers theHesfgime and extent to which the fair value hasmless than cost, the financial
condition and near-term prospects of the issuet tlha intent and ability of the Corporation to netids investment in the issuer for a period of
time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recoyén fair value in the near term. Declines in fh& value of debt securities below amortized
cost are deemed to be other-than-temporary inmistances where: (1) the Corporation has the intesll a security; (2) it is more likely than
not that the Corporation will be required to sk# security before recovery of its amortized cestidy or (3) the Corporation does not expect t
recover the entire amortized cost basis of therfigcif the Corporation intends to sell a secuntyif it is more likely than not that the
Corporation will be required to sell the securigfdre recovery, an other-than-temporary impairmeite-down is recognized in earnings ec

to the difference between the security’s amortizest basis and its fair value. If the Corporatioesinot
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intend to sell the security or it is not more likéhan not that it will be required to sell the sety before recovery, the other-than-temporary
impairment write-down is separated into an amoeptesenting credit loss, which is recognized imiegis, and an amount related to all other
factors, which is recognized in other comprehensiceme.

Loans and Leasesl.oans and leases which management has the intdrahality to hold for the foreseeable future oriumtaturity are

reported at their outstanding principal balancénaitjustments for partial charge-offs, the alloveaftr loan and lease losses, deferred fees ol
costs on originated loans and leases, and unamadpizemiums or discounts on any purchased loarad.originated or purchased and
intended for sale in the secondary market areazhat the lower of cost or estimated fair valuthmaggregate. Unrealized losses on such |
are recognized through a valuation allowance blyaage to other non-interest income. Gains and $ogsahe sale of loans are also included ir
other non-interest income.

A loan or a lease is accounted for as a troubléd @estructuring if the Corporation, for economidenal reasons related to the borrower’s
financial condition, grants a concession to thedwer that it would not otherwise consider. A trtathdebt restructuring may involve the
receipt of assets from the debtor in partial org$atisfaction of the loan or lease, or a modifaraf terms such as a reduction of the stated
interest rate or face amount of the loan or leaseduction of accrued interest, an extension®hthaturity date at a stated interest rate lower
than the current market rate for a new loan ordewith similar risk, or some combination of thesaaessions. Restructured loans can involve
loans remaining on non-accrual, moving to non-a¢ir continuing on accrual status, dependingndividual facts and circumstances. Non-
accrual restructured loans are included and treaiibdall other non-accrual loans. In addition,adkruing restructured loans are reported as
troubled debt restructurings which are consideretlaccounted for as impaired loans. Generallyruesitred loans remain on non-accrual unti
the borrower has attained a sustained period @fyrapnt performance under the modified loan terreadgally a minimum of six months).
However, performance prior to the restructuringsignificant events that coincide with the restwicty, are considered in assessing whether
the borrower can meet the new terms and whethdodimeshould be returned to or maintained on a¢status. If the borrowes’ ability to mee
the revised payment schedule is not reasonablyessiine loan remains on nonaccrual.

Interest on non-impaired loans and leases is ad@nd credited to income on a daily basis baseti@nnpaid principal balance and is
calculated using the effective interest method.fg@dicy, a loan or a lease is considered impairatigaced on a non-accrual status when it
becomes 90 days past due or it is doubtful thatractual principal and interest will be collectedaiccordance with the terms of the contract. /
loan or lease is determined to be past due if tilver fails to meet a contractual payment andlegihtinue to be considered past due until al
contractual payments are received. When a loaeasel is placed on non-accrual, interest accraidé®ntinued and previously accrued but
uncollected interest is deducted from interestine@nd the payments on non-accrual loans are dgpliaterest on a cash basis. If
collectability of the contractual principal andengst is in doubt, payments received are firstiagpb reduce loan principal. As soon as it is
determined with certainty that the principal ofiarpaired loan or lease is uncollectable eitherubtocollections from the borrower or
disposition of the underlying collateral, the pontiof the carrying balance that exceeds the estiaaeasurement value of the loan or lease is
charged off. Loans or leases are returned to akstai@as when they are brought current in termisodii principal and accrued interest due, |
performed in accordance with contractual termsafogasonable period of time, and when the ultirnaliectability of total contractual princig
and interest is no longer doubtful.

Transfers of assets, including but not limited &otigipation interests in originated loans, thabmgompletion of the transfer satisfy the
conditions to be reported as a sale, includingllesgdation, are derecognized from the Consoliddedncial Statements. Transfers of assets
that upon completion of the transfer do not meetdbnditions of a sale are recorded on a gross katti a secured borrowing identified to
reflect the amount of the transferred interest.

Loan and lease origination fees as well as cediagtt origination costs are deferred and amorteedn adjustment to loan yields over the
stated term of the loan or lease. Loans or ledmgdsult from a refinance or restructuring, othain a troubled debt restructuring, where te
are at least as favorable to the Corporation atetines for comparable loans to other borrowers wsiithilar collection risks and result in an
essentially new loan or lease, are accounted farreswv loan or lease. Any unamortized net feesscospenalties are recognized when the
new loan or lease is originated. Unamortized na lor lease fees or costs for loans and leasessthdt from a refinance or restructure with
only minor modifications to the original loan oake contract are carried forward as a part of ¢hénwestment in the new loan or lease. For
troubled debt restructurings all fees receivedannection with a modification of terms are appléesda reduction of the loan or lease and any
related costs, including direct loan originatiorstsp are charged to expense as incurred.

Allowance for Loan and Lease Lossedhe allowance for loan and lease losses is maiedaat a level that management deems appropriate
absorb probable and estimable losses inherentito#in and lease portfolios. Such inherent losses fom the size and current risk
characteristics of the loan and lease portfolicassessment of individual impaired and other probans and leases, actual loss experience,
estimated fair value of underlying collateral, acbeesituations that may affect the borrower’s gbth repay, and current geographic or
industry-specific current economic events. Somegingal and other

65




Table of Contents

loans and leases have risk characteristics thatrageie to an individual borrower and the inhetess must be estimated on an individual b
Other impaired and problem loans and leases mag sk characteristics similar to other loans aabés and bear similar inherent risk of |
Such loans and leases, which are not individualewed and measured for impairment, are aggregatedhistorical loss statistics are used tc
determine inherent risk of loss.

The measurement of the estimate of loss is relipah historical experience, information about thidity of the individual debtor to pay and
appraisal of loan collateral in light of currenbeomic conditions. An estimate of loss is an appnation of what portion of all amounts
receivable, according to the contractual term$af teceivable, is deemed uncollectible. Deternonatf the allowance is inherently subject
because it requires estimation of amounts and ¢jrafrexpected future cash flows on impaired an@oginoblem loans and leases, estimation
of losses on types of loans and leases based tmitéd losses and consideration of current econdrands, both local and national. Based on
managemens periodic review using all previously mentionedtipent factors, a provision for loan and leasedéssis charged to expense. L
and lease losses are charged against the allovaadcecoveries are credited to the allowance.

The allowance for loan and lease losses contaifgpallowances established for expected lossempaired loans and leases. Impaired
loans and leases are defined as loans and leasghifh, based on current information and evenis,probable that the Corporation will be
unable to collect scheduled principal and intepagtments according to the contractual terms ofdae or lease agreement. Loans and leases
subject to impairment are defined as ramtrual and restructured loans and leases exclogsmaller homogeneous loans such as home e
installment and 1-4 family residential loans. Intpdiloans and leases are evaluated on an indivizhsig to determine the amount of specific
reserve or charge-off required, if any.

The measurement value of impaired loans and léasketermined based on the present value of exphéutiere cash flows discounted at the
loan’s effective interest rate (the contractuabiast rate adjusted for any net deferred loandeessts, premium, or discount existing at the
origination or acquisition of the loan), the markete of the loan or lease, or the fair valuehaf tinderlying collateral less costs to sell, if the
loan or lease is collateral dependent. A loan asdes collateral dependent if repayment is expdctée provided principally by the underlyi
collateral. A loan’s effective interest rate maynoge over the life of the loan based on subsequramiges in rates or indices or may be fixed &
the rate in effect at the date the loan was detexchio be impaired.

Subsequent to the initial impairment, any significehange in the amount or timing of an impaireghlor lease’s future cash flows will result
in a reassessment of the valuation allowance trahie if an adjustment is necessary. Measurentiasisd on observable market price or fair
value of the collateral may change over time amnire a reassessment of the valuation allowantteit is a significant change in either
measurement base. Any increase in the present ghkmpected future cash flows attributable toghesage of time is recorded as interest
income accrued on the net carrying amount of tha lar lease at the effective interest rate usaistmunt the impaired loan or lease’s
estimated future cash flows. For the year endecidber 31, 2012 , no interest income was recogrdmedo the increase of the present value
of future cash flows attributable to the passagénoé. Any change in present value attributableftanges in the amount or timing of expected
future cash flows is recorded as loan loss expende same manner in which impairment was inifiadicognized or as a reduction of loan
expense that otherwise would be reported. Wherkttet of loan or lease impairment is measuredgusivservable market price or fair value
of collateral, any change in the observable markiee of an impaired loan or lease or fair valu¢hef collateral of an impaired collateral-
dependent loan or lease is recorded as loan IgEnee in the same manner in which impairment witialip recognized. Any increase in the
observable market value of the impaired loan cgdear fair value of the collateral in an impairedlateral-dependent loan or lease is recordec
as a reduction in the amount of loan loss expédmseotherwise would be reported.

Loans Held for Sale.Loans held for sale consist of the current origorabf certain 1-4 family mortgage loans and aneied at lower of cost
or fair value. Fees received from the borrower dinelct costs to originate the loan are deferredrandrded as an adjustment of the sales pric
There were no loans held for sale outstanding aebBer 31, 2012 or 2011 .

Net Investment in Direct Financing Leases\et investment in direct financing lease agreemeaysesents total undiscounted payments plus
estimated unguaranteed residual value (approxignata to 20%of the cost of the related equipment) and is rembab lease receivables wi
the lease is signed and the leased property igedleti to the client. The excess of the minimumdess/ments and residual values over the co
of the equipment is recorded as unearned leasenimddnearned lease income is recognized over thedethe lease on a basis which results
in an approximate level rate of return on the uoveced lease investment. Lease payments are rebafiten due under the lease contract.
Residual values are established at lease inceptjoal to the estimated value to be received fraetiuipment following termination of the
initial lease and such estimated value considérglavant information and circumstances regardirgequipment. In estimating the
equipment’s fair value at lease termination, thepBmation relies on internally or externally pregéuappraisals, published sources of used
equipment prices and historical experience adjustekinown current industry and economic trendse Torporation’s estimates are
periodically reviewed to ensure reasonablenessefiemthe amounts the Corporation will
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ultimately realize could differ from the estimai@ahounts. When there are other than temporary decimthe Corporation’s carrying amount
of the unguaranteed residual value, the carryimgevis reduced and charged to non-interest expense.

Operating LeasesMachinery and equipment are leased to clients uoperating leases and are recorded at cost. Equipumeer such leases
is depreciated over the estimated useful life ontef the lease, if shorter. The impairment lobanly, would be charged to expense in the
period it becomes evident. Rental income is reabatethe straight-line accrual basis as other mberést income.

Leasehold Improvements and EquipmentThe cost of capitalized leasehold improvementsrisréized on the straight-line method over the
lesser of the term of the respective lease or asticheconomic life. Equipment is stated at cost é&&sumulated depreciation and amortization
which is calculated by the straight-line methodrabe estimated useful lives of three to ten yedigntenance and repair costs are charged tc
expense as incurred. Improvements which extendgsbgul life are capitalized and depreciated overr#imaining useful life of the assets.

Foreclosed PropertiesProperty acquired by repossession, foreclosure aieled in lieu of foreclosure is carried at thedowf the recorded
investment in the loan at the time of acquisitiothe fair value of the underlying property, lessts to sell. Any write-down in the carrying
value of a loan or lease at the time of acquisitgocharged to the allowance for loan and leasselsAny subsequent write-downs to reflect
current fair market value, as well as gains andds®n disposition and revenues are recorded Hinterest expense. Costs relating to the
development and improvement of the property aréalged while holding period costs are chargedttter non-interest expense. Foreclosed
properties are included in foreclosed propertiesjmthe consolidated balance sheets.

Bank-Owned Life Insurance.Bank-owned life insurance (“BOLI") is reported hetamount that would be realized if the life insuo&

policies were surrendered on the balance sheetB@tel policies owned by the Banks are purchaset e objective to fund certain future
employee benefit costs with the death benefit prdseThe cash surrender value of such policiescisrded in cash surrender value of life
insurance on the consolidated balance sheets @amdjel in the value are recorded in non-interesinigc The total death benefit of all of the
BOLI policies was $56.9 million as of December 2Q12 . There are no restrictions on the use of B@bteeds nor are there any contractual
restrictions on the ability to surrender the palidg of each of December 31, 2012 and 2011 , tivere no borrowings against the cash
surrender value of the BOLI policies.

Federal Home Loan Bank StockThe Banks own shares in the Federal Home Loan Babkicago (“FHLB") as required for membership to
the FHLB. The minimum required investment was $titlion as of December 31, 2012 . FHLB stock isrigat at cost which approximates its
fair value because the shares can be resold to mimaber banks at their $100 per share par amdbetCorporation periodically evaluates its
holding in FHLB stock for impairment. Should thedk be impaired, it would be written down to it$imsited fair value. There were no
impairments recorded on FHLB stock during the yeamded December 31, 2012 and 2011 .

Other Investments. The Corporation owns certain equity investmentstier corporate organizations which are not codatdid because the
Corporation does not own more than a 50% inteneskercise control over the organization. Such stwents are not variable interest entities.
Investments in corporations representing at le@8%a interest are generally accounted for usingethéty method and investments in
corporations representing less than 20% interesgamnerally accounted for at cost. Investmentsniitdd partnerships representing from at
least a 3% up to a 50% interest in the entity amegally accounted for using the equity methodiamdstments in limited partnerships
representing less than 3% are generally accountedt £ost. All of these investments are periodijoavaluated for impairment. Should an
investment be impaired, it would be written dowrtsoestimated fair value. The equity investmemésraported in other assets and the income
and expense from such investments, if any, is teddn non-interest income and non-interest expense

Derivative Instruments. The Corporation uses derivative instruments togutodgainst the risk of adverse price or inter&s movements on
the value of certain assets, liabilities, futuretcflows and economic hedges for written clientv@give contracts. Derivative instruments
represent contracts between parties that usuajlyinelittle or no initial net investment and reisnlone party delivering cash to the other party
based on a notional amount and an underlying asfegukin the contract. A notional amount represeht number of units of a specific item,
such as currency units. An underlying representriable, such as an interest rate. The amourdsif delivered from one party to the other is
determined based on the interaction of the notianaunt of the contract with the underlying.

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from an atke change in interest rates, exchange ratesiiy @gices. The Corporatiog’primary marke
risk is interest rate risk. Instruments designethtmage interest rate risk include interest ratpswinterest rate options and interest rate caps
and floors with indices that relate to the pricofgspecific assets and liabilities. The nature aoldme of the derivative instruments used to
manage interest rate risk depend on the levelypwldf assets and liabilities on the balance shegthe risk management strategies for the
current and anticipated rate environments.
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Counterparty risk with respect to derivative instents occurs when a counterparty to a derivatiméraot with an unrealized gain fails to
perform according to the terms of the agreementun@oparty risk is managed by limiting the coungetigs to highly rated dealers and requ
collateral postings when values are in deficit poss, applying uniform credit standards to alivaties with credit risk and monitoring the size
and the maturity structure of the derivative pditfo

All derivative instruments are to be carried at failue on the consolidated balance sheets. Trmuatiag for the gain or loss due to changes il
the fair value of a derivative instrument dependsvbether the derivative instrument qualifies d&®dge. If the derivative instrument does not
qualify as a hedge, the gains or losses are raportearnings when they occur. However, if thedsive instrument qualifies as a hedge, the
accounting varies based on the type of risk beadgbd. In 2012 and 2011 , the Corporation solelized interest rate swaps which did not
qualify for hedge accounting and therefore all gjeamin fair value and gains and losses on thes®iments were reported in earnings as they
occurred.

Income Taxes.Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are agrtbannually for temporary differences in timirgeen the financial
statement and tax basis of assets and liabiliti@sresult in taxable or deductible amounts infthiere based on enacted tax law and rates
applicable to periods in which the differencesearpected to affect taxable income. The ultimatéizagon of deferred tax assets is dependent
upon the generation of future taxable income dutfiregperiods in which those temporary differenoasome deductible. Management consi
the scheduled reversals of deferred tax liabilitsggpropriate tax planning strategies and projastfor future taxable income over the period
which the deferred tax assets are deductible. Wieerssary, valuation allowances are establisheztitace deferred tax assets to the realizabl
amount. Management believes it is more likely thahthat the Corporation will realize the benefifthese deductible differences, net of the
existing valuation allowances.

Income tax expense or benefit represents the tgadyb@ or tax refundable for a period, adjustedHzyapplicable change in deferred tax assets
and liabilities for that period. The Corporatiordats subsidiaries file a consolidated federal medax return and separate state income tax
returns. Tax sharing agreements allocate taxeadio entity for the settlement of intercompany taXé® Corporation applies a more likely
than not standard to each of its tax positions wdetermining the amount of tax expense or berefietord in its financial statements.
Unrecognized tax benefits are recorded in othéiliiees. The Corporation recognizes accrued irgerelating to unrecognized tax benefits in
income tax expense and penalties in other nondstexpense.

Earnings Per Share Earnings per common share (“EPS”) is computed ugiadwo-class method. Basic EPS are computed\igigy net
income allocated to common shares by the weightethge number of common shares outstanding fopehied, excluding any participating
securities. Participating securities include unegsestricted shares. Unvested restricted shagesasidered participating securities because
holders of these securities receive non-forfeitalblelends at the same rate as the holders of tipdCation’s common stock. Diluted EPS is
computed by dividing net income allocated to commalbares adjusted for reallocation of undistribigarhings of unvested restricted shares b
the weighted average number of common shares detirfor the basic EPS plus the dilutive effect@mmon stock equivalents using the
treasury stock method based on the average maiketfpr the period. Some stock options are diltitive and therefore are not included in
calculation of diluted EPS.

Segments and Related InformationThe Corporation is required to report each opegatggment based on materiality thresholds of ten
percent or more of certain amounts, such as revéuditionally, the Corporation is required to repseparate operating segments until the
revenue attributable to such segments is at |éapeicent of total consolidated revenue. The Carpmr provides a broad range of financial
services to individuals and companies in southreéand southeastern Wisconsin. These servicesdaademand, time, and savings products,
the sale of certain non-deposit financial prodactd commercial and retail lending, leasing and sasvices. While the Corporation’s chief
decision-maker monitors the revenue streams ofdhieus products and services, operations are neahaigd financial performance is
evaluated on a corporate-wide basis. The Corperatlnusiness units have similar basic charactesisti the nature of the products, productior
processes and type or class of client for prodoicgervices; therefore, these business units argidered one operating segment.

Stock Options.Prior to January 1, 2006, the Corporation accoufaedtock-based compensation using the intrinaloe method. Under the
intrinsic value method, compensation expense fgrleyee stock options was generally not recognitéuki exercise price of the option
equaled or exceeded the fair market value of theksin the date of grant.

On January 1, 2006, the Corporation adopted ASGCTB using the prospective method as stock ogtieere only granted by the
Corporation prior to meeting the definition of afia entity. Under the prospective method, ASC Tofl8 must only be applied to the extent
that those awards are subsequently modified, repsed or cancelled. No stock options have beenegtamce the Corporation met the
definition of a public entity and no stock optidmsve been modified, repurchased or cancelled subsétp the adoption of ASC Topic 718.
Therefore, no stock-based compensation was recegjitizhe consolidated statements of income foy#aes ended December 31, 2012 or
2011, except with respect to restricted stock
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awards. Upon vesting of any options subject to A®Pic 718, the benefits of tax deductions in exagggcognized compensation expense
will be reported as a financing cash flow, rathent as an operating cash flow.

Reclassifications Certain accounts have been reclassified to conforte current year presentations.

Future Accounting Changes.

In December 2011, the Financial Accounting Stansl@alard ("FASB") issued ASU No. 2011-1lisclosures about Offsetting Assets and
Liabilities, which included amendments to require an entityisoldse information about offsetting and relatedagements to enable users of
its financial statements to understand the effethase arrangements on its financial positionsTihformation will enable users of an entity’s
financial statements to evaluate the effect ormtabeffect of netting arrangements with certamahcial instruments and derivative
instruments. The amendments are effective for dmeparting periods beginning on or after JanuarQl3, with retrospective application to
the disclosures of all comparative periods preskrftbe Corporation will adopt the accounting staddahuring 2013, as required, and is
currently evaluating the impact on its results péations, financial position, and liquidity.

Note 2 — Cash and Cash Equivalent€ash and due from banks was approximately $21 léom#énd $16.7 million at December 31, 2012 anc
2011 , respectively. Required reserves in the fofither vault cash or deposits held at the Fed@zaerve Bank ("FRB") were $291,000 and
$554,000 at December 31, 2012 and 2011 . Shortiterestments, considered cash equivalents, werd®$6dlion and $113.4 million at
December 31, 2012 and 2011 , respectively. FRBnbakwere $53.1 million and $113.2 million at Deben31, 2012 and 201 Tespectively
and are included in short-term investments on tnsalidated balance sheets. Federal funds solé@bber 31, 2012 and 2011 were
$237,000 and $217,000 , respectively.

Note 3 — Securities

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of ses available-for-sale were as follows:

As of December 31, 2012

Gross Gross
unrealized unrealized Estimated
Amortized cos holding gains holding losses  fair value

(In Thousands)

U.S. Government agency obligations - governmentisped enterpriset $ 19,667 $ 62 $ 8 $ 19,72:
Municipal obligations 11,891 17¢ 43 12,03
Collateralized mortgage obligations - governmesi sl 148,36 3,34¢ (68) 151,64!
Collateralized mortgage obligations - governmertrsored enterprises 17,12¢ 88 (19 17,197

$ 197,06 $ 3,67 % (23¢) $ 200,59t

As of December 31, 2011

Gross Gross
unrealized unrealized Estimated
Amortized cos holding gains holding losses  fair value

(In Thousands)

Municipal obligations $ 2,73¢ % 95 $ — 3 2,831
Collateralized mortgage obligations - governmesi ezl 161,44: 4,022 (64) 165,40:
Collateralized mortgage obligations - governmerirsored enterprises 2,16¢ — (15) 2,15¢

$ 166,34¢ $ 4,117 $ (719 ¢ 170,38t

U.S. Government agency obligations - governmentispeed enterprises represent securities issuetiebiyederal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation ("FHLMC") and Federal National Mortgaggesociation ("FNMA"). Collateralized mortgage
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obligations - government issued represent secsigfimranteed by the Government National Mortgag®diation ("GNMA".) Collateralized
mortgage obligations — government-sponsored erigapinclude securities guaranteed by FHLMC and-ti&1A. Municipal obligations
include securities issued by various municipaliteesated primarily within the State of Wisconsirdaare tax-exempt general obligation bonds.
There were no sales of securities available-fog-daring the years ended December 31, 2012 and.2011

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of iiééesi available-for-sale by contractual maturitybeecember 31, 2012 are shown below.
Actual maturities may differ from contractual matigs because issuers have the right to call gggyrebligations without call or prepayment
penalties.

Estimated
Amortized Cos Fair Value

(In Thousands)

Due in one year or less $ 5 % 5
Due in one year through five years 14,13( 14,18
Due in five through ten years 23,47: 23,86¢
Due in over ten years 159,45 162,54:

$ 197,06: $ 200,59¢

The table below shows the Corporation’s gross Uizezhlosses and fair value of investments, agdegtby investment category and length of
time that individual investments were in a continsiainrealized loss position at December 31, 2082841 . At December 31, 2012 and
2011 , the Corporation had 30 securities and 9rgexmithat were in an unrealized loss positiospeetively. Such securities have not
experienced credit rating downgrades, but havearilyndeclined in value due to the current interes¢ environment. At December 31, 2012 ,
the Corporation held no securities that had beendantinuous loss position for twelve months aager.

The Corporation also has not specifically idendifsecurities in a loss position that it intendseé in the near term and does not believe that i
will be required to sell any such securities. Iexpected that the Corporation will recover thérergmortized cost basis of each security basec
upon an evaluation of the present value of the ebepefuture cash flows. Accordingly, no other th@mporary impairment was recorded in the
consolidated results of operations for the yeadedrDecember 31, 2012 and 2011 .

A summary of unrealized loss information for avaliéafor-sale securities, categorized by securipetfollows:

As of December 31, 2012

Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair value losses Fair value losses Fair value losses

(In Thousands)
U.S. Government agency obligations -

government-sponsored enterprises $ 299 $ 8 $ — 3 — $ 299 3% 8
Municipal obligations 3,45( 43 — — 3,45( 43
Collateralized mortgage obligations -

government issued 12,99( 68 — — 12,99( 68
Collateralized mortgage obligations -

government-sponsored enterprises 5,07¢ 19 — — 5,07t 19

$ 24507 $ 13¢ $ — $ — $ 24500 $ 13¢
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As of December 31, 2011

Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair value losses Fair value losses Fair value losses

(In Thousands)
Collateralized mortgage obligations -

government issued $ 16,33t $ 64 $ — 3 — $ 16,33t $ 64
Collateralized mortgage obligations -

government-sponsored enterprises 2,07¢ 15 — — 2,07¢ 15

$ 1841: $ 79 % — $ — $ 18,41 $ 79

At December 31, 2012 and 2011 , securities withiavilue of $23.1 million and $19.6 million , respively, were pledged to secure interest
rate swap contracts, outstanding Federal Home Baauk ("FHLB") advances and client letters of cre8icurities pledged also provide for
future availability for additional advances fronetRHLB.

Note 4 — Loan and Lease Receivables, Impaired Loaasd Leases and Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses
Loan and lease receivables consist of the following

December 31, December 31,
2012 2011

(In Thousands)

Commercial real estate

Commercial real estate — owner occupied $ 144,98t $ 150,52¢
Commercial real estate — non-owner occupied 323,66( 304,59
Construction and land development 64,96¢ 38,12«
Multi-family 58,45¢ 43,90¢
1-4 family 31,94: 43,51
Total commercial real estate 624,01: 580,66
Commercial and industrial 256,45¢ 237,09¢
Direct financing leases, net 15,92¢ 17,12¢

Consumer and other
Home equity and second mortgages 4,642 4,97(
Other 11,671 11,68:
Total consumer and other 16,31 16,65:
Total gross loans and leases receivable 912,70¢ 851,54¢

Less:

Allowance for loan and lease losses 15,40( 14,15¢
Deferred loan fees 74€ 704
Loans and leases receivable, net $ 896,56(  $ 836,68

The total principal amount of loans transferrethicd parties, which consisted solely of participatinterests in originated loans, during the
years endeDecember 31, 2012 and 2011 was $58.3 million argd®iillion , respectively. Each of the transfefshese financial assets met
the qualifications for sale accounting and theref$8.3 million and $29.0 million for the years eddecember 31, 2012 and 2011 ,
respectively, has been derecognized in the Coradelidrinancial Statements. The Corporation hasintong involvement in each of the
agreements by way of relationship management awitsg the loans; however, there are no furthdigaltions required of the Corporation in
the event of default, other than standard reprasiens and warranties related to sold amounts.|ddres were transferred at their fair value an
no gain or loss was recognized upon the transféreaparticipation interest was transferred atearrthe date of loan origination. There wer
other significant purchases or sales of loan aasdeeceivables or transfers to loans held fordiaieg the years ended December 31, 2012
and 2011 .
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The total amount of outstanding loans transferoetthitd parties as loan participations sold at Dawer 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 was
$50.1 million and $49.2 million , respectively, eflwhich were treated as a sale and derecognizédrihe applicable accounting guidance in
effect at the time of the transfers of the finahasets. The Corporation's continuing involvenweitt these loans is by way of partial
ownership, relationship management and all sergiodsponsibilities. As of December 31, 2012 anddbgwer 31, 2011 , the total amount of
the Corporation's partial ownership of loans onGleeporation’s balance sheet was $71.9 million $ril.6 million , respectively. As of
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 , $3.Bbmahd $3.4 million of the loans in this partidipa sold portfolio were considered
impaired, respectively. Since December 2010, thep@ation recognized a total $2.7 million chargéasfsociated with specific credits within
the retained portion of this portfolio of loansaacordance with the Corporation’s allowance fonlead lease loss measurement process and
policies. The Corporation does not share in thégjpant’s portion of the charge-offs. The total@mt of loan participations purchased on the
Corporation's balance sheet as of December 31, &3d December 31, 2011 was $674,000 and $689,@3pectively.

Certain of the Corporation's executive officersediors and their related interests are loan diehthe Banks. As of December 31, 2012 and
2011 , loans aggregating approximately $11.4 nmlaod $11.3 million , respectively, were outstagdimsuch parties. New loans granted to
such parties during the years ended December 32, &0d 2011 were approximately $1.4 million and1$080 and repayments on such loans
were approximately $1.2 million and $6.8 milliorespectively. These loans were made in the ordicaunyse of business and on substantially
the same terms as those prevailing at the timedmparable loans not related to the lender. Norikesfe loans were considered impaired.

The following information illustrates ending bal@soof the Corporation’s loan and lease portfohic|uding impaired loans by class of
receivable, and considering certain credit quatiticators as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 :

Category
As of December 31, 2012 I Il 11 v Total
(Dollars in Thousands)

Commercial real estate:

Commercial real estate — owner occupied $ 117,28 % 9,68¢ % 17,35. $ 76 $ 144,98t
Commercial real estate — non-owner occupied 267,88 29,55 22,99: 3,231 323,66(
Construction and land development 49,13« 2,037 8,38¢ 5,411 64,96¢
Multi-family 50,80¢ 6,81( 79C 46 58,45
1-4 family 18,25¢ 4,657 7,87 1,15¢ 31,94
Total commercial real estate 503,26: 52,74¢ 57,39( 10,61t 624,01:
Commercial and industrial 233,52 9,92: 10,17( 2,84 256,45t
Direct financing leases, net 10,48¢ 3,891 1,54: — 15,92¢

Consumer and other:

Home equity and second mortgages 3,52¢ 157 22C 74C 4,64
Other 10,64: — — 1,03( 11,67:
Total consumer and other 14,16¢ 157 22C 1,77( 16,31
Total gross loans and leases receivable $ 761,43 % 66,72. % 69,32: % 15,227 $ 912,70t
Category as a % of total portfolio 83.4% 7.31% 7.6(% 1.67% 100.0%
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Category
As of December 31, 2011 I Il 11 v Total
(Dollars in Thousands)

Commercial real estate:

Commercial real estate — owner occupied $ 117,068 $ 16,48t $ 14,00 % 2,971 $ 150,52¢
Commercial real estate — non-owner occupied 236,86 34,82 30,65 2,24¢ 304,59°
Construction and land development 20,66( 5,36 4,86 7,23( 38,12
Multi-family 34,16: 6,93( 804 2,00¢ 43,90¢
1-4 family 23,26¢ 11,63} 4,99: 3,617 43,51
Total commercial real estate 432,02: 75,24¢ 55,32t 18,07¢ 580,66°
Commercial and industrial 198,01¢ 25,07( 12,45 1,55¢ 237,09¢
Direct financing leases, net 11,39¢ 5,02¢ 68€ 18 17,12¢

Consumer and other:

Home equity and second mortgages 3,52¢ 18¢ 25¢€ 1,00z 4,97(
Other 10,45¢ — — 1,22t 11,68:
Total consumer and other 13,98 18¢ 25€ 2,22k 16,65:
Total gross loans and leases receivable $ 65542( $ 10552¢ $ 68,72( $ 21,877 $ 851,54t
Category as a % of total portfolio 76.91% 12.3% 8.07% 2.51% 100.0%

Credit underwriting through a committee process k&y component of the Corporation’s operatingqsuphy. Business development officers
have relatively low individual lending authorityrits, and thus a significant portion of the Corpiargs new credit extensions require approva
from a loan approval committee regardless of tipe ©yf loan or lease, asset quality grade of theitsr@mount of the credit, or the related
complexities of each proposal. In addition, the@oation makes every effort to ensure that theepgopriate collateral at the time of
origination to protect the Corporation’s interasthie related loan or lease.

Each credit is evaluated for proper risk ratingrupagination, at the time of each subsequent rahewpon receipt and evaluation of updated
financial information from our borrowers, or as @tltircumstances dictate. The Corporation useaagrade risk rating system to monitor the
ongoing credit quality of its loans and leases. fislerating grades follow a consistent definitibot are then applied to specific loan types
based on the nature of the loan. Each risk ratirayibjective and, depending on the size and nafute credit, subject to various levels of
review and concurrence on the stated risk ratifg. Corporation groups loans into four loan andteelaisk categories which determine the
level and nature of review by management.

Category | — Loans and leases in this categorpar®rming in accordance with the terms of the mmitand generally exhibit no immediate
concerns regarding the security and viability @ timderlying collateral, financial stability of therrower, integrity or strength of the
borrower's management team or the industry in whiiehborrower operates. Loans and leases in thégogy are not subject to additional
monitoring procedures above and beyond what isiredjat the origination or renewal of the loaneade. The Corporation monitors Category
| loans and leases through payment performancéincea maintenance of our personal relationshipk sich borrowers and continued rev
of such borrowers' compliance with the terms ofdgeeement.

Category Il — Loans and leases in this categonpbaggnning to show signs of deterioration in onenare of the Corporation’s core
underwriting criteria such as financial stabilitganagement strength, industry trends and collatataks. Management will place credits in
category to allow for proactive monitoring and deson with the borrower to possibly mitigate thea of concern and prevent further
deterioration or risk of loss to the Corporatiomté€gjory Il loans are considered performing butaoaitored frequently by the assigned
business development officer and by a subcommitt¢éiee Banks’ loan committees.
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Category lll — Loans and leases in this categoeyi@entified by the Corporation’s business develepnofficers and senior management as
warranting special attention. However, the baldndais category is not intended to represent theunt of adversely classified assets held by
the Banks. Category Ill loans and leases geneealybit undesirable characteristics such as eviglef@dverse financial trends and conditis
managerial problems, deteriorating economic cooaiitiwithin the related industry, or evidence ofexde public filings and may exhibit
collateral shortfall positions. Management contmteebelieve that it will collect all required peipal and interest in accordance with the
original terms of the contract, and therefore Cautgdll loans are considered performing with nodfie reserves established for this category.
Category lll loans are monitored on a monthly bagisnanagement, the loan committees of the Bamksilee Banks’ Boards of Directors.

Category IV — Loans and leases in this categorycansidered to be impaired. Impaired loans ancekehave been placed on non-accrual as
management has determined that it is unlikely tti@Banks will receive the required principal antérest in accordance with the contractual
terms of the agreement. Impaired loans are indallgevaluated to assess the need for the estafdishof specific reserves or charge-offs.
When analyzing the adequacy of collateral, the Ga@fion obtains external appraisals at least ahntalimpaired loans and leases. External
appraisals are obtained from the Corporation’s @t appraiser listing and are independently regte monitor the quality of such
appraisals. To the extent a collateral shortfadlifian is present, a specific reserve or chargeatiffbe recorded to reflect the magnitude of the
impairment. Loans and leases in this category aneitored on a monthly basis by management, the doammittees of the Banks, and the
Banks’ Boards of Directors.

Utilizing regulatory terminology, the Corporatiotentified $22.0 million and $42.6 million of loaaad leases as Substandard as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. No leame considered Special Mention, Doubtful or Las®f both December 31, 2012 and
2011 . The population of Substandard loans is aedudf Category Il and Category IV loans.
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The delinquency aging of the loan and lease pastfw) class of receivable as of December 31, 20tR2011 were as follows:

Greater
30-59 60-89 than 90 Total past
As of December 31, 2012 days past due days past due days past due due Current Total loans

(Dollars in Thousands)
Accruing loans and leases
Commercial real estate:

Owner occupied $ 21C % — — 21C $ 144,00¢ $ 144,21¢
Non-owner occupied — — — — 320,78t 320,78t
Construction and land development — — — — 60,02( 60,02(
Multi-family — — — — 58,40¢ 58,40¢
1-4 family — — — — 30,93" 30,93:
Commercial & industrial — — — — 253,61t 253,61t
Direct financing leases, net — — — — 15,92¢ 15,92¢
Consumer and other:
Home equity and second mortgages — — — — 4,03( 4,03(
Other — — — — 10,64: 10,64
Total $ 21C ¢ — % — % 21C $ 898,37t $ 898,58t

Non-accruing loans and leases
Commercial real estate:

Owner occupied $ — % — 117 % 117 % 65z $ 76¢
Non-owner occupied 2,41¢ — 444 2,85¢ 12 2,871
Construction and land development — — 471 471 4,47¢ 4,94¢
Multi-family — — — — 46 46
1-4 family 74 — 482 55€ 45C 1,00¢
Commercial & industrial 57 — 56( 617 2,22¢ 2,84;

Direct financing leases, net — — — — — _
Consumer and other:

Home equity and second mortgages — — 121 121 491 612
Other — — 1,03( 1,03( — 1,03(
Total $ 2,546 % — ¢ 3,22t % 5771 % 8,351 $ 14,12

Total loans and leases
Commercial real estate:

Owner occupied $ 21C % — 3 117 % 327 $ 14466. $ 144,98t
Non-owner occupied 2,41t — 444 2,85¢ 320,80: 323,66(
Construction and land development — — 471 471 64,49: 64,96¢
Multi-family — — — — 58,45 58,45
1-4 family 74 — 482 55€ 31,381 31,94
Commercial & industrial 57 — 56C 617 255,84: 256,45¢
Direct financing leases, net — — — — 15,92¢ 15,92¢
Consumer and other:
Home equity and second mortgages — — 121 121 4,521 4,64
Other — — 1,03( 1,03( 10,64 11,67:
Total $ 2,75¢ % — 3 322t % 5981 $ 906,720 $ 912,70¢
Percent of portfolio 0.3(% —% 0.3¢% 0.6€% 99.3%% 100.0%
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Greater
30-59 60-89 than 90 Total past
As of December 31, 2011 days past due days past due days past due due Current Total loans

(Dollars in Thousands)
Accruing loans and leases
Commercial real estate:

Owner occupied $ 106 $ — — 106 $ 147,45 $ 147,55¢
Non-owner occupied — 131 — 131 302,21° 302,34t
Construction and land development 3,94 — — 3,94: 26,95 30,89t
Multi-family — — — — 41,89¢ 41,89¢
1-4 family — — — — 40,00" 40,00
Commercial & industrial 25 — — 25 235,51¢ 235,54
Direct financing leases, net — — — — 17,11( 17,11(
Consumer and other:
Home equity and second mortgages — — — — 3,96¢ 3,96¢
Other — — — — 10,45¢ 10,45¢
Total $ 4,07 % 131 % — 3 4,20¢ $ 82557t $ 829,78(

Non-accruing loans and leases
Commercial real estate:

Owner occupied $ —  $ — $ 2011 $ 2011 $ 91 $  2,97¢
Non-owner occupied — 15& 1,62t 1,78( 46¢ 2,24¢
Construction and land development 114 51t 704 1,33¢ 5,89¢ 7,22¢
Multi-family — — 2,00¢ 2,00¢ — 2,00¢
1-4 family 404 224 49t 1,12: 2,38: 3,50¢
Commercial & industrial 21 — 29¢ 31¢ 1,23¢ 1,55¢
Direct financing leases, net — — — — 18 18
Consumer and other:
Home equity and second mortgages — 4C 31t 35& 647 1,00z
Other — — 1,22: 1,22: 1 1,22:
Total $ 53¢ % 934 % 867¢ $ 10,15 $ 1161« $ 21,76¢

Total loans and leases
Commercial real estate:

Owner occupied $ 106 $ — 3 2,011 % 2,117 $ 148,41: $ 150,52
Non-owner occupied — 28¢€ 1,62t 1,911 302,68t 304,59
Construction and land development 4,05¢ 51t 704 5,27¢ 32,84¢ 38,12«
Multi-family — — 2,00¢ 2,00¢ 41,89¢ 43,90¢
1-4 family 404 224 49t 1,12¢ 42,39( 43,51
Commercial & industrial 46 — 29¢ 344 236,75" 237,09¢
Direct financing leases, net — — — — 17,12¢ 17,12¢
Consumer and other:
Home equity and second mortgages — 4C 31t 35E 4,61°F 4,97(
Other — — 1,22: 1,222 10,46( 11,68:
Total $ 461 $ 1,068 $ 8,67¢ $ 1435 $ 837,19( $ 851,54t
Percent of portfolio 0.5% 0.12% 1.02% 1.68% 98.3% 100.0%
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The Corporation’s non-accrual loans and leasesistedsof the following at December 31, 2012 and120despectively.

December 31, December 31,
2012 2011

(Dollars in Thousands)

Non-accrual loans and leases
Commercial real estate:

Commercial real estate — owner occupied $ 76 $ 2,972
Commercial real estate — non-owner occupied 2,871 2,24¢
Construction and land development 4,94¢ 7,22¢
Multi-family 46 2,00¢
1-4 family 1,00¢ 3,50¢
Total non-accrual commercial real estate 9,63¢ 17,96¢
Commercial and industrial 2,84: 1,55¢
Direct financing leases, net — 18
Consumer and other:
Home equity and second mortgage 612 1,00z
Other 1,03( 1,22
Total non-accrual consumer and other loans 1,64z 2,22¢
Total non-accrual loans and leases 14,12 21,76¢
Foreclosed properties, net 1,57¢ 2,23¢
Total non-performing assets $ 15,69¢ $ 24,00:
Performing troubled debt restructurings $ 1,108 § 111
December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
Total non-accrual loans and leases to gross laashéeases 1.55% 2.5€%
Total non-performing assets to total gross loamksleases plus foreclosed properties, net 1.7z 2.81
Total non-performing assets to total assets 1.2¢ 2.04
Allowance for loan and lease losses to gross laaddeases 1.6¢ 1.6€
Allowance for loan and lease losses to non-acdoaals and leases 109.0¢ 65.0:

As of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 20118, i$8lion and $13.3 million of the impaired loangre considered troubled debt
restructurings, respectively. As of December 31,20there were no unfunded commitments assocwitadroubled debt restructured loans
and leases.
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As of December 31, 2012 As of December 31, 2011
Number Pre-Modification PostModification Number Pre-Modification PostModification
of Recorded Recorded of Recorded Recorded
Loans Investment Investment Loans Investment Investment

(Dollars in Thousands)
Troubled debt restructurings:
Commercial real estate
Commercial real estate —

owner occupied 5 $ 33 $ 30z 5 $ 38C $ 352
Commercial real estate — non-
owner occupied 5 88t 803 6 971 90z
Construction and land
development 4 8,04 4,95: 4 8,451 5,692
Multi-family 1 184 47 — — —
1-4 family 13 1,674 1,132 15 3,152 3,031
Commercial and industrial 7 2,25( 931 9 2,392 1,39¢
Direct financing leases, net — — — 1 32 18

Consumer and other:
Home equity and second

mortgage 7 86E 72€ 8 86E 81<
Other 1 2,07¢ 1,03( 1 2,07¢ 1,222
Total 43 $ 16,31¢ $ 9,92t 49 $ 18,327 $ 13,42:

All loans and leases modified as a troubled deditueturing are evaluated for impairment. The reaamrd extent of the impairment of
restructured loans, including those which have Bgpeed a default, is considered in the determonmadif an appropriate level of the allowance
for loan and lease losses.
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As of December 31, 2012 and 2011 , our troubled dedtructurings grouped by type of concession \asrfollows:

As of December 31, 2012 As of December 31, 2011
Number Number
of of
Loans Recorded Investment Loans Recorded Investment

(Dollars in Thousands)
Commercial real estate

Extension of term 2 3 117 2 3 127
Combination of extension and interest |
concession 26 7,121 28 9,85(
Commercial and industrial
Extension of term 3 241 5 40€
Combination of extension and interest rate
concession 4 68¢ 4 987
Consumer and other
Extension of term 2 1,115 5 1,60:
Combination of extension and interest |
concession 6 64C 4 432
Direct financing leases, net
Extension of term — — 1 18
Total 43 % 9,92¢ 49 % 13,42:

The following table provides the number of loand &ases modified in a troubled debt restructudagng the previous 12 months which
subsequently defaulted during the year ended Deeeih 2012 , as well as the recorded investmethteise restructured loans as of
December 31, 2012 .

Year ended December 31, 2012

Number
of
Loans Recorded Investment

(Dollars in Thousands)

Commercial real estate:

Commercial real estate — owner occupied — $ —
Commercial real estate — non-owner occupied — —
Construction and land development 1 11C
Multi-family — —
1-4 family — —

Commercial and industrial — —
Direct financing leases, net — —
Consumer and other:
Home equity and second mortgage — —
Other — —

Total 1 $ 11C
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The following represents additional informationaedjng the Corporation’s impaired loans and leéseslass:

Impaired Loans and Leases

As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Unpaid Average Foregone Interest for,:géne
Recorded principal Impairment recorded interest income interest
investment balance reserve investment” income recognized income
(In Thousands)
With no impairment reserve
recorded:
Commercial real estate:
Owner occupied $ 741 % 741 % — 3 148: $ 14z 2 14C
Non-owner occupied 64¢ 64¢ — 1,23¢ 222 207 lig
Construction and land development 4,94¢ 8,537 — 5,83¢ 24¢ 24 22z
Multi-family 47 414 — 31z 69 60 9
1-4 family 544 677 — 2,21 151 — 151
Commercial and industrial 2,39¢ 2,40¢ — 1,981 162 25 13¢
Direct financing leases, net — — — 4 — 1 (€]
Consumer and other:
Home equity and second mortgages 65€ 657 — 91z 55 1 54
Other 1,03( 1,62( — 1,15( 11z 1 112
Total $ 11,00¢ $ 15,69¢ $ — 3 1513t % 1,161 321 84(
With impairment reserve recorded:
Commercial real estate:
Owner occupied $ 28 28 % 1€ $ 3 $ 2 — 2
Non-owner occupied 2,58 2,582 82¢ 162 33 — 32
Construction and land development 46E 465 174 52¢ 15 — il
Multi-family — — — — — — —
1-4 family 614 614 224 637 36 — 3€
Commercial and industrial 447 3,131 187 1,35( 17¢ — 17¢
Direct financing leases, net — — — — — — —
Consumer and other:
Home equity and second mortgage 85 85 87 10¢ 7 — 7
Other — — — — — — —
Total $ 4,221 % 6,911 $ 1517 $ 2,81C $ 271 — 271
Total:
Commercial real estate:
Owner occupied $ 76 % 76 % 1€ $ 151 % 144 2 14z
Non-owner occupied 3,23( 3,23( 82¢ 1,401 25E 207 48
Construction and land development 5,411 9,00z 174 6,36: 261 24 237
Multi-family 47 414 — 31z 69 60 9
1-4 family 1,15¢ 1,291 224 2,85( 187 — 187
Commercial and industrial 2,841 5,541 187 3,331 341 25 31¢€
Direct financing leases, net — — — 4 — 1 €]
Consumer and other:
Home equity and second mortgages 741 742 87 1,01¢ 62 1 61
Other 1,03( 1,62( — 1,15( 113 1 112
Grand total $ 15227 % 22,60¢ $ 1517 $ 17,94t % 1,43 321 1,111

(1) Average recorded investment is calculated primasiyng daily average balanc
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Impaired Loans and Leases

As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Unpaid Average Foregone Interest Fo:\(leegtone
Recorded principal Impairment recorded interest income Interest
investment balance reserve investment” income recognized Income
(In Thousands)
With no impairment reserve
recorded:
Commercial real estate:
Owner occupied $ 2458 $ 3,66¢ $ — 3 5177 $ 45(C 20 $ 25(
Non-owner occupied 2,24¢ 4,081 — 5,261 424 — 424
Construction and land development 6,38: 9,92 — 7,97¢ 35( 48 30z
Multi-family 2,00¢ 2,24¢ — 3,07t 362 — 362
1-4 family 2,62¢ 3,01¢ — 3,16( 271 10¢ 16¢
Commercial and industrial 1,13¢ 1,32( — 3,82( 384 424 (40)
Direct financing leases, net — — — — — — —
Consumer and other:
Home equity and second mortgages 803 827 — 884 62 61
Other 1,222 1,682 — 1,691 13¢ 6 132
Total $ 18,88t % 26,76¢ % —  $ 31,04 % 2,445 7871 3% 1,66(
With impairment reserve recorded:
Commercial real estate:
Owner occupied $ 517 $ 517 % 12 % 358 $ 81 — % 81
Non-owner occupied — — — — — — —
Construction and land development 84¢ 84¢ 13C 48¢ 48 — 48
Multi-family — — 34 287 — — —
1-4 family 98¢ 98¢ 337 1,017 61 — 61
Commercial and industrial 41¢ 41¢ 27¢ 384 24 — 24
Direct financing leases, net 18 18 18 13 1 — 1
Consumer and other:
Home equity and second mortgage: 19¢ 19¢ 79 20¢ 20 — 2C
Other 1 1 1 1 — — —
Total $ 298¢ $ 2,98¢ % 88t $ 2,751 $ 23t — % 23t
Total:
Commercial real estate:
Owner occupied $ 297 $ 4,18¢ $ 12 % 553t $ 531 20 % 331
Non-owner occupied 2,24¢ 4,081 — 5,261 424 — 424
Construction and land development 7,22¢ 10,77 13C 8,457 39¢ 48 35(
Multi-family 2,00¢ 2,24¢ 34 3,36: 362 — 362
1-4 family 3,61 4,00¢ 337 417 33¢ 10¢ 23C
Commercial and industrial 1,55¢ 1,73¢ 27¢€ 4,20¢ 40€ 424 (1€)
Direct financing leases, net 18 18 18 13 1 — 1
Consumer and other:
Home equity and second mortgages 1,002 1,02¢ 79 1,092 82 1 81
Other 1,227 1,68: 1 1,692 13¢ 6 13z
Grand total $ 21,877 $ 29,757 $ 88t $ 33,79 $ 2,68: 787 $ 1,89t

(1) Average recorded investment is calculated primasiyg daily average balanc
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The difference between the loans and leases retamdestment and the unpaid principal balance o $7llion and $7.9 million as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011 , respectively, reptepamtial charge-offs resulting from confirmeddes due to the value of the collateral
securing the loans and leases being less tharathgng values of the loans and leases. Impairadd@nd leases also included $1.1 milhow
$111,000 of loans that were performing troubledt destructurings, and thus, while not on non-adcruare reported as impaired, due to the
concession in terms. When a loan is placed on ©onsal, interest accruals are discontinued andigusly accrued but uncollected interest is
deducted from interest income. Cash payments d¢etlean non-accrual loans are first applied to ppalc Foregone interest represents the
interest that was contractually due on the notebtiteceived or recorded. To the extent the amotiptincipal on a non-accrual note is fully
collected and additional cash is received, the @@atpon will recognize interest income.

To determine the level and composition of the aflove for loan and lease losses, the Corporaticakbreut the loan and lease portfolio by
segments and risk ratings. First, the Corporati@uates loans and leases for potential impairrossification. The Corporation analyzes
each loan and lease determined to be impaired amdandual basis to determine a specific reserasda upon the estimated value of the
underlying collateral for collateral-dependent Isaor alternatively, the present value of expectesh flows. The Corporation applies historica
trends from established risk factors to each cagegbloans and leases that has not been indivileahluated for the purpose of establishing
the general portion of the allowance.

A summary of the activity in the allowance for loamnd lease losses by portfolio segment is as fallow

As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Commercial Direct
Commercial and Consumer financing
real estate industrial and other leases, net Total

(Dollars in Thousands)
Allowance for credit losses:

Beginning balance $ 955/ % 3977 % 384 $ 24C % 14,15t
Charge-offs (612) (2,739 (1298 — (3,479
Recoveries 37t 66 4C — 481
Provision 1,37¢ 2,82¢ 75 (33 4,24:

Ending balance $ 10,69 % 4,12¢  $ 371 ¢ 207 % 15,40(

Ending balance: individually evaluated for impaimhe $ 1,24«  $ 18¢ $ 87 ¢ —  $ 1,517

Ending balance: collectively evaluated for impainne $ 9,44¢ % 3,947 % 284 % 207 % 13,88:

Ending balance: loans acquired with deterioratedicr
quality $ —  $ — 3 — 8 — 3 —

Loans and lease receivables:

Ending balance, gross $ 62401: $ 256,45 $ 16,31¢ $ 1592¢ $ 912,70t

Ending balance: individually evaluated for impaimhe $ 10,61 $ 284: $ 1,771 $ — 3 15,22°

Ending balance: collectively evaluated for impainme $ 613,39° $ 253,61t $ 1454: $ 15,92¢ $ 897,48:

Ending balance: loans acquired with deterioratedicr
quality $ — 3 —  $ — 3 —  $ —

Allowance as % of gross loans 1.71% 1.61% 2.27% 1.3(% 1.6%
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As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Commercial Direct
Commercial and Consumer financing
real estate industrial and other leases, net Total

(Dollars in Thousands)
Allowance for credit losses:

Beginning balance $ 11,267 % 4277  $ 48z % 24t % 16,27:
Charge-offs (6,339 (47%) (427) — (7,230
Recoveries 30z 473 7C 19 864
Provision 4,31¢ (29¢) 252 (24) 4,25(
Ending balance $ 9,55¢ % 3977 % 384 % 24C % 14,15¢
Ending balance: individually evaluated for impairmhe $ 514 $ 27¢ % 8C $ 18 3 88¢
Ending balance: collectively evaluated for impainne $ 9,04C % 3701 % 304§ 22z $ 13,26
Ending balance: loans acquired with deterioratedicr

quality $ — % — 3 — % — % —
Loans and lease receivables:
Ending balance, gross $ 58066 $ 237,090 $ 16,65: $ 17,12¢ $ 851,54t
Ending balance: individually evaluated for impaimhe $ 18,07¢ $ 155¢ $ 2,228 % 18 $ 21,87,
Ending balance: collectively evaluated for impainme $ 562,59. $ 23554, $ 14,427  $ 17,11C  $ 829,66¢
Ending balance: loans acquired with deteriorateditr

quality $ — ¢ — — 3 — —
Allowance as % of gross loans 1.65% 1.68% 2.31% 1.4(% 1.6€%
The Corporation’s net investment in direct finamcieases consists of the following:

As of December 31,
2012 2011
(In Thousands)
Minimum lease payments receivable $ 12,95, $ 13,48:
Estimated unguaranteed residual values in leasgabpty 4,36¢ 5,31:
Initial direct costs 29 25
Less unearned lease and residual income (1,420 (1,699
Investment in commercial direct financing leases $ 15,92t $ 17,12¢

There were no impairments of residual value ofddgsroperty during the years ended December 32 and 2011 .

The Corporation leases equipment under direct &imgnleases expiring in future years. Some of theases provide for additional rents, base
on use in excess of a stipulated minimum numbéoafs, and generally allow the lessees to purctiesequipment for fair value at the end of
the lease term.
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Future aggregate maturities of minimum lease payserbe received are as follows:

(In Thousands)
Maturities during year ended December 31,

2013 $ 5,04t
2014 3,481
2015 2,221
2016 1,27:
2017 67¢
Thereafte 252
$ 12,95

Note 5 — Leasehold Improvements and Equipment

A summary of leasehold improvements and equipmedeaember 31, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

As of December 31,

2012 2011
(In Thousands)

Leasehold improvements $ 1,26 $ 1,39¢
Furniture and equipment 3,031 2,861
Construction and purchases in progress 77 —
4,371 4,26t

Less: accumulated depreciation (3,409 (3,26€)
Total leasehold improvements and equipment, net $ 96¢ $ 99¢

Note 6 — Other Assets

The Corporation is a limited partner in severalitgd partnership investments. The Corporation i@ general partner, does not have
controlling ownership, and is not the primary vhhginterest holder in any of these limited parshgs. The Corporation’s share of the
partnerships’ income included in the consolidatatesnents of income for the years ended Decemhe2@P and 2011 was $678,000 and
$495,000 , respectively. The Corporation had arntg@uwestment in Aldine Capital Fund, LP, a mezparfund, of $2.0 million and $2.2
million recorded as of December 31, 2012 and 20mHe. Corporation had a remaining commitment to pi®¥unds of $960,000 at
December 31, 2012 . The Corporation also has oapreferred limited partnership equity investmeZhapel Valley Senior Housing, LP. At
December 31, 2012 and 2011 , there was a zerdasist remaining in this tax-preferred limited parship equity investment.

The Corporation is the sole owner of $315,000 oficmn securities issued by Trust Il, a Delawarermss trust. The purpose of Trust Il was
to complete the sale of $10.0 million of 10.5% @xate trust preferred securities. Trust Il, a iholvned subsidiary of the Corporation, was
not consolidated into the financial statementshef@orporation. The investment in Trust Il of $XK) as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 is
included in accrued interest receivable and othsets.
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A summary of accrued interest receivable and adbsets is as follows:

As of December 31,

2012 2011
(In thousands)
Accrued interest receivable $ 3217 % 3,52¢
Deferred tax assets, net 4,58: 2,48:
Investment in limited partnerships 2,00( 2,21¢
Investment in Trust Il 31t 31t
Fair value of interest rate swaps 3,06¢ 3,43¢
Prepaid expenses 1,45 1,467
Other 2,771 3,29¢
Total $ 17,40¢ % 16,73"
Note 7 — Deposits
Deposits consisted of the following:
December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Weighted Weighted
average Weighted average Weighted
Balance balance average rate Balance balance average rate
(Dollars in Thousands)
Non-interest-bearing transaction
accounts $ 161,98! $ 137,11° —% $ 132,23( $ 112,89¢ —%
Interest-bearing transaction accounts 43,54: 34,18( 0.2¢ 23,00« 25,38¢ 0.2¢
Money market accounts 443,74 395,25¢ 0.7¢ 364,08 300,65: 0.9¢
Certificates of deposit 68,59¢ 82,43( 1.17 85,33: 80,32 1.3¢
Brokered certificates of deposit 374,38! 400,69! 2.2t 446,66! 486,59: 2.6€
Total deposits $ 1,092,25. $ 1,049,68 124 $ 1,051,31 $ 1,005,85 1.7¢

A summary of annual maturities of certificates epdsit outstanding at December 31, 2012 follows:

(In Thousands)
Maturities during year ended December 31,

2013 $ 191,71¢
2014 124,13:
2015 65,91:
2016 23,82¢
2017 5,11«
Thereafter 32,28:
$ 442,98«

Deposits include approximately $35.6 million andt&bmillion of certificates of deposit, including brokered dgipgy which are denominated
amounts of $100,000 or more at December 31, 20d26@h1 , respectively.
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Note 8 — FHLB Advances, Other Borrowings and JunioiSubordinated Notes

The composition of borrowed funds at December 8122and 2011 was as follows:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average average average
Balance balance rate Balance balance rate
(Dollars in Thousands)
Federal funds purchased $ — 3 237 0.82% $ — 3 252 0.9(%
FHLB advances 46¢ 2,03¢ 1.5¢ 482 65€ 5.82
Line of credit 10 1,66¢ 4.07 81C 2,23¢ 4.0€
Subordinated notes payable 11,92¢ 37,48 7.0Z 39,00( 39,00( 6.12
Junior subordinated notes 10,31¢ 10,31¢ 10.81 10,31 10,31¢ 10.7¢
$ 22,72C % 51,73: 746  $ 50,607 $ 52,45¢ 6.94
Short-term borrowings $ 47¢ $ 81C
Long-term borrowings 22,24 49,79°
$ 22,72( $ 50,601

The Corporation’s FHLB advances fully mature in fegloy 2013. At December 31, 2012 and 2011 , themewo securities sold under
agreements to repurchase. There were no outstafedlegal funds purchased at any month-end durswgfiyears December 31, 2012 and
2011.

The Corporation has a $21.7 million FHLB line oédit available for advances and open line borrowinich are collateralized by mortgage-
related securities, unencumbered first mortgagesl@ad secured small business loans as noted b&td»ecember 31, 2012 , $21.2 million of
this line remained unused. There were no advanassamding on the Corporation’s open line at Decam34, 2012 and 2011 . Term FHLB
advances totaled $469,000 and $482,000 at Dece3ih@012 and 2011 , respectively. These advanaadilzed interest rates which ranged
from 5.91% to 6.06% at each of December 31, 20122811 , and are subject to a prepayment fee yfdne repaid prior to maturity. None of
the Corporation’s FHLB advances are putable.

The Corporation is required to maintain, as coti{enortgage-related securities and unencumbérstchiortgage loans and secured small
business loans in its portfolio aggregating attléaes amount of outstanding advances from the FHIld&ns totaling approximately $35.4
million and $23.9 million and collateralized morggaobligations totaling approximately $18.9 milliand $11.8 million were pledged as
collateral for FHLB advances and unused availal#ditat December 31, 2012 and 2011 , respectively.

The Corporation has a senior line of credit withied-party financial institution of $10.5 millionAs of December 31, 2012, the line of credit
carried an interest rate of LIBOR + 2.75% with@ofl of 4.00% and had certain performance debt cvtsrof which the Corporation was in
compliance. The Corporation pays an unused lineffeés senior line of credit. For the years enBedember 31, 2012 and 2011 , the
Corporation incurred $11,000 and $10,000 of addi#ionterest expense due to this fee. On Februard13, the credit line was renewed for
one additional year with pricing terms of LIBOR #72% with an interest rate floor of 3.25% , a migugtate of February 19, 2014, and the
inclusion of certain performance covenants. Aselfriary 19, 2013, the Corporation was in compliamitie all debt covenants under the
renewed line of credit.

The Corporation has subordinated notes payabl®e&ember 31, 2012 and 2011 , the amount of suteetimotes payable outstanding was
$11.9 million and $39.0 million , respectively. Thigbordinated notes payable qualify for Tier 2 @dpAt December 31, 2012 , $5.7 million of
the subordinated notes bore an interest rate oDRB- 4.75% with an interest rate floor of 7.00% &6d2 million bore a fixed interest rate of
7.50% . There are no debt covenants on the sutzdedimotes payable. $5.7 million of the subordihatetes outstanding as of December 31,
2012 were held by a third party financial instituti This note was renewed in February 2013. Th@ngriand maturity date of this renewed
instrument is LIBOR + 4.75% with an interest rdtof of 6.00% and May 15, 2021 , respectively. Témaining $6.2 million of the
subordinated notes consists of notes which the @2ation offered and sold to certain accredited stwes in 2012. The notes were structured te
qualify as Tier 2 capital, mature on January 12228nd bear a fixed interest rate of 7.50% per f@aheir entire term. The Corporation may,
at its option, redeem the notes, in whole or [Erany time after the fifth anniversary of issuaridee Corporation used the net proceeds from
the sale of the notes to repay a portion of itsteeisting $39.0 million of other subordinated reotin
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December 2012, the Corporation successfully radgguioximately $29.1 million through the issuancd @65,00%hares of common stock &
price of $23.00 per share. The net proceeds dbffieeing, approximately $27.1 million , were immatély used to further repay a portion of its
existing $39.0 million of subordinated notes.

In September 2008 , Trust I completed the sa®16f£0 million of 10.5% fixed rate trust preferreztarities ("Preferred Securities"). Trust II
also issued common securities of $315,000 . Ttustdd the proceeds from the offering to purchd€e3million of 10.5% Junior
Subordinated Notes (“Notes”) of the Corporatione Rreferred Securities are mandatorily redeemaiala the maturity of the Notes on
September 26, 2038 . The Preferred Securitiesfyualder the risk-based capital guidelines as Tieapital for regulatory purposes. Per the
provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act, bank holding camigs with total assets of less than $15 billienrast required to phase out trust preferred
securities as an element of Tier 1 capital as othager institutions must. The Corporation useaghoceeds from the sale of the Notes for
general corporate purposes including providing taftil capital to its subsidiaries. Debt issuanogt€ of approximately $428,000 were
capitalized in 2008 and are amortizing over the ¢if the Notes as an adjustment to interest expéssef December 31, 2012 , $368,000 of
debt issuance costs remain reflected in othersesethe consolidated balance sheets.

The Corporation has the right to redeem the Natesatime on or after September 26, 2013 . TheQmition also has the right to redeem the
Notes, in whole but not in part, after the occuceenf a special event. Special events are limitel) a change in capital treatment resultin
the inability of the Corporation to include the Nstin Tier 1 capital, (2) a change in laws or ratiahs that could require Trust Il to register as
an investment company under The Investment Compahpf 1940, as amended; and (3) a change in lawsgulations that would require
Trust Il to pay income tax with respect to intenesteived on the Notes or, prohibit the Corporafiom deducting the interest payable by the
Corporation on the Notes or result in greater thale minimis amount of taxes for Trust Il.

Trust I, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Corpawat was not consolidated into the financial staeata of the Corporation. Therefore, the
Corporation presents in its Consolidated Finar8fatements junior subordinated notes as a lialality its investment in Trust Il as a
component of other assets.

Note 9 — Stockholders’ Equity and Regulatory Capith

On June 5, 2008, the Board of Directors declardividend of one common share purchase right foh eatstanding share of common stock,
$0.01 par value per share (common shares) of theo€ation. The dividend was paid on July 15, 2@&ch right entitles the registered holder
to purchase from the Corporation one-half of omammon share, at a price of $85.00 per full commanresiequivalent to $42.50 for each one-
half of a common share), subject to adjustment.rigtes will be exercisable only if a person orgpaacquires 15% or more of the
Corporation’s common stock or announces a tender fifr such stock. Under conditions describechim $hareholder Rights Plan, holders of
rights may acquire additional shares of the Coramm&s common stock. The value of shares acquiratkuthe plan would have a market value
of two times the then-current per share purchaise pfhe rights will expire on June 5, 2018.

The Corporation and the Banks are subject to vaniegulatory capital requirements administered é&yefFal and State of Wisconsin banking
agenciesFailure to meet minimum capital requirements caultén certain mandatory, and possibly additiatiatretionary actions on the p
of regulators, that if undertaken, could have aaimaterial effect on the Banks’ assets, liak#itand certain off-balance sheet items as
calculated under regulatory practices. The Corpurat and the Banks’ capital amounts and clasgifics are also subject to qualitative
judgments by the regulators about componentswesghtings and other factors. The Corporation hatated its Capital and Liquidity Actic
Plan (the “Capital Plan”), which is designed tophehsure appropriate capital adequacy, to plafufare capital needs and to ensure that the
Corporation serves as a source of financial stretggthe Banks. The Corporation’s and the Banksirle of Directors and management team:
adhere to the appropriate regulatory guidelinederisions which affect their capital position, indihg but not limited to, decisions relating to
the payment of dividends and increasing indebtesines

As a bank holding company, the Corporation’s aptlit pay dividends is affected by the policies antbrcement powers of the Federal
Reserve. Federal Reserve guidance urges comparsgsngly consider eliminating, deferring or sfigantly reducing dividends if: (i) net
income available to common shareholders for thefpas quarters, net of dividends previously paididg that period, is not sufficient to fully
fund the dividend; (ii) the prospective rate ofréags retention is not consistent with the banldimg company’s capital needs and overall
current prospective financial condition; or (iiijet bank holding company will not meet, or is in g@nof not meeting, its minimum regulatory
capital ratios. Management intends, when appraptiatier regulatory guidelines, to consult with Fleeleral Reserve Bank of Chicago and
provide it with information on the Corporation’stircurrent and prospective earnings and capitaliposn advance of declaring any cash
dividends.
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The Banks are also subject to certain legal, reégujand other restrictions on their ability to pdiyidends to the Corporation. As a bank
holding company, the payment of dividends by thakBao the Corporation is one of the sources ofi$uthe Corporation could use to pay
dividends, if any, in the future and to make otb@yments. Future dividend decisions by the Bankistia@ Corporation will continue to be
subject to compliance with various legal, regulatand other restrictions as defined from time noeti

Qualitative measures established by regulatiom$wie capital adequacy require the Corporationtla@@®anks to maintain minimum amounts
and ratios of Total and Tier 1 capital to risk-weigd assets and of Tier 1 capital to average asSetsl capital generally consists of
stockholders’ equity plus certain qualifying deheat and other specified items less intangibletasseh as goodwill. Risk-based capital
requirements presently address credit risk relatdunbth recorded and off-balanskeet commitments and obligations. Managementussjeas
of December 31, 2012 , that the Corporation andBteks met all applicable capital adequacy requares

As of December 31, 2012 , the most recent notificafrom the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporatiod the State of Wisconsin Department
of Financial Institutions categorized the Banksvadl capitalized under the regulatory framework joompt corrective action.

The following table summarizes the Corporation Badks’ capital ratios and the ratios required byfeéderal regulators at December 31, 2012
and 2011 , respectively:

Minimum Required to be Well
Capitalized Under Prompt

Minimum Required for Capital Corrective Action
Actual Adequacy Purposes Requirements
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

(Dollars In Thousands)
As of December 31, 2012

Total capital
(to risk-weighted assets)
Consolidated $ 132,04: 129% $  81,45: 8.0(% N/A N/A
First Business Bank 115,61: 12.7: 72,64( 8.0C $ 90,80( 10.0(%
First Business Bank — Milwaukee 15,74 14.6(C 8,62¢ 8.0C 10,78 10.0C
Tier 1 capital
(to risk-weighted assets)
Consolidated $ 107,35¢ 10.5¢ $  40,72¢ 4.0C N/A N/A
First Business Bank 104,23. 11.4¢ 36,32( 400 $ 54,48( 6.0C
First Business Bank — Milwaukee 14,39: 13.3¢ 4,31z 4.0C 6,47(C 6.0C
Tier 1 capital
(to average assets)
Consolidated $ 107,35¢ 89¢ $ 47,75( 4.0C N/A N/A
First Business Bank 104,23. 10.4¢ 39,73 400 % 49,66¢ 5.0C
First Business Bank — Milwaukee 14,39: 6.72 8,56: 4.0C 10,70: 5.0C
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Minimum Required to be Well
Capitalized Under Prompt

Minimum Required for Capital Corrective Action
Actual Adequacy Purposes Requirements
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

(Dollars In Thousands)
As of December 31, 2011

Total capital
(to risk-weighted assets)
Consolidated $ 118,89 13.11% $  72,55¢ 8.0(% N/A N/A
First Business Bank 108,86( 13.3¢ 65,05¢ 8.0C $ 81,32 10.0(%
First Business Bank — Milwaukee 15,07 16.11 7,484 8.0C 9,35t 10.0¢
Tier 1 capital
(to risk-weighted assets)
Consolidated $ 71,72 791 $ 36,27¢ 4.0C N/A N/A
First Business Bank 98,66¢ 12.1: 32,52¢ 400 $ 48,79 6.0C
First Business Bank — Milwaukee 13,89¢ 14.8¢ 3,74z 4.0C 5,61 6.0C
Tier 1 capital
(to average assets)
Consolidated $ 71,72 6.2z $ 46,15 4.0C N/A N/A
First Business Bank 98,66t 9.9¢ 39,55¢ 400 $ 49,44 5.0C
First Business Bank — Milwaukee 13,89¢ 7.9t 6,99: 4.0C 8,741 5.0C

The following table reconciles stockholders’ equiyfederal regulatory capital at December 31, 284@ 2011 , respectively.

As of December 31,

2012 2011
(In Thousands)
Stockholders’ equity of the Corporation $ 99,53¢ $ 64,21«
Unrealized and accumulated gains and losses oifisptms (2,187 (2,490
Trust preferred securities 10,00( 10,00(
Tier 1 capital 107,35t 71,72
Allowable general valuation allowances and subaigid debt 24,68t 47,17:
Risk-based capital $ 132,04: $ 118,89!

In December 2012 , the Corporation successfullsechepproximately $29.1 million through the iss@aot1,265,000 shares of common stock
at a price of $23.00 per share. The net proceetigediffering, approximately $27.1 million , weremediately used to repay a portion of
subordinated debt. As of December 31, 2012 caygitads remained in excess of the highest applicedziaired regulatory benchmark levels. In
addition, the common stock offering improved thenposition of the Corporation's capital by incregsliier 1 capital in the form of equity and
allowing it to pay down Tier 2 capital previoustythe form of subordinated debt.

Note 10 — Earnings per Common Share

Earnings per common share is computed using thelags method. Basic earnings per common shamipuated by dividing net income
allocated to common shares by the weighted averagwer of shares outstanding during the applicabted, excluding outstanding
participating securities. Participating securifiedude unvested restricted shares. Unvested cesirshares are considered participating
securities because holders of these securitiesseenen-forfeitable dividends at the same rateaddrs of the Corporation’s common stock.
Diluted earnings per share are computed by dividigigincome allocated to common shares adjustegt&diocation of undistributed earnings
of unvested restricted shares by the weighted gearamber of shares determined for the basic eggmar common share computation plus
the dilutive effect of common stock equivalentsngsihe treasury stock method.
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For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 20¥rager anti-dilutive employee share-based awardietbd 15,236 and 150,321 ,
respectively.

For the Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011
(Dollars in Thousands, Except Share
Data)

Basic earnings per common share

Net income $ 8,92¢ $ 8,42¢
Less: earnings allocated to participating securitie 32¢ 32t
Basic earnings allocated to common shareholders $ 8,597 $ 8,10(
Weighted-average common shares outstanding, exgjumdirticipating securities 2,608,96. 2,507,82
Basic earnings per common share $ 33C $ 3.2t
Diluted earnings per common share

Earnings allocated to common shareholders $ 8597 $ 8,10(
Reallocation of undistributed earnings — —
Diluted earnings allocated to common shareholders $ 8597 $ 8,10(
Weighted-average common shares outstanding, exgjumdirticipating securities 2,608,96. 2,507,82i
Dilutive effect of share-based awards 1,911 —
Weighted-average diluted common shares outstandiwiding participating securities 2,610,87 2,507,82
Diluted earnings per common share $ 32¢ $ 3.2t

Note 11 — Share-Based Compensation

The Corporation adopted the 2012 Equity Incentile Bthe “Plan”) during the quarter ended JuneZB0,2. The Plan is administered by the
Compensation Committee of the Board of DirectorthefCorporation and provides for the grant of ggownership opportunities through,
among other things, incentive stock options andjoatified stock options (“Stock Options”), restadtstock, restricted stock units and
dividend equivalent units. Shares previously awédor grant under the 2006 Equity Incentive Rlidnwe "2006 Plan"), which was terminated
on May 14, 2012, were transferred to the 2012 Fduoitentive Plan. As of December 31, 2012 , 218 dHdres were available for future grants
under the Plan. Shares covered by awards thategxtpiminate or lapse will again be available Far grant of awards under the Plan. The
Corporation may issue new shares and shares feasaury for shares delivered under the Plan.

Stock Options

The Corporation may grant Stock Options to serxecatives and other employees under the Plan. $2ptions generally have an exercise
price that is equal to the fair value of the commbares on the date the option is awarded. Stotki@pgranted under the plans are subject tc
graded vesting, generally ranging from 4 yearsyed@s , and have a contractual term of 10 yelaos any new awards issued, compensation
expense is recognized over the requisite servidegp®r the entire award on a straight-line balis.Stock Options were granted since the
Corporation became a reporting company under tiaries Exchange Act of 1934 and no Stock Optioage been modified, repurchased or
cancelled since that time. Therefore, no stock-dasepensation related to Stock Options was rezedrin the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the years ended December 31, 2@L2CG41 . As of December 31, 2012 , all Stock Ogtigranted and not previously forfeited
had vested.
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The following table represents a summary of Stopkidds activity for the periods indicated.

For the Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011
Weighted Weighted
Options average price Options average price
Outstanding at beginning of year 125,03: $ 22.4: 138,76¢ $ 22.0¢
Granted — — — —
Exercised (2,000 22.0C — —
Expired — — (13,730 19.0C
Forfeited — — — —
Outstanding at end of year 124,03: 22.4: 125,03« 22.4°
Options exercisable at end of year 124,03: 22 4% 125,03: 22 4%
The following table represents outstanding Stockiddg and exercisable Stock Options at the respectinges of exercise prices at
December 31, 2012 .
Options Outstanding Exercisable
Weighted
average Weighted Weighted
remaining average average
contractual exercise exercise
Range of exercise prices Shares life (Years) price Shares price
$15.00 — $17.50 9,98¢ 1.04 $ 15.3¢ 9,98/ $ 15.3:
$17.51 — $20.00 — — — — —
$20.01 — $22.50 60,05( 0.14 22.0C 60,05( 22.0C
$22.51 — $25.00 54,00( 1.87 24.2 54,00( 24.2%
124,03 0.75 22.47 124,03 22.47

Restricted Stocl

Under the Plan, the Corporation may grant resttisteares to plan participants, subject to forfeitypon the occurrence of certain events until
the dates specified in the participant’s award egeent. While the restricted shares are subjeairfeifure, the participant may exercise full
voting rights and will receive all dividends andhet distributions paid with respect to the restdcshares. The restricted shares granted unde
the Plan are subject to graded vesting. Compemsatipense is recognized over the requisite sepgced of four years for the entire award

a straight-line basis. Upon vesting of restrictedre awards, the benefit of tax deductions in exoésecognized compensation expense is
recognized as a financing cash flow activity.

Restricted share activity for the years ended Déegrl, 2012 and 2011 was as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011

Weighted Weighted

Number of average Number of average

restricted grant-date restricted grant-date

shares fair value shares fair value
Nonvested balance at beginning of year 95,86¢ $ 15.1¢ 101,18 $ 14.9:
Granted 37,12 23.0¢ 34,62t 17.0¢
Vested (35,905 15.0¢ (39,939 16.2¢
Forfeited (2,580 18.3: — —
Nonvested balance as of end of year 94,50¢ 18.1¢ 95,86¢ 15.1¢

As of December 31, 2012, $1.5 million of deferoetnpensation expense was included in additionatpacapital in the consolidated balance
sheet related to unvested restricted shares wh&lorporation expects to recognize over approxiyahree years. As of December 31,
2012 , all restricted shares that vested were el For the years ended December 31, 2012
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and 2011 , share-based compensation expense iddlutltee consolidated statements of income totdtB8,000 and $579,000 , respectively.

Note 12 — Employee Benefit Plans

The Corporation maintains a contributory 401(k)imied contribution plan covering substantially atidoyees. The Corporation matches 1(
of amounts contributed by each participating emgéoyp to 3.0% of the employee’s compensation. Tdrp@ation may also make
discretionary contributions up to an additional6.6f salary. Contributions are expensed in thegoencurred and recorded in compensation
expense in the consolidated statements of incomme Corporation made a matching contribution of 3t6%ill eligible employees which
totaled $321,000 and $287,000 for the years endseiber 31, 2012 and 2011 , respectively. Disaratiocontributions of 5.0% , or
$528,000, and 4.8% , or $473,000 , were made 12 20id 2011 , respectively.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Corporatamhdeferred compensation plans under which it gexvicontributions to supplement the
retirement income of one executive and two exeestivespectively. Under the terms of the plansefisrto be received are generally payable
within six months of the date of the terminatioreafiployment with the Corporation. In 2011, onehaf two covered executives received his
final payment under the terms of his deferred campton plan. Pursuant to his plan, contributioeseamade in prior periods to supplement
health insurance costs. This benefit also expmeZDil1. The reduction of expense associated wighptbrtion of the plan due to the reductiol
the liability in 2011 was $16,000 . The expenseeaissed with the remaining deferred compensatiam pi 2012 and 2011 was $58,000 and
$59,000 , respectively. The present value of fupagments under the remaining plan of $566,000%&®8,000 at December 31, 2012 and
2011 , respectively, is included in other liabagi

At December 31, 2012 , the Corporation owned hifurance policies on the life of the executivesecet by the remaining deferred
compensation plan, which had cash surrender valnésieath benefits of approximately $1.9 milliod 5.7 million , respectively. At
December 31, 2011 the Corporation owned life inscegpolicies on the two executives then covereddigrred compensation plans, which
had cash surrender values of approximately $1.Bomiand death benefits of $6.1 million , respeelyv The remaining balance of the cash
surrender value of bank-owned life insurance of.426illion and $15.7 million as of December 31, 2@hd 2011 respectively, is related to
policies on a number of other officers of the Banks

Note 13 — Leases

The Corporation and FBB occupy space in Madisonu¥der an operating lease agreement that expirdalgry, 2028 . FBB has three loan
production offices in Appleton, WI, Oshkosh, Wi da@reen Bay, WI, that occupy office space undeassp operating lease agreements that
expire on November 30, 2017 , January 31, 2018 March 31, 2014 , respectively. FBB — Milwaukeegues office space under an
operating lease agreement that expires on NoveBthe020 . The Corporation’s total rent expense $1a2 million and $1.3 million for the
years endeDecember 31, 2012 and 2011 , respectively. Rergresgois recognized on a straight-line basis. Thpdation also leases
vehicles and other office equipment. Rental expémisthese operating leases was $27,000 and $380@0e years ended December 31, 201
and 2011 , respectively.

Future minimum lease payments for noncancelableatipg leases for each of the five succeeding yaadsthereafter are as follows:

(In Thousands)

2013 $ 702
2014 624
2015 632
2016 61C
2017 614
Thereafter 5,44
$ 8,62¢
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Note 14 — Income Taxes

Income tax expense applicable to income for thesyeaded December 31, 2012 and 2011 consists dbltbering:

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011

(In Thousands)

Current:
Federal $ 547 % 1,791
State 1,18: (297)
Current tax expense 6,65¢ 1,49¢
Deferred:
Federal (1,75€) 1,83¢
State (150) 11€
Deferred tax (benefit) expense (1,906 1,95¢
Total income tax expense $ 4,75C $ 3,44¢

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities refteetnet tax effects of temporary differences betwtbe carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes aneithtax basis. Net deferred tax assets are inclidether assets in the consolidated balance
sheets.

The significant components of the Corporation’setiefd tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

At December 31,

2012 2011

(In Thousands)
Deferred tax assets:

Allowance for loan and lease losses $ 589( $ 5,421
Deferred compensation 1,13¢ 1,04(
State net operating loss carryforwards 712 753
Write-down of foreclosed properties 18¢ 26t
Non-accrual loan interest 862 734
Capital loss carryforwards 35 10z
Other 50t 117
Total deferred tax assets before valuation allowanc 9,33z 8,43:
Valuation allowance (8 (171)
Total deferred tax assets 9,32¢ 8,42:
Deferred tax liabilities:
Leasing and fixed asset activities 3,26¢ 4,16:
Unrealized gain on securities 1,352 1,547
Other 12¢ 231
Total deferred tax liabilities 4,741 5,94(
Net deferred tax asset $ 458: $ 2,48
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The tax effects of unrealized gains and lossesenivative instruments and unrealized gains ancebss securities are components of other
comprehensive income. A reconciliation of the cleaimgnet deferred tax assets to deferred tax expetsws:

At December 31,
2012 2011
(In Thousands)
Change in net deferred tax assets $ 2,101 $ (2,41%)
Deferred taxes allocated to other comprehensiveniec (195) 46(
Deferred income tax benefit (expense) $ 1,90¢ $ (1,95%)

The Corporation had state net operating loss camgrds of approximately $13.6 million and $14.4liov at December 31, 2012 and 2011 ,
respectively, which can be used to offset futuatestaxable income. The carryforwards expire betv& 6 and 2032 . A valuation allowance
has been established for the future benefits atafile to certain of the state net operating losBes valuation allowance associated with thes
deferred tax assets was $8,000 and $11,000 asceinikeer 31, 2012 and 2011 , respectively. On Jup2®#l, the State of Wisconsin 2011-
2013 Budget Bill, Assembly Bill 40, was signed itdav. The bill provides that, starting with thesfitaxable year beginning after Decembel
2011, and thereafter for the next 19 years, a coetbgroup member that has [@@09 net business loss carryforwards can, aftetrdsing suc
net business loss carryforwards to offset its awaoime for the taxable year and after using shareskk, use up to five percent of the pre-200
net business loss carryforwards to offset the Wisitbincome of their group members on a proport®basis. These net business loss
carryforwards can be used to the extent the indsrattributable to the group’s unitary businesshé# five percent cannot fully be used, the
remainder can be added to the portion that magoffe Wisconsin income of all other combined grongmbers in a subsequent year, until it
is completely used or expired. The Corporationgwels it will be able to fully utilize its Wisconsstate net operating losses under this law an
therefore no valuation allowance has been estaulisin its Wisconsin state net operating losses.

Realization of the deferred tax asset over tindegendent upon the Corporation generating suffi¢@mble earnings in future periods. In
determining that realizing the deferred tax wasanlitely than not, the Corporation gave consideratdo a number of factors including its
recent earnings history, its expected earningkerfuture, appropriate tax planning strategiesexqdration dates associated with operating
carry forwards.

The provision for income taxes differs from thatmquuted at the federal statutory corporate taxaatfllows:

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011
(Dollars In Thousands)
Income before income tax expense $ 13,67¢ $ 11,87
Tax expense at statutory federal rate of 34% agpiencome before income tax expense $ 465 $ 4,037
State income tax, net of federal effect 647 922
Tax-exempt security and loan income, net of TEFRstments (437) (312
Change in valuation allowance 3 (1,249
Bank-owned life insurance (239) (230
Other 12€ 27¢
Total income tax expense $ 4,75C % 3,44¢
Effective tax rate 34.7% 29.05%

Like many financial institutions located in Wiscams=BB previously established a Nevada subsidiaryhe purpose of investing and
managing the Bank’s investment portfolio and pusiig a portion of FBB'’s loans. FBCC also establishéNevada subsidiary for the purpose
of purchasing FBCC's loans. The Nevada investmelnsisliaries now hold and manage these assetsnVastinent subsidiaries have not filed
returns with, or paid income or franchise taxethState of Wisconsin. The Wisconsin Departmem&fenue (the “Department”)
implemented a program to audit Wisconsin finanicisfitutions which formed investment subsidiariesated outside of Wisconsin, and the
Department has generally indicated that it intelodsssess income or franchise taxes on the incéthe @ut-ofstate investment subsidiaries
Wisconsin financial institutions. Prior to the faation of the investment subsidiaries, FBB souglt @lotained private letter rulings from
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the Department regarding the non-taxability ofithestment subsidiaries in the State of WiscorlSBB believes that it complied with
Wisconsin law and the private rulings received fiitva Department. In June 2011, FBB, FBCC and theaDment entered into a settlement
agreement, the terms of which are subject to cenfidlity clauses. However, the settlement of thigter with the Department did not result in
a liability materially different than that which dhéeen previously accrued in the consolidated t&suld financial position.

A summary of all of the Corporation’s uncertain tasitions are as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011
(In Thousands)
Unrecognized tax benefits at beginning of year $ 23 % 2,43:
Additions based on tax positions related to curyeatr — 13
Reductions for tax positions related to currentyea @) 9
Additions for tax positions of prior years 35 4
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (35) —
Settlements — (2,417
Unrecognized tax benefits at end of year $ 16 $ 23

As of December 31, 2012 , tax years remaining dpethe State of Wisconsin tax were 2010 throughl?0Federal tax years that remained
open were 2009 through 2011 . As of December 312 2@here were no unrecognized tax benefits treaerpected to significantly increase or
decrease within the next twelve months.

Note 15 — Derivative Financial Instruments

The Corporation offers interest rate swap proddiesctly to qualified commercial borrowers. The Garation economically hedges client
derivative transactions by entering into offsettintgrest rate swap contracts executed with a frartly. Derivative transactions executed as
part of this program are not designated as acaayhtedge relationships and are markeditrket through earnings each period. The deriv
contracts have mirror-image terms, which resulthépositions’ changes in fair value primarilysafting through earnings each period. The
credit risk and risk of noperformance embedded in the fair value calculatismsfferent between the dealer counterpartiestaadommercie
borrowers which may result in a difference in thamges in the fair value of the mirror-image swdjpge Corporation incorporates credit
valuation adjustments to appropriately reflect bttfown non-performance risk and the counterpantigk in the fair value measurements.
When evaluating the fair value of its derivativentacts for the effects of non-performance anditresk, the Corporation considered the
impact of netting and any applicable credit enharer@s such as collateral postings, thresholds aachgtees.

At December 31, 2012 , the aggregate amortizingpnak value of interest rate swaps with various gwrcial borrowers was $64.9 million .
The Corporation receives fixed rates and paysifigatites based upon LIBOR on the swaps with coriadvorrowers. The aggregate
amortizing notional value of interest rate swapthwliealer counterparties was also $64.9 millidhe Corporation pays fixed rates and rece
floating rates based upon LIBOR on the swaps waidlel counterparties. These interest rate swapseniat February, 2013 through February,
2023 . The commercial borrower swaps were repanethe Corporation’s balance sheet as a derivasget of $3.1 million and were included
in accrued interest receivable and other assetdeDeounterparty swaps were reported on the Catjpors balance sheet as a net derivative
liability of $3.1 million due to master netting asdttlement contracts with dealer counterpartiesvegre included in accrued interest payable
and other liabilities as of December 31, 2012 .

The table below provides information about the timraand fair value of the Corporation’s derivatimetruments as of December 31, 2012 an
2011.
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Interest Rate Swap Contracts

Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives
Balance Sheet Balance Sheet
Location Fair Value Location Fair Value

(In Thousands)

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments
December 31, 2012 Other assets $ 3,06¢ Other liabilities $ 3,06¢
December 31, 2011 Other assets $ 3,43<¢ Other liabilities $ 3,43¢

No derivative instruments held by the Corporationthe year endeDecember 31, 2012 were considered hedging instrtan&t changes in
the fair value of these instruments are recordeathier non-interest income . Given the mirror-imggyens of the outstanding derivative
portfolio the change in fair value for the year eddecember 31, 2012 and 2011 had no net impaleetoonsolidated income statement.

Note 16 — Commitments and Contingencies

The Banks are party to financial instruments wihbalance-sheet risk in the normal course of besénto meet the financing needs of clients.
These financial instruments include commitmentsxiend credit and standby letters of credit andlve, to varying degrees, elements of
credit and interest rate risk in excess of the art®recognized in the Consolidated Financial Statém The contract amounts reflect the e;
of involvement the Banks have in these particulasses of financial instruments.

In the event of non-performance, the Banks’ exposoiicredit loss for commitments to extend credd standby letters of credit is representec
by the contractual amount of these instruments.Bdrgks use the same credit policies in making cdmanits and conditional obligations as
they do for instruments reflected in the Consobddatinancial Statements. An accrual for creditdesen financial instruments with off-
balance-sheet risk would be recorded separate dronvaluation account related to any such recodrfisancial instrument. As of

December 31, 2012 and 2011 , there were no accredit losses for financial instruments with offidogce-sheet risk.

Financial instruments whose contract amounts reptgsotential credit risk at December 31, 2012 201l , respectively, are as follows:

At December 31,

2012 2011
(In Thousands)
Commitments to extend credit, primarily commer&ians $ 257,15( % 204,84!
Standby letters of credit 17,84( 7,441

Commitments to extend credit are agreements totteactlient as long as there is no violation of aandition in the contract. Commitments
generally have fixed expiration dates or other teation clauses and may have a fixed interestaagerate which varies with the prime rate or
other market indices and may require payment eka$ince some commitments expire without being/dngpon, the total commitment
amounts do not necessarily represent future caglireenents of the Banks. The Banks evaluate thditarerthiness of each client on a case-by
case basis and generally extend credit only orcarsd basis. Collateral obtained varies but comgismarily of commercial real estate,
accounts receivable, inventory, equipment, andrétexsi There is generally no market for commertoah commitments, the fair value of
which would approximate the present value of amg fexpected to be received as a result of the conani. These are not considered to be
material to the financial statements.

Standby letters of credit are conditional committegssued by the Banks to guarantee the performaingelient to a third party. Generally,
standby letters of credit expire within one yead are collateralized by accounts receivable, egaigninventory, and commercial properties.
The credit risk involved in issuing letters of citad essentially the same as that involved in redtiteg loan facilities to clients. The fair value of
standby letters of credit is recorded as a ligbiihen the standby letter of credit is issued. fetievalue has been estimated to approximate th
fees received by the Banks for issuance. The feesaorded into income and the fair value of thargntee is decreased ratably over the tern
of the standby letter of credit.
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In the normal course of business, various legatgdings involving the Corporation are pending. pement, based upon advice from legal
counsel, does not anticipate any significant logses result of these actions. Management beliaesiny liability arising from any such
proceedings currently existing or threatened will Imave a material adverse effect on the Corparatitnancial position, results of operations,
and cash flows.

Note 17 — Fair Value

The Corporation determines the fair market valdétsdinancial instruments based on the fair véiigrarchy established in ASC Topic 820,
which requires an entity to maximize the use ofeobable inputs and minimize the use of unobserviapiets when measuring fair value. Fair
value is defined as the price that would be reakinean orderly transaction that is not a forcedililation or distressed sale at the measureme
date and is based on exit prices. Fair value irmdwssumptions about risk such as nonperformasicenrliability fair values and is a market-
based measurement, not an entity-specific measateige standard describes three levels of infiatisrhay be used to measure fair value.

Level 1— Level 1 inputs are unadjusted quoted prices fivamarkets for identical assets or liabilitieattthe Corporation has the ability to
access at the measurement date.

Level 2— Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted griceluded with Level 1 that are observable forahkset or liability either directly or
indirectly, such as quoted prices for similar aseetliabilities; quoted prices in markets that ao¢ active; or other inputs that are observable c
can be corroborated by observable market dataufustantially the full term of the assets or liai@k.

Level 3— Level 3 inputs are inputs that are supportedthig br no market activity and that are signifitémthe fair value of the assets or
liabilities.

In instances where the determination of the faiueaneasurement is based on inputs from diffeerdls of the fair value hierarchy, the level
in the fair value hierarchy within which the entfeér value measurement falls is based on the loleesl input that is significant to the fair
value measurement in its entirety. The Corporasi@ssessment of the significance of a particufautito the fair value measurement in its
entirety requires judgment and considers factoesifip to the asset or liability.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value oacarrring basis, segregated by fair value hieratetgl, are summarized below:

Fair Value Measurements Using
December 31, 2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(In Thousands)

Assets:

Municipal obligations $ — 3 12,031 $ — 3 12,03¢
U.S. Government agency obligations - governmentispied enterprise! — 19,72: — 19,72:
Collateralized mortgage obligations - governmesi ésl — 151,64! — 151,64!
Collateralized mortgage obligations - governmertrsored enterprises — 17,197 — 17,197
Interest rate swaps — 3,06¢ — 3,06¢
Liabilities:

Interest rate swaps $ — 3 3,06¢ % — 3 3,06¢
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Fair Value Measurements Using
December 31, 2011 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(In Thousands)

Assets:

Municipal obligations $ — 3 2,831 $ — 2,831
U.S. Government agency obligations - governmentisped enterprise! — — — —
Collateralized mortgage obligations - governmesi ésl — 165,40: — 165,40:
Collateralized mortgage obligations - governmertrsored enterprises — 2,15¢ — 2,15¢
Interest rate swaps — 3,43¢ — 3,43¢
Liabilities:

Interest rate swaps $ — 3 343¢ % — 3,43¢

For assets and liabilities measured at fair valua cecurring basis, there were no transfers betweelevels during the year ended
December 31, 2012 or the year ended December 31, r2tated to the above measurements.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value momrecurring basis, segregated by fair value hibsaare summarized below:

As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Balance at Fair Value Measurements Using Total
December 31, Gains
2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 (Losses)
(In Thousands)
Impaired loans $ 854s % — 3 6,77C $ 1,77¢ % —
Foreclosed properties 1,57¢ 52¢ 982 63 (600)
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2011
Balance at Fair Value Measurements Using Total
December 31, Gains
2011 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 (Losses)
(In Thousands)
Impaired loans $ 12,787 $ — $ 12,787 $ — 3 =
Foreclosed properties 2,23¢ 13¢ 1,98¢ 10¢ (627)

Impaired loans that are collateral dependent weittesw down to their fair value less costs to s€$8.5 million and $12.8 million at
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 , respgtitarough the establishment of specific reseordsy recording charge-offs when the
carrying value exceeded the fair value. Valuatexrhhiques consistent with the market approachniecapproach, or cost approach were use
to measure fair value and primarily included obabte inputs for the individual impaired loans begwgluated such as current appraisals,
recent sales of similar assets or other observablet data. In cases where such inputs were unaide, specifically discounts applied to
appraisal values to adjust such values to curremket conditions or to reflect net realizable valie impaired loan balance is reflected within
Level 3 of the hierarchy. The quantification of bservable inputs for Level 3 values range from 5260% .
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Certain non-financial assets subject to measureatdair value on a non-recurring basis includegdétosed properties. Foreclosed properties.
upon initial recognition, are re-measured and rebat fair value through a charge-off to the alloee for loan and lease losses, if deemed
necessary, based upon the fair value of the fosedi@roperty. The fair value of a foreclosed prigperpon initial recognition, is estimated
using a market approach or Level 2 inputs baseabservable market data, typically an appraisallemel 3 inputs based upon assumptions
specific to the individual property or equipmengviel 3 inputs typically include unobservable inpaiish as management-applied discounts
used to further reduce values to a net realizahbligevand may be used in situations when observales become stale. Foreclosed property
fair value inputs may transition to Level 1 uponeaipt of an accepted offer for the sale of thetegldoreclosed property. As of December 31,
2012 , there were $63,000 of foreclosed propestigported by a Level 3 valuation. Subsequent imgeits of foreclosed properties are
recorded as a loss on foreclosed properties. Dilnegear ended December 31, 2012 , $1.5 millioout$tanding loans were transferred to
foreclosed properties as the Corporation claintéeltth the respective assets. During the year eddsgmber 31, 2012 , the Corporation
completed an evaluation of certain of its forectbassets. Based upon the evaluation and the redulte impairment calculation, we
recognized impairment losses of $600,000 on foestlgroperties. The activity of the Corporationteélosed properties is summarized as
follows:

As of and for the Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011
(In Thousands)
Foreclosed properties at the beginning of the perio $ 2,23t $ 1,75(C
Loans transferred to foreclosed properties, at tamfieost or fair value 1,511 3,11¢
Payments to priority lien holders of foreclosedpadies 367 —
Proceeds from sale of foreclosed properties (1,955 (2,219
Net gain on sale of foreclosed properties 15 201
Impairment valuation (600) (627)
Foreclosed properties at the end of the period $ 1572 $ 2,23¢
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Corporation is required to disclose estimas#dvialues for its financial instruments. Fair \@kestimates, methods, and assumptions,
consistent with exit price concepts for fair valneasurements, are set forth below:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

(In Thousands)
Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 8558 $ 8559F $ 7494 $ 5158 $ 5500 $ 130,090 $ 130,09
Securities available-for-sale 200,59¢ 200,591 — 200,59t — 170,38t 170,38t
Loans and lease receivables, net 896,56( 905,50: — 6,77( 898,73: 836,68 840,55:
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 1,14¢ 1,14« — — 1,14¢ 2,361 2,36
Cash surrender value of life insurance 22,27 22,27 22,27 — — 17,66( 17,66(
Accrued interest receivable 3,217 3,217 3,215 — — 3,52¢ 3,52¢
Interest rate swaps 3,06¢ 3,06¢ — 3,06¢ — 3,43¢ 3,43¢
Financial liabilities:
Deposits $ 1,092,25. $ 1,102,311 $ 649,34t $ 452,97( $ — $1,051,31: $ 1,068,84
Federal Home Loan Bank and othe

borrowings 12,40¢ 13,17( — 13,17( — 40,29: 40,89¢
Junior subordinated notes 10,31t 7,04¢ — — 7,04¢ 10,31¢ 6,917
Interest rate swaps 3,06¢ 3,06¢ — 3,06¢ — 3,43¢ 3,43¢
Accrued interest payable 1,711 1,711 1,711 — — 2,62¢ 2,62¢
Off balance sheet items:
Standby letters of credit 197 197 — — 197 81 81
Commitments to extend credit — * * * * — *

*Not meaningful

Disclosure of fair value information about finandrstruments, for which it is practicable to esdite that value, is required whether or not
recognized in the consolidated balance sheetsadescwhere quoted market prices are not availf@iesalues are based on estimates using
present value or other valuation techniques. Theseniques are significantly affected by the asgionp used, including the discount rate and
estimates of future cash flows. In that regard,diived fair value estimates cannot be substaatiay comparison to independent markets

in many cases, could not be realized in immedietigesnent of the instruments. Certain financiatrimments and all non-financial instruments
are excluded from the disclosure requirements. Atingly, the aggregate fair value amounts presedtedot necessarily represent the
underlying value of the Corporation.

Cash and cash equivalentsThe carrying amounts reported for cash and due franks, interest bearing deposits held by the CGatjom,
accrued interest receivable and accrued intergsthba approximate fair value because of their imiatedavailability and because they do not
present unanticipated credit concerns. The carryatige of commercial paper, included in the cash@sh equivalents category, approxim
fair value due to the short-term maturity structof¢he instrument. As of December 31, 2012 , thepGration held $5.5 million of commercial
paper. There was no commercial paper outstandiof @ecember 31, 2011 . The fair value of commémdgoer is considered a Level 3 input
due to the lack of available independent pricingrees. The carrying value of brokered certificatbdeposit purchased is equivalent to
purchase price of the instrument as the Corpordimnot elected a fair value option for theseaimsents. The fair value of brokered
certificates of deposits purchased is based odidwaunted value of contractual cash flows usidgsaount rate reflective of rates currently
offered for deposits of similar remaining matustids of December 31, 2012, the Corporation held #llion of brokered certificates of
deposits. There were no brokered certificates pbdiés as of December 31, 2011 .

Securities: The fair value measurements of investment secsirdtie determined by a third party pricing servitéclv considers observable d
that may include dealer quotes, market spreadb,ftass, the U.S. Treasury yield curve, trade
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execution data, market consensus prepayment speredd,information and the securities’ terms andditions, among other things. The fair
value measurements are subject to independenicedioh by another pricing source on a quarterlsidbgo review for reasonableness. In
addition, the Corporation reviews the third-paryuation methodology on a periodic basis. Any digant differences in valuation are
reviewed with appropriate members of managementlvaive the relevant technical expertise to assese#ults. The Corporation has
determined that these valuations are classifidairel 2 of the fair value hierarchy. When the ineieglent pricing service does not provide a
fair value measurement for a particular securfig, Corporation will estimate the fair value basadpecific information about each security.
Fair values derived in this manner are classifiedével 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Loans and LeasesThe fair value estimation process for the loanfpba uses an exit price concept and reflects dist® that the Corporation
believes are consistent with liquidity discountstia market place. Fair values are estimated fdfgims of loans with similar financial
characteristics. The fair value of performing andperforming loans is calculated by discountingesithed and expected cash flows through
the estimated maturity using estimated market thigsreflect the credit and interest rate riskeir@mt in the portfolio of loans and then apph
a discount factor based upon the embedded crekibfithe loan and the fair value of collateralwséw nonperforming loans when the loan is
collateral dependent. The estimate of maturityaiselnl on the Banks’ historical experience with repayts for each loan classification,
modified, as required, by an estimate of the eféécturrent economic and lending conditions. Sigaifit unobservable inputs include, but are
not limited to, discounts (investor yield premiunagplied to fair value calculations to further detme the exit value of a portfolio of loans.

Federal Home Loan Bank StockThe carrying amount of FHLB stock equals its faitue because the shares may be redeemed by the FHI
at their carrying amount of $100 per share.

Cash Surrender Value of Life Insurance:The carrying amount of cash surrender value ofitifeirance approximates its fair value as the
carrying value represents the current settlemewoiuain

Deposits: The fair value of deposits with no stated matustych as demand deposits and money market accaiatgjal to the amount
payable on demand. The fair value of time depdsit@sed on the discounted value of contractudl ftaw’s. The discount rate is estimated
using the rates currently offered for depositsiwiilar remaining maturities. The fair value estiemto not include the intangible value that
results from the funding provided by deposit lidlds compared to borrowing funds in the market.

FHLB Advances and Other Borrowings and Junior Subodinated Debt: Market rates currently available to the Corporaton Banks for
debt with similar terms and remaining maturities ased to estimate fair value of existing debt.

Financial Instruments with Off-Balance-Sheet RisksThe fair value of the Corporation’s off-balance-shi@struments is based on quoted
market prices and fees currently charged to entersimilar agreements, taking into account theaiaing terms of the agreements and the
credit standing of the related counterparty. Comraiits to extend credit and standby letters of tegdigenerally not marketable. Furtherm
interest rates on any amounts drawn under such d@omemts would generally be established at markesrat the time of the draw. Fair value
would principally derive from the present valudfeds received for those products.

Interest Rate SwapsThe carrying amount and fair value of existing dative financial instruments are based upon indéeenvaluation
models, which use widely accepted valuation tealesgincluding discounted cash flow analysis oretipected cash flows of each derivative
contract. This analysis reflects the contractuahgeof the derivatives, including the period to uniy, and uses observable market-based
inputs, including interest rate curves and impliethtilities. The Corporation incorporates credituation adjustments to appropriately reflect
both its own nonperformance risk and the respeciwterparty’s nonperformance risk in the fairneaimeasurements. In adjusting the fair
value of its derivative contracts for the effechohperformance risk, the Corporation has consitifire impact of netting and any applicable
credit enhancements, such as collateral postihgessholds, mutual puts and guarantees.

Limitations: Fair value estimates are made at a discrete poiithie, based on relevant market information aforimation about the financial
instrument. These estimates do not reflect any jmanor discount that could result from offering gale at one time the Corporation’s entire
holding of a particular financial instrument. Besawno market exists for a significant portion @ @orporation’s financial instruments, fair
value estimates are based on judgments regardingefaxpected loss experience, current economidittons, risk characteristics of various
financial instruments, and other factors. Thesinggés are subjective in nature and involve ungits and matters of significant judgment
and, therefore, cannot be determined with precisidranges in assumptions could significantly affeetestimates.
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Fair value estimates are based on existing balsimeet financial instruments without attemptinggtireate the value of anticipated future
business and the value of assets and liabilitizssate not considered financial instruments. Intéaid the tax ramifications related to the
realization of the unrealized gains and lossesheare a significant effect on fair value estimated aere not considered in the estimates.

Note 18 — Condensed Parent Only Financial Informatin

The following represents the condensed financiarmation of the Parent Company:

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments in subsidiaries, at equity
Leasehold improvements and equipment, net
Other assets

Total assets
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Borrowed funds
Other liabilities

Total liabilities
Stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

Interest income
Interest expense

Net interest expense
Non-interest income

Condensed Balance Sheets

Condensed Statements of Income

Consulting and rental income from consolidated glitases

Other
Total non-interest income
Non-interest expense

Loss before income tax benefit and equity in umiisted net income of consolidated

subsidiaries
Income tax benefit

Loss before equity in undistributed net incomeaisolidated subsidiaries
Equity in undistributed net income of consolidasetbsidiaries

Net income
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As of December 31,

2012 2011
(In Thousands)
1,03: % 71€
121,12. 115,37:
47¢ 38¢
2,19¢ 1,98¢
124,82¢ $ 118,46t
22,257 % 50,12¢
3,03¢ 4,12;
25,28¢ 54,25:
99,53¢ 64,21«
124,82¢ $ 118,46t

For the Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011
(In Thousands)

— $ 16
3,82t 3,60(
(3,825) (3,584
8,90¢ 8,45¢

34 107
8,93¢ 8,561
9,61¢ 8,60:

(4,50%) (3,626
(1,722 (2,590)
(2,780 (1,039
11,70¢ 9,46:

8,92¢ $ 8,42¢
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Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

Operating activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskl irs@perating activities:
Equity in undistributed earnings of consolidatetsidiaries
Share-based compensation
Excess tax benefit from share-based compensation
(Decrease) increase in liabilities
Other, net

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities
Investing activities
Dividends received from subsidiaries

Net provided by investing activities
Financing activities
Net (decrease) increase in short-term borrowedsund
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Repayment of long-term debt
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Purchase of treasury stock
Excess tax benefit from share-based compensation
Dividends paid

Net cash used in financing activities
Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning oféhieg
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period
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For the Year Ended December 31,

2012

(In Thousands)

8,92¢ $ 8,42t
(11,706 (9,465
254 24C
(47) 4
(1,13) 2,19¢
(297) (95€)
(4,007) 43¢
6,00( —
6,00( —
(800) 80C
6,21¢ —
(33,289 —
27,07 —
22 —
(216) (109)
47 4
(73¢) (729)
(1,68%) (28)
314 41C
71¢ 30¢
1,03: $ 71¢
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Note 19 — Condensed Quarterly Earnings (unaudited)

2012 2011
First Second Third Fourth First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(Dollars in Thousands, Except per share data)
Interest income $ 13,637 $ 13,94! $ 14,03 $ 13,15¢ $ 14,07C $ 14,17: $ 14,11¢ $ 13,85
Interest expense (4,707 (4,339 (4,117 (3,727) (5,58¢€) (5,205 (5,015 (4,950)
Net interest income 8,92¢ 9,60¢ 9,91t 9,431 8,48¢ 8,96¢ 9,10¢ 8,90«
Provision for loan losses (509 (2,045 (850 (849 (1,409 (1,479 (43%) (937)
Non-interest income 1,85( 1,90¢ 2,24¢ 2,69¢ 1,672 1,744 1,72¢ 1,91¢
Non-interest expense (6,832 (7,139 (7,25)) (7,446 (6,760 (6,639 (6,750 (6,249
Income before income tax expense 3,44( 2,33¢ 4,06: 3,831 1,992 2,601 3,64 3,63¢
Income taxes (1,230) (777 (1,447 (1,30¢) (643) (89) (1,46¢) (1,250)
Net income $ 221C $ 1568 $ 2622 $ 252¢ $ 134¢ $ 2517 $ 2,17¢ $ 2,38/
Per common share data:
Basic earnings per commonshare $ 08 $ 06 $ 09¢ $ 08 $ 052 $ 09 $ 08 $ 09
Diluted earnings per common share 0.8¢ 0.6( 0.9¢ 0.8¢ 0.52 0.9¢ 0.8: 0.9C
Dividends declared per share 0.07% 0.07 0.07 0.07 0.07 0.07 0.07 0.07
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
First Business Financial Services, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of First Business Financial Services,dnd subsidiaries as of Decembel
2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated statsnoé income, comprehensive income, changes tkitdders' equity, and cash flows
the years then ended. These consolidated finastas#ments are the responsibility of the Compamgsagement. Our responsibility is
express an opinion on these consolidated finasta¢ments based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstaits of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBioUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebta@asonable assurance about whether the finaptaggments are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disas in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenentelhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaemeferred to above present fairly, in all matferespects, the financial position of F
Business Financial Services, Inc. and subsidiasesf December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the redult®io operations and their cash flows
the years then ended, in conformity with U.S. galheraccepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Blofdnited States), First Busini
Financial Services, Inc.'s internal control overaficial reporting as of December 31, 2012, basedriteria established imternal Contral -
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidriee Treadway Commission (COSO), and our regated Marc
8, 2013 expressed an unqualified opinion on thectiffeness of the Company's internal control owenrfcial reporting.

/sl KPMG LLP

Chicago, lllinois
March 8, 2013
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
First Business Financial Services, Inc.:

We have audited First Business Financial Servibes's internal control over financial reporting @sDecember 31, 2012, based on crit
established irnternal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafnthe Treadway Commissi
(COSO0). First Business Financial Services, Incaaagement is responsible for maintaining effecimternal control over financial reporti
and for its assessment of the effectiveness ofriatecontrol over financial reporting, included time accompanying Management's Ani
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporti@ur responsibility is to express an opinion orstBusiness Financial Services, Ir
internal control over financial reporting basedoam audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statslof the Public Company Accounting Oversight ifq@nited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenalteontrol over financial reporting w
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal coraxar financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, and testing aalli@ing the design and operating effectivenessatefnal control based on the assessed
Our audit also included performing such other pdoces as we considered necessary in the circunestaée believe that our audit provide
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial repogtis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of financ
reporting and the preparation of financial statetmdor external purposes in accordance with gelyermlcepted accounting principles
company's internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (tpimeto the maintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositions of the assetseottimpany; (2) provide reasonable assui
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accorédamdth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanalsksurance regarding prevention or timely deteafounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company's assets that could havaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohwver financial reporting may not prevent or @ttmisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, First Business Financial Servides, maintained, in all material respects, effegtinternal control over financial reporting a:
December 31, 2012, based on criteria establishethteinal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponso
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the consolida
financial statements of First Business Financial/8es, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 312 2(hd 2011, and the related consolid
statements of income, comprehensive income, chaingst®ckholders' equity, and cash flows for thargethen ended, and our report d
March 8, 2013 expressed an unqualified opiniorhasé consolidated financial statements.

/sl KPMG LLP

Chicago, lllinois
March 8, 2013
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountasion Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Corporation’s management, with the participatbthe Corporation’s Chief Executive Officer a@tlief Financial Officer, has
evaluated the Corporation’s disclosure controls gnodedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) andlB%e]} under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended). Based upon that evaluatierCorporation’s Chief Executive Officer and CHiéfiancial Officer have concluded that
the Corporation’s disclosure controls and proceslurere effective as of December 31, 2012 .

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There was no change in the Corporation’s interoatrol over financial reporting (as such term ifired in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f) under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1834amended) that occurred during the quarterdeBeéeember 31, 2012 that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, the Corporation’s internal control over fineheceporting.

Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control overFinancial Reporting

The Corporation’s management is responsible fabdishing and maintaining adequate internal cordvelr financial reporting, as
such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d)18(der the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asratad. The Corporation’s internal
control over financial reporting is a process desdjto provide reasonable assurance regardin@liability of financial reporting and the
preparation of the Corporation’s financial statetadar external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted accounting principles.

Management, under the supervision of the Chief &txee Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, assed the effectiveness of the
Corporation’s internal control over financial refiog based on criteria for effective internal cohwver financial reporting established in
“Internal Control — Integrated Framework,” issugdthe Committee of Sponsoring Organization of theafiway Commission (COSO). Based
on this assessment, management has determingtieh@brporation’s internal control over financiaporting was effective as 8fecember 31
2012.

KPMG LLP, the independent registered public acciognirm that audited the Consolidated Financiat&ments of the Corporation
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, hasuisd an attestation report on the effectivenetiseo€orporation's internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2012, asired by Section 112 of the FDIC Improvement Actl8®1 and the rules and regulations
promulgated thereunder. The report, which expreasasmqualified opinion on the effectiveness of@weporation's internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2012 forhsperposes, is included under the heading "Regdndependent Registered Public
Accounting Firm." The attestation report on theeeffveness of the Corporation's internal controtevjgled by KPMG is not intended to satisfy
the requirements of Section 404(b) of the Sarb&hdey Act of 2002, because the Corporation is mbjexct to such requirements, as it is
neither a 'large accelerated filer' nor an 'acaédel filer' as those terms are defined in SEC RAke2.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.

PART III.

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance

(a) Directors of the Registrant . The information included in the definitive Pro®yatement for the Annual Meeting of the Stockhdadder
to be held on May 20, 2013 under the captions "ltentlection of Directors," "Corporate
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Governance Principles and Practices" and “Sectifa)1Beneficial Ownership Reporting Complianceihisorporated herein by
reference.

(b) Executive Officers of the Registrant . The information presented in Item 1 of this doeutris incorporated herein by referei

(c) Code of Ethics. The Corporation has adopted a code of ethicscglyé to all employees, including the principateutive,
principal financial officer and principal accourginfficer of the Corporation. The FBFS Code of E$his posted on the
Corporation’s website at www.firstbusiness.com. Thgporation intends to satisfy the disclosure mespents under Item 5.05(c)
of Form 8-K regarding any amendment to or waivethefcode with respect to its Chief Executive Gffiand Chief Financial
Officer, and persons performing similar functiobg,posting such information to the Corporation'osite.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information with respect to compensation for ouediors and officers included in the definitive Bré&tatement for the Annual
Meeting of the Stockholders to be held on May 2, 2included "Summary of Compensation Paid to NaBeztutive Officers,"” "Summary
Compensation Tables, " "Outstanding Equity AwartdSecember 31, 2012 ," "Disclosure Regarding Teatidm and Change in Control
Provisions" and "Director Compensation" is incogied herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Qvners and Management and Related Stockholder Matter

Information with respect to security ownership eftain beneficial owners and management includeddrdefinitive Proxy Stateme
for the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders to billen May 20, 2013 under the caption “Principal iehalders” is incorporated herein by
reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ns, and Director Independence

Information with respect to certain relationships aelated transactions included in the definifvexy Statement for the Annual
Meeting of the Stockholders to be held on May Z,2under the captions “Related Party Transactiansg’"Corporate Governance Principles
and Practices" is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Information with respect to principal accountingseand services included in the definitive Proxat&nent for the Annual Meeting of
the Stockholders to be held on May 20, 2013 urttecaption “Independent Registered Public Accognilmm” is incorporated herein by
reference.

PART IV.
Iltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

The Consolidated Financial Statements listed orrttiex included under ftem 8 — Financial Statements and Supplementary Dat
" are filed as a part of this Form 10-K. All finaaktstatement schedules have been included in tms@idated Financial Statements or are
either not applicable or not significant.

Exhibits . See Exhibit Index.
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

March 8, 201:

March 8, 201:

March 8, 201:

March 8, 201:

March 8, 201:

March 8, 201:

March 8, 201:

March 8, 201:

March 8, 201:

March 8, 201:

March 8, 201:

FIRST BUSINESS FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.

/sl Corey A. Chambas

Corey A. Chambas
Chief Executive Officer

/sl James F. Ropella

James F. Ropella
Chief Financial Officer

/s/ Shauna M. Gnorski

Shauna M. Gnorski
Chief Accounting Officer

/sl Jerome J. Smith

Jerome J. Smith
Chairman of the Board of Directors

/sl Mark D. Bugher

Mark D. Bugher
Director

/sl Jan A. Eddy

Jan A. Eddy
Director

/s/ John J. Harris

John J. Harris
Director

/sl Gerald L. Kilcoyne

Gerald L. Kilcoyne
Director

/s/ John M. Silseth

John M. Silseth
Director

/sl Barbara H. Stephens

Barbara H. Stephens
Director

/sl Dean W. Voeks

Dean W. Voeks
Director
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Exhibit No.

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

21

Exhibit Name

Amended and Restated Articles of IncorporatibRirst Business Financial Services, Inc., asraded (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Annual Reportr@nmm 10-K filed on March 13, 2009)

Amended and Restated Bylaws of First Busii@sancial Services, Inc., as amended (incorporayeceference to
Exhibit 3.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 31, 2012)

Pursuant to Item 601(b)(4)(iii) of Regulati®+K, the Registrant agrees to furnish to the Seéearand Exchange
Commission, upon request, any instrument definregrights of holders of long-term debt not beingistered that is
not filed as an exhibit to this Annual Report onfRd.0-K. No such instrument authorizes securitiesxcess of 10%
of the total assets of the Registrant.

Rights Agreement, dated as of June 5, 20a8/dem the Registrant and Computershare Invest@ic®st Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to thgR&ation Statement on Form 8-A of the Registréilet] on June 6,
2008)

Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporabgdeference to Exhibit 4.5 to Amendment No. th® Registration
Statement on Form S-1 filed on November 26, 2012)

2001 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated &igrence to Exhibit 10.1 to the Amended RegistraBtatement on
Form 10 filed April 28, 2005)

Form of Stock Option Agreement (incorporaigdaeference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Amended Regiiin Statement
on Form 10 filed April 28, 2005)

2006 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated éfgrence to Appendix B to the Corporation’s Proigt&ment for the
2006 Annual Meeting of Shareholders filed on Masdh 2006)

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (incorfeddy reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the Registratiéatement on Form
S-8 filed September 28, 2006)

2012 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated &fgrence to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly ReporForm 10-Q filed on
July 27, 2012)

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (incorfetdy reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the Registratdatement on Form
S-8 filed August 13, 2012)

Form of Executive Change-in-Control and Sawee Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exihil to the
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 100&0

Restated Agreement dated November 7, 200é&betthe Registrant and Corey A. Chambas (incotpoiay
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current ReporEorm 8-K filed on November 13, 2006)

Annual Incentive Bonus Program (incorpordtgdeference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current ReparfForm 8-K filed
on January 29, 2013)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant (incorporateddfgrence to Exhibit 21 to the Amended RegistraStatement on
Form 10 filed April 28, 2005)
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Consent of KPMG LLP
Certification of the Chief Executive Officer
Certification of the Senior Vice Presidend &hief Financial Officer

Certification of the Chief Executive OfficercaBenior Vice President and Chief Financial Offiparsuant to 18
U.S.C. Section 1350

Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of thec&holders (to be filed with the SEC under Redafail4A within
120 days after December 31, 2012; except to thenegpecifically incorporated by reference, thexr8tatement
for the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders shall o deemed to be filed with the SEC as part af Arinual Repol

on Form 10-K)

The following financial information from FirBusiness Financial Services, Inc.'s Annual Reporftorm 10-K for
the years ended December 31, 2012, formatted inLX@Ktensible Business Reporting Language): (i) €xidated
Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2012 and Dec&hp2011, (ii) Consolidated Statements of Incoorelie
years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, (iii) Goladed Statements of Comprehensive Income foydaes
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, (iv) Consolidatements of Changes in Stockholders' Equityrferyears
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, (v) Consolidéiz@ments of Cash Flows for the years ended DezeBih
2012 and 2011, and (vi) the Notes to Unaudited Glafted Financial Statements*+

Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, thederactive data files are deemed not filed as @faatregistration
statement or prospectus for purposes of Sectioms 12 of the Securities Act of 1933 or Sectioroighe Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 and otherwise are not sulbpelgability.

Submitted electronically with this Annual Report
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Exhibit 23
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
First Business Financial Services, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference irréiggstration statements (No. 333-129059, No. 383274 and No. 333-137635) on Forn8S-
of First Business Financial Services, Inc. and &lidises of our reports dated March 8, 2Q28ith respect to the consolidated balance shd
First Business Financial Services, Inc. and sulsgB as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and thtedetonsolidated statements of incc
comprehensive income, changes in stockholderstyeqnd cash flows for the years then ended, aacetfectiveness of internal control o
financial reporting as of December 31, 2012, whieports appear in the December 31, 2012, annualtrep Form 10K of First Busines
Financial Services, Inc.

/sl KPMG LLP

Chicago, lllinois
March 8, 2013



Exhibit 31.1

Certifications

I, Corey A. Chambas, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on FormKL6f First Business Financial Services, |

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact otamstate a material fact necessary t
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedarecaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isihg prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over finanaiglarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentglsi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in thestegnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant’s internal control over finalceporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer antddve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theittemmmittee of the registrant’s board of directors

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrigistrant’s ability to record, process, summasiad report financial
information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that inneadvymanagement or other employees who have a sagmiifiole in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

/sl Corey A. Chambas
Corey A. Chambas
Chief Executive Officer
March 8, 2013




Exhibit 31.2

Certifications

[, James F. Ropella, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on FormKL6f First Business Financial Services, |

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact otamstate a material fact necessary t
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhubsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isihg prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over finanaiglarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registralisglosure controls and procedures and presentiisi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in thegtegnt's internal control over financial reportihgt occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regis's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, the registrant's internal control over finahceporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer anglalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thatauanmittee of the registrant's board of directors

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaizé report financial
information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that innedvymanagement or other employees who have a sagmiifiole in the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

/sl James F. Ropella
James F. Ropella
Chief Financial Officer
March 8, 2013




Exhibit 32

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sd¢ion 1350

Solely for the purposes of complying with 18 U.SSection 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section B Garbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, we
the undersigned Chief Executive Officer and ChiefiRcial Officer of First Business Financial Sees¢Inc., a Wisconsin Corporation (the
"Corporation"), hereby certify, based on our knaige that the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the @aaion for the year ended

December 31, 2012 (the "Report") fully complieshitite requirements of Section 13(a) or Section J1&6{the Securities and Exchange Act of
1934 and that information contained in the Repairtyf presents, in all material respects, the faiahcondition and results of operations of the
Corporation.

/sl Corey A. Chambas
Corey A. Chambas
March 8, 2013

/sl James F. Ropella
James F. Ropella
March 8, 2013




